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Yours faithfully
. For and on behalf of SEP B8 2z
* CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED THOR SO
i
FINANCIAL

TEL; 852-2318 1228 FAX. 8522757 5138 WEB SITE: hitp://www.chevalier.com
DIRECT FAX: (852) 2757 5669

Rercsprossos  MENEENNENMEL s
Exemption No. #82-4201 \\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\ \\\

BY COURIER

Office of International Corporate Finance BRI

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission N
Mail Stop 3 - 2 ?{? L=
450 Fifth Street, N.-W. ST e
Washington D.C. 20549 i .
Dear Sir

Re: Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited (Exemption No. #82-4201)

On behalf of Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability, I am furnishing herewith the Announcements, Annual Report,
Interim Report and Circulars pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(iii) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 for you record.

Kindly acknowledge receipt of the said documents by signing and returning the
duplicate of this letter to us by post or by fax at (852) 2757 5669.

Should you have any queries, please feel free to contact our Ms Nancy Chan at (852)
23315662 or via email at nancy_chan@chevalier.com /

lovtpssisa

Kan Ka Hon ) )\j) Cs
Director
Encl '

t
NK/AM/nc,

HONG KONG CANADA CHINA JAPAN MACAU MALAYSIA MYANMAR PHILIPPINES SINGAPORE THAILAND USA VIETNAM | '
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no /esponsrbtll{v for the contents of this announcement. makes
no lepzesematron as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

m

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED  CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
HIBFEZERERLA" - HitEBREMARAAF"
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited [mbzllty) (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability}..
. (Stock code: 508) ' : (Stock code: 025)

Increase in the price and tradinAg volume of shares-

The Company noted that today’s increase in the price and trading volume of the shares of the Company
and wish to state that the Company is not-aware of any reasons for such increase except for the acqunsmon
of 16,972,000 shares of the Company by CIHL.

This statement is made jointly at the request of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock -

Exchange™).

The board of directors (“the Board™) of Chevalier iTech Holdmgs Limited (“the Company ') noted the increase

in the price and trading volume of the shares of the Company today and wishes to state that the Company
is not aware of any reasons for such increase save as Chevalier International Holdings Limited (“CIHL™),
the substantial shareholder of the Company, has acquired 16,972,000 shares of the Company in the open market
today, which represent approximately 9.9% of the issued share capltal of the Company at the price of HK$1.80
each.

As a result of the above acquisition, CIHL's percentage shareholdings in the shares of .the Company increased
from 50.77% to 60.67% within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Board confirms
that a minimum of 25% of the total 1ssued share capital of the Company is still in public hands after the
above acquisition. .

The Board confirms that Ihere are no negotiations or agreements relanng to intended acqunsmons or realizations
which are discloseable under Rule 13.23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“the Listing Rules”), neither is the Board aware of any matter discloseable under the general
“obligation imposed by Rule 13. 09 of the Listing Rules, which is or may be of a price-sensitive nature.

Shareholders and potential investors are advnsed to exercise caution when deahng in shares of the
Company. -

Made by the order of lhe Boards of CIHL and the Company," the Directors of which individually and Jomtly
accept responsibility for the accuracy: of this announcement.

- By Order of the Board of ’ ‘ By Order of the Board Tof

Chevaller iTech Holdings- lelted s Chevaher International Holdlngs Limited

: Chow Yei Ching ) ‘ . Chow Yei Ching .
) Chairman . - ' Chauman and Managing Duecroi
Hong Kong. 9th August, 2005 e 3 : S s

for identification only’

A5 at the date of this announcement, the Board of !he Company comprises Dr Chow Yei Clung, Mr. Fung
Pak Kwan, Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang, Mr. Kan Ka Hon, Mr. Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow as executive
Directors and ‘Mr. Shinichi Yoneha:a Mr. Wu King Cheonq and Mr Kwong Man Sing as mdependent non-
executive Directors. S -

As at the dare of this announcement, the Board of CIHL compllses Dr. Chow Yei Ching, Messrs. Kuok Hoi
Sang. Fung Pak Kwan, Tam Kwok Wing, Kan Ka Hon, Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Ho Chung Leung as
executive Directors and Mr. Wonq Wang Fat, Andrew, Dr. Chow Mmg Kuen, Joseph and Mr. Li Kwok Heem,
John as independent non-executive Directors.
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The Standard Monday, October 4, 2004

@ |
CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
HEtMEERERQT
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 508)

APPOINTMENT OF INDEP_ENDENT.
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

The board of directors {the “Board"} of Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is pleased to announce that Mr KWONG Man Sing has been appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director and a Member of Audit Committee of the
Company with effect from 30th September, 2004.

Mr Kwong, aged 58, is a professional accountant and also holds a Bacheior degree of
Applied Science in Electrical Engineering of University of Toronto. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Centified Public Accountants and 2 member of
the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants. Mr Kwong was with
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants for more than 32 years, of
which he was an audit partner since 1980 until he retired from the firm on 30 June
2002. Mr Kwong has not held any directorship in any other listed public company in
the last three years.

- Mr Kwong does not hold any position in any member of the Group nor does he have any
relationship with any other directors, senior management or substantial shareholders or
controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective associates. He does not have
any interests in the shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed under Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

There is neither any service contract between the Company and Mr Kwong nor any
specified term for the length or proposec length of service with the Company in
respect of the directorship. Mr Kwong is subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. The director’s fee payable to Mr
Kwoag will be fixed by the Board subject to shareholders® approval in annual general
meeting and the emolumient of director is determined by reference to the Company's
performance and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and
the prevailing market conditions. '

Save as disclosed above, the Board does not aware of any other matters that need to be
brought to the attention of holders of securities of the Company.

The Board would like to take this opportunity to welcome Mr KWong to join the

Board.

By Order of the Board
_CHOW Yei Ching

: Chairman

. i .

Hong Kong, 30th September, 2004

As at the date of this announcement, the Execulive Directors of the Company'are Dr Chow Yei Ching,
Messrs Fung Pak Kwan, Kuok Hoi Sung. Kan Ka Hon and Ms Lily Chow. The Independent Non-
Executive Directurs of the Company are Messrs Shinichi Yonehara, Wu King Cheong and Kwang

© Man Sing.

" ® For identification purpose only
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The Standard Monday, August 1, 2005

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
ErNERRABRAN R

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 508)

NOTICE OF 2005 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Gcneral Meeting of
the Shareholders of the Company will be held at 22nd Floor,
Chevslier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong

.Kong on Friday, 9th September, 2005 at 10:00 a.m. for the following

purposesi—
An Drdinnry Business
To receive and consider the audited financial statements and the
Reports of the Directdrs and Auditors for the year ended 31st
March, 2005,

2. To declare a final dividend.

3. To re-clect retiring Directers and autharize the Board of Directors
to fix their remuneration. -
4, To re-appoint Auditors and authunze the Board of Directors to

fix their remuneration,
And As Special Business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass with
or without modification the following resolutions as Ordinary
Resolutions:— .

ORDINARY  RESOLUTIONS
5. “THAT: .

(a) subject to parzgraph (c) below, the exercise by the Directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the Company ta allot, issuc
and deal with additional shares in the capital of the
Company and to make or grant offars, agreements and
options which might require the exercise of such powers
_be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) shall anthorize the Directors
of the Company during the Relevant Poriod to make or
grant offers, agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such powers aftér the end of the Relevant
Period;

{c) the aggregate nominal amcunt of share capital alloted or

agreed conditionally or unconditionaily to be allotted,

{whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
Directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph {a), othérwise than purduant to (i) a Rights lasue
(as hereinafier defined) or (i) the ‘exercise of subscription

rights under.any share option scheme of the Cempany or -

(iii) an issue of shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the
Bye-laws of the Company from fime to time, shall not
exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue as &t the date of passing
- of thit Resolutica and the said appmvnl shall be limited
accordingly; and
(d) for the purposes of this Resolution and Resolution 6i-

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of

this Resolution until whichever is the earliest. of:

(i}  the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting

© of the Company;

(ii) "~ the expiration of the period within which the next
Annual General Meceting of the Company is required
by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applxcnblc
law of Bermuda to be held; snd

(ili) the revocation or variation of this Resolution by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company
in Genersl Meetling.

“Rights Issue” means the allotment, issue or grant of shares

pursuant lo an offer (open for a period fixed by the-

Directors of the Company) made to shareholders or any
class thereof on the Register of Members of the Company
on a fixed record date pro rate to their then holdings of
such shares or class thereof (subject to such exclusion or
. other arrengements as the Directors of the Company may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to (ractional
entitlements of having regerd to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recagnised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any
territory outside Hong Kong).”

6. “THAT:

(a) subject to parsgraph (b). below, the exercise by the
Directors of the Company during the Relevant. Period (as
defined in Resolution 5(d) above) all powers of the
Company to repurchase its shares in the capital of the
Company, subject to and in accordance with all spplicable
laws and requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited as amended from time ‘to time, be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally spproved; and

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares to be purchased
by the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a)
above during the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate nominal emount of the issued share capital
of the Company on the date of this Resolution- and the
authority pursuant to paragraph (a) above shall be limited
accordingly.”

7. “THAT the general mandate granted to the Directors of the
Company to sliot, issue and desl with -additional shares pursuant
to Ordinary Resolution set out in Resolution 5 be and is hereby
extended by the addition thereto of an amount representing the
sggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company

which may be allotied or agreed conditionally or unconditionallys
to be allotted pursuant to such geaeral mandste the aggregate
nominal amount of share in the capital of the Company,>
repurchased by the Company undet the puthority granted pursuant.:
to Ordinary Resolution sct out in Resolution 6, provided that |
such amount shall not exceed 10% of the aggregste nominal
amount of the issued share capital of the Complny at the date -
of . this Resolution.” ]
8. As special business, to comsider and, if (houghl fit, pass lhc i
following resolution as = special resolution of the Company -

SPECIAL RESOLUTION .
“THAT the Bye-laws of the Compluy be and  are hercby
amended in the following manner:-
(s} By deleting the existing wording for Bye-hw 95 and
replacing with the following new wording:

“The Ditectors shall have power from time to time lnd (199
any time to appoint. any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an sddition to the Board but so -
that the number of Directors so nppom!ed shall not excced
the maximum number determined from time to time by the
shareholders in general meeting.

(b) By deleting the existing Byes-law 112,(A) in its entirety nnd :
' substituting therewith a new Bye-law 112.(A).as follows:i~ .|

“112.(A) Notwithstanding any other provisions in the
Bye-laws but snb;ect to the Statutes, at”sach
snaual geaecal third of the Di ]
for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to
but not Jeas than one-third) shall retire from
office by ‘rotation. Bvery Director shall retire
from office no later then the 'third anausl
general meeting zince the last re-election or
appointment of such Director.”

(¢} By adding the following wordmg after the exlsung wording
for Bye-law.

“The Company mey from time te time in general meeting
by Ordinary Resolution elect any person to be & Director
either to fill a casual vecancy or az an addition to ths
Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office until
the next following general meeting of the Company (in the
case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of an
addition to the Board), and shall then be eligible for re-
election at the mesting.”

By Order of the Bourd
KAN Ka Hon'
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 29th July, 2005

Principal Place of Business:

22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road

Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong

Registered Office:

Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton, HM 12

Bermuda

Notes: . .

{a} A member entitled to 'attend 2nd volec at the meeting convened by this
notice is entitled to appoint one or more progies to atiend and, in the
event of a poil. to vore in his stzmd, A, proxy need not be s member
of the Company. . N

(b) In arder to be valid, 8 form of proxy, together with the power of sitorney
or other ‘sutharity (if any), must be deposited 8t the Company's Branch
Share Registrars in Hong Kong, STANDARD REGISTRARS LIMITED of
G/F, Bank' of East Aria Harbour View Centre,. 56 Gloucenier Road,
Waanchai, Hoog Kong not tess (hau 48 hours befors the time appoiated
for holding the meeting or any adjourned mecting.

() The Register of Members of the Company will be closed. from Monday,
22a0d August, 2005 to Friday, 26tb August, 2005, both deys intlusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
qualify (ot the proposed final dividend, sll transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates musi be lodged with the Company's
Branch Share Registrars in Hong-Kong, Standard Registrars Limited pot
ister than 4:00 p.m. on Fridny. 19th August, 2008,

@ An 3 prop of re-¢lzcting the Teiiring
Director of (he Company, grnmmg gencrul mandales (0 issue new shares
and (0 repurchase own shares, and meking amendmenta to the Bye-laws
of the Company has been despaiched to Ihe sharehaiders of the Compnny
together with this aotiee.

(e} Information. on lhe retiring Dxucxen has been aet out is paze 2 of the
clrcular of the Compeny dated 29th July, 2005.

As at'the date of this announcement, the Executive Directors of the

Company are Dr Chow: Yei Ching (Chairman), Messrs Fung Pak Kwan

(Managing Director), Kuok Hoi Sang, Kan Ka Hon, Chow Vee Tsung,

Oscar and Ms Lily Chow. The Independent Non-Executive Directors

of the Company are Messrs Shinichi Yoneharn Wu King Cheong and

Kwong Man Sing. .

website: hupiliwww.chevalier-itech.com

*' For identification purpose only
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An anmlysis of the Group's lurnover znd contribution to operating profit (loss) by business segments

and geographical segmenis ix
(a) By business’ segmeats

xs follows:

Year ended Jlst March, 2005

Discontinued
Costinziog operations operations Total
Network Tele-
Computer solutien Techaies! laresiments commuaication
ad . and teles amd o secyrilies Geaernt services
businens  tommanicalion maistenanee aed merchzadise and
@ackises spstems services athers inding resailing
HEI'00d HEg'ene HEsroae HEL'0q ek HKS'000 HES'000
TURNOYER
Tota! 1ales 453,141 . 109,362 42829 M - - 711,580
totes-segmeat saler 12031 (2,065) 11,015} - - - 38410
; Exterasl sales IJI y/1} & JL?’J & — &
Inter-sepmety sabes are charged 1 prices desermined by managemesl with relereace 1o Marke! ‘prices.
RESULTS
Segmest results 1,668 513 2,383 1,349 - - 5,859
laterest ineome %
Unalioensed. corporate
income 3
Ussltocaied corporate
expemses 1500
Profit from opecatioes PO
Fiasact costs m
Shate af rewclt
of s auecint 828 - - - - - 826)
Profit befare uuunn 4103
Tusatioa 1339}
Profit fer the year
Year ended 31s1 March, 2004
Discostinged
Coalicuing operations opeations Total
Retwork . Telew
Computer soletion Tecknica) Tavesiments commugication
and d telem ©oad s seeurilies services
busisess  communication meizlcnance erthandise and
@achioey sysieas weevices athers trading tesiling
. .. HR$000 KK 8 000 HK5 000 HK$'000 HEY 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TURNOVER
Total sales 43).482 i1.108 45,560 124417 - (X1t N4
Igtes-gepment sakes 143.113) {34480 - - (834) 136,843
Euterasl ssles LIAEL) 124477 - 994 §10.58)"
tteestpment sales kre Shasged At prites determined by Canagemest with cefetence to markel grices.
RESULTS
Seyment resulis 720 {1668} 217 13144 - 1320 17,890
isieren iatome pRCHY
Usallocated corponite
income 152
Unallocated corporate
expegacs
Profia from opesasivas
Fisance casls
Shate of ressit
of an assoriate m - - - - - i
Qaia on disontinsed
oprasians - - - - 2] Yy (K13
Prefit tefore wastion 4420
Taaztios (1,357
A

Profit for the yewr

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax ix culcalaled ut the rute of 17.5% (2004: 17.5%) on the entimuted

sxsessyble profits less avuilable tux reliel For loxses hrought Torward,

Provision ‘for overseas tuxation is caicutated buxed on the rutes applicable 10 the relevuni Jocu!
legixtation on the estimuted assessuble profits. . .

4, Earnings per ‘thare
Baxi¢ carnings per share mre calculuted baxed on the profit for the yeur of HK$3,764,000 (2004;
HK322,863.000) and on the aumber of ordinucy shures {ssued of 171,385,471 (2004: 17(,R58,871),

DIVIDEND .

The Board of Direclors recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK| cent (2004: HKJ
cents) per share payable to shareholders whose naumes appeur on the Register of Members of
the Compuny on Friday, 26th August, 2005, Thiy, together with the interim dividend of HKI
cent (2004: HK2 cents) per share paid during the yeur, reprexents o djvidend distribution of
HK2 cents (2004: HKS cents) per share for the year ended 313t March, 2005. Subject 1o the
appreval of sharcholders at the forthcoming Annual General Mecling, the dividend warrants will
be distributed and paid on or about Tuesday, [3th S=p|=mbcr‘ 2005,

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 22nd August, 2005
to Friday, 26th August, 2005, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be effected. To qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's Branch Shafe Registrars
in Hong Kong. Standard Regisirars Limited of G/F., Bank of Bast Asia Harbour View Cenire,
56 Gloucesier Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for regisiration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday,
19th August, 2005,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The overall performance of the Group during the year under review paled when comparcd with
the previous year. A net profit of HK$3.8 millicn was recorded compured with HK$22.9 mitlion
tast year. The major setback was the wri wn of ~ertain direct investment due to the
impairment in value and the unrealized loss arizing frcm marking 10 market the value of fixed
income investment.

Turnover of the Compuler and Business Machines Division gres 12.2% 1o HK$432 miltion and
segment operating profit increased 123% to HKS$1.6 mitlion, Although the sales ‘of computer
equipment grew 25%, it was lower than expected os a result =f the business machine markes
shrinking. The generul economic recovery did not appear to have produced a strong enough
drive for the traditional businsss machine sector. The demund for computer equipment. however,
kept on growing prompted by the introduction of aew notebook compuiers at attractive prices.

- The resulis of the Network Solutions and Telecommunication Syziems Division greatly improved

during the year under review. Although turnover recorded a raitd decreuse from HKSI119 million
1o HK$107 nittion, the Division turned in profit of HK$0.5 million compured with the HKS$1.7
miliion loss last year. During the year, the division was awarded several major contructs which

included:

t. a 2°yeur contrucl for ELV Maintenance Service of One 1IFC and the Southern Podium
of 1FC Mult and Two IFC Podium Shopping Mall

2. u contruct fur the design, supply and instaltution of CCTV Video Sitoruge Solution’ for
MTRC ut Two IFC;

3. 2 2-year conteact far the supply, instullation, commissioning und muiateasnce of the
Toshiba Business Telephone System and .nnl;uncl products for various HKSAR government
dup.mmen H

4. the provision of MEC PABX uud Peripheral Products ta Televixiva Bwudcns(nvL\mned 5

and

New TV City in Tsceng Kwun O;
s LAN systems to TownGas Telecom.

5. the provision of residentinl wire!

After experiencing continued Jdowaturn during puast years, the performsnce of the Technicul and
Muinicnance Services Division huas stubilized with the econamy on general recovery, The
Division will continue to sirive to deliver high quality service 10 the customers und tightly
control its uperuting gxpenses.

B ' (Page 1)
{ "
N A .
. CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
N —_—]
HINRERERAA
{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code; 508)
) ANNOUNCEMENT -OF RESULTS c ..
. i FOR THE YEAR ENDED . 3IST MARCH, 2005 ’ ' . . . .

RESULTS (b) By geographical segments ’ .
The Directors of .Chevalier iTech Hnldlng: lencd (“the Complny ) snnounce that the audited Turnover,
consolidated reaults of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the, Grcup") for the year ended 3lst h"l,ggg NK?

-March, 2005, logelher with- the comp-nuve nguren for the previous year. pre summarized as = 000
follows: . B ;‘lon_u Kony 607,118 516,689

. 2008 2004 hailand 69,028 124,176
. . Notes HEK$'000 HKS"000 Otherx _lose2 29718
Turnover 1 687,108 670,583 687,108 - 670,983
Cost of sales (626,233) (597.626) —_— e
Gross profit 60,875 72,957 2. Profit before taxation .

" Other operating income’ 1,744 8.924 ' 2008 2004
Distribution costs: .- (52,884) (52,642) Hks 000 HK 3000
Administrative expenses (4,595) (3,757 Peofit before tuxaution is arrived ar after churging:

o Other opernting.expenses (210) 1.979) Cost of. stock soid 424,282

- . . - Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 4,681
Profit from oyeranuns 4,930 23,502 “Operating lease payments in respect of renting
Rinance costs [¢3] 22 of premises 8,457
Share of result of an ‘associate (826) 7 Statf couts, including di ' ! d

.Gein on discontinued .operations - 1,016

" Profit beforé taxation 2 4,103 26420 O Teestlon 2008 2008
Taxation - 3 (339) {1.557) HX$'000 HKS' 000
Profit ‘for the year 3,764 22,863 Currem taxution
Dividend 3,427 8,568 Company, and subsldisries 228 748
Earnings per share 4 Qversens : “o 430

Lasic 2.20 ccals 13.34 cents Deferred tanation

T A s - - ” ) Hony Keng™ (299)

". : Dildied . N/A S NJA At — . O e
Notes: R
1. Tarhover _
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"The Investment market was volatile during the year, which led to & decline in both turnover
and profit of the Group's investment segment, To minimize risk and maximize return, the
Group's investment porifolio is weighed more heavily on high-rate structured deposits and
debentures, The Group wlll continue to handle its cash on hand with prudence.

_.SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Pacific Coffee (Hpldings) Limited (“Pacific Coffee”) a1 2 total consideration of HK$205
million of which HK$60 million waa financed by bank borrowings. Pacific Coffee is engaged
;in the business of trading and retailing of coffee products, and operation of coffee shops.
. The acquisition was completed on 20th May, 2005 and a circular dated 3Gth June, 2003
was sent to the shareholders of the Company. Pacific Coffee now operates 39 retail outlets
in Hong Kong and 6 in Singapore, all of which scll premium roasted whole bean coffees,
specislity coffeecs and coffee-related hardware and supplies. Pacific Coffec also sells its
i branded prod to wholesele and provides coffee services to corporate customers,
. Besides enabling the Group to capture the fast growing and lucrative specialty coffee business
‘in Hong Kong, the PRC and ncighbouring countrics, the Board sees the acquisition as another
- eritical move of the Group to diversify ita businesses and broaden its income stream,

- PROSPECTS

, Global economic growth is expected to moderate in 2005 after the strong surge in 2004
"I the US, rising interest rates are expected to slow down economic growth. The recent
«tises in oil price may also have negative impact on global economic growth. In the Mainland,
.the ‘macroeconomic control measures implemented by the government to curb excessive
'invesiment are expected to cap economic growth rate, While the Hong Kong econamy clearly
“saw an upturn in 2004, the economy remains extremely sensitive to outside factors, In view
of the above, the Group will continue to focus on boosting its profitability. It will work
-on the tog line as well as coatinue to improve its cost md expense structure and overall
business efficiency.

The Group is at a turning point in 2005 after yecars of internal efforts to slreumline its
businesses and the recent entry into the lifestyle food and beverage market. While the IT
- business is improving, the lstcst scquisition of Pacific Coffee has opened the Group to
lucrative new business opportunities. The fast growing specialty coffee business is expected
to fuel the Group's recurrent incoms as It starts to gancrate turnover and profit contribution
to the Group in the coming financial year.

Going forward, the Group sees abundant opportunities for its existing core businesses and
,.its new food and beverage business in Hong Kong, the PRC and other neighbouring countries.
. Staffed by well-experienced professionals and armed with top-notch expertise, the Group is

well position to seize those opportunities. We will continue to do our best in meeting our

‘evolve into a more customer- and market-driven company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

As at 31st March, 2005, the Group‘s total net asszet amounted to HK$381 million (2004:
HK$384 million), a decrease of HK$3 million or 1% when compared with 2004. At the
balance aheet date, the Group's bank and other borrowings amounted to HK3$121,000 (2004:
- HK$151,000). Cash and deposit at bank amounted to HK$90 m‘illion (2004: HK$64 milfion),

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

"The Group employed approximately 570 full time sataff globaily as at 31st March, 2005,
Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK3$79 million for the year ended 31st March,
2005. The remuneration policies are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job,
markel trend, company performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits include
bonuses awarded on a discretionary bssis, medical schemes, retirement schemes and
employees’ share option scheme.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which was cstablished pursuant to the requirements of Rules 3.21 of
the Rules Governing the meg of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("tho Stock Exchange”) (“fhe Listing Rules™), comprises Messrs Shinichi YONEHARA, WU

the Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company, met twice in the year Durmg the
g5, the Audit C i has reviewed with the the

interim and annual reports of the Group, the accounting principles and practices adopted by

the Group, the auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters including the review

of the audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2005.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed “securities of the Company by the
Company or any of itz subsidisries during the ycnr

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE .

In the opinioa of the Directors, the Company has complied throughout the year ended 3ist
March, 2005 with the guidelines for the Code of Best Practice as sct oul in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, which was still in force prior to 13t January, 2005 apd remains
applicable to the year under review, save and except that all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company are not appointed for any specific terms but they are subje:l
to retitement by totation and re-election at the annual general mecting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
The Company has sdopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“the Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All directors
of the Company confirmed, following specific eaquiry by the Company, that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code. for the ycar ended 3lkst
March, 2005,
PUBLICATION OF FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S WEBSITE
All the financial aad other related information of the Company required by paragraphs 45(1)
to 45(3) of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules in force prior to 31st March, 2004, which
remains applicable to the results announcement in respsct of the accounting period
commencing before 1st July, 2004 under the transitional arrangements, ‘will be published on
the Stock Exchange's website at hitp://www.hkex.com.hk in due course.
APPRECIATION '
On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this cppor(umly to thank the manugemem
and all staff for their concert:d effort, commitment and professionalism.

By Order of the Board

CHOW Yel Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13th July, 2005

As at the date of this announcement, the Executive Directors of the Company are Dr Chow
Yet Ching (Chairman}, Messrs Fung Pak Kwan (Managing Direccor}, Kuok Hoi Sang, Kan
Ka Hon, Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Ms Lily Chow. The Independent Non-Executive Directors
of the Company are Messrs Shinichi Yonehora, Wu King Cheong ond Kwong Man Sing.
website: Anp:/iwww.chevalier-itech.com

* For identlfication purpoze only

Subsequent to the balence sheet date, the Group acquired the entire issued share capital of -

_customers’ nceds, drive profitability growth and create sharcholders” value. Qur goal is to -

- King Cheong end KWONG Man Sing (who was appointed on 30th Scptember, 2004}, all,

e m
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The Stock Exchan,
In retiance upon the whole ar any part of the contents of thit announcemenr.

<

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
REMZRERFRLF

(Incorporated in Bermudo with limited iiability)

(Stock code: 508)
MAJOR TRANSACTION

e of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the conients of this

i1, makes no ar to ity accuracy or

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION

PACIFIC COFFEE (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
o ‘Financial Adviser
ANGLO CHINESE

CORPORATE FINAHGE. LIMITED

and expressiy di

CHEVALIER INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
RIEREmMERLT"

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited hablllvy)

any tiability whais -for any loss h arising from or

(Stack code: 025)

comlo:nuon of HKS$203 million. Details of the Agreement are set out below,
The A

slder of CiTL, én»u. and i1

for CiTL. CTL has n:cewed I written npproval in respect of the A
d in the o

L as &

mmhofdcn of CITHL as aoon as praclicable.
Trading in the shares of CiTL on the Stock Exchange wos sus,

Aequmuon To the best of (he knowledge, information and belief of the respective Boards of
tnterests in CIHL or CiTL. According!y, under Rute (4.4 of the Listing Rules, a %cncml meeting of CiTL for its shareholders 10 approve the Acquisition will not be held. A circular containing further details uf the Agrumcm and financial

m omuuon mmxng lo Pacific ColTee and CiTL will be despatched 1o the shareholders ol
di ion for CIHL under the Listing Rules. A circular containing further information in respect of the Agreement and other information as required under the Listing Rules will be despaiched (0 the

CiTL as soon as practicable,

On 6th April, 2005, CIL entered into the Agreement with the Vendors and Lhe Associated Parties 10 acquire from them their respective interests in Pacific CofTee, which in aggregate repruenu the entire izsued share caplial of P-clac Coﬂae  for s cash

uisition from CIHL., which at the date of this ennouncement holds nppmllml:ly 50.77% of the Issued share capital of CiTl.. No
CiTL, therefore no shareholder of CiTL would be nqulmd to absiain from voling et a general meeung of Ci
TLnnd CIHL and having made all reasonable enquiry, none of the Vendors, the A

nded with effect from 9:30 a.m. on Monday, 4th April, 2005 at the request of CiTL pending the release of this announcement. Applicstion has been made to the Stock Exchange for
resumption of treding in the shares of CITL with ¢ffect from 9:30 a.m. on Monday, 11th April, 2005.

to approve the

iated Parties and the W

AGREEMENT DATED 6TH APRIL, 2005

Parties to the Agreement

Various corporations and individuals.

To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of
respective Boards of CiTL and CIHL and having made

all reasonable enquiry, the Vendors (and in cases where

the Vendor is a corpornuon their ulumne ben:fcml

owners) and Lhe A Parties are

CIHL and CiTL or eay of their respective connectcd

persons, and are not connected persons of CIHL or CiTL.

Vendors and
Associated Parties:

2005 and ending 3 1st March, 2006 (and if such date is not a Business Day, then
the following Business Day).

Completion

Completion of the Agreement shall take place on 20th May, 2005 or any other
date a3 may be agreed between Mr. Neir, on behalf of the Vendors, and CIL.
BACKGROUND TO AND REASONS FOR THE ACQUISITION

‘The Board was approached by Anglo Chinese Corporate Finance, Limited. the
financial adviser to the Vendors in Janasey 2005 regarding an invesiment
opportunity in Pecific Coffee. After carrying out financial and legal due diligence
on the businesses of Pacific CofTee, the CiTL Group commenced negotiations
with the Vendors in acquiring the entire issucd share capital of Pacific Coffee,
;‘&SAgreemenl was reached between Lhe parties to the Agreement on 6th April,

The businesses of the CiTL Group have been deteriorating which is reflected by
the dxm«mshmg tumpver of the CiTL Group in the recent years. The Boards of

CiTL and CIHL consider (he Acquisition not only engbles the CiTL Group
to capture lhe fast growing and lucrative specially coffes business in Hong KmF
the PRC and neighbouring countries, I{ also enables the CiTL Group to diversify

‘Warrantor: Empress Dowager Limited.
To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of
the respective Boards of CiTL and CIHL and having made
8l) reasonable enquiry, the Warrantos and its ultimate
beneficial owner are independent of CIHL and CiTL or
any of theit respective connected persons, and are not
connecled persons of CIHL or CiTL.,

Purchaser: CIL, & wholly-owned subsidiary of CiTL

~ Guarsntor: CiTU 10 the per of the obligations of

CIL under the Agreement

Asset to be scquired

400,337 ordinary shares of Pacific CofTee, being the entire issued share capital of
Pacific Coflee,

Pacific Coffee’s first cutlet was established in 1993. Pacific CofTee now operaies
39 retail outlets in Hong Kong and five in Singapore. Pacific Coffec sells high
quality, premium roasted whole bean coffees, specinity coffees and cold
beverages. baked goods and pasiries along with coffee-refated hardware and
supplies. Pacific Con’ce also sells its branded uroducu 1o wholesale accounts and
provides coffee scrvices lo cls, clubs
and large corporsations. In addition, Pacific Coffce Gmup is also =ng=ged in the
wholesale of selected coffec beans in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Singapore.

--For the yeat ended 31s1 March, 2003, Pacific Coffce recorded on audited

consolidated profit before and afier lax of o rexnmamly HK$6.2 million and
34.3 million respectively. For the year mde: 31st March. 2004, Pacific Colfee
recorded an audited consolidated rrorl before and after tax of approximately
HKS$11.9 million and HK$9.4 miliion respectively. EBITDA of Pacific Coifee
for 2003 and 2004 was zpproximately HK$17.6 million and HK$24.0 million
respectively,
As at 31t March, 2004, the audited consolidated net asset value of Pacific Coffee
‘was approximately HK$70.3 million.
Considerstion
The consideration for the Acquisition was HKSZOS million in cash, which wes
ngreed between CIL and the Vendors after arm’s length negotistions. The
consideration represents spproximately 22 times of the 2004 sudited consolidated
net profit of Pacific Coffee and 8.5 times of the 2004 EBITDA of Pacific Coffee.
The Boards of both CiTL and CIHL sre of the view that the consideration for the
Acquisition is reasonsble after taking into sccount the growth rate of Pacific
Coffee in the past years, the growth potential in demand for specialty coffee in
Hong Kong, the soustheast Asia region and the PRC market, as well a3 the goodwill
of Pacific Coffee.
The entire consideration will be financed by the interns! resources of the CiTL
Group only. Given the current cashflow position. the cash and the cash equivalent
securities of the CiTL Group, the Board of CiTL considers the Acquisition will
not have a significant edverse impact on the CITL Group's liquidity, -
Upon campletion of the Acquisition, CIL will pay to the Vendars HK$ 164 million
incash, Q% of the HK$41 million of
the consideration, being the Escrow Amount, will be deposued with the Escrow
Agent. The release of such Excrow Ampunt will be subject 1o the terms of the
Escrow Agreement to be entered between the Vendors, the Warrantor, the
Purchaser and the Escrow Agent on completion of the Agreement, In the event of
any breach of warmanties given by the Warrantor (which relate (o various aspects
of the Pecific Coffee Group, including bul not limited to its asscts and tiabilities,
investments, accounts and records), the liability of the Warroator shail be an
amount equal to the diminution in value of the Sale Shares thereby caused and
such amount will be deducted from the Escrow Amount. In the event of any
dispute between the Warrantor and CIL as to the amount of the diminution, it will
be resolved by final judgment of the courts of the relevant jurisdiction,
1t is furthet provided under the wmnuu that in the event lhe #udited consolidnted
net profit before tax and y items) of Pacific
Coffee for the cleven months ended ism Febmry, 2003 is three percent lower
than that set out in the consolidsted management accounts of Pacific Coffee
provided to CIL, CIL will be compensated with an amount equal to ¢ight times of
the shortfall, which will be scitled by the Warrantor by deducting the same amount
from Tow Amount,
Claims under (he warranties are limited to the Escrow Amount.
50% of lha Bscrow Amounl together with interest accrued thereon, lees any
will be released to the Warrantor on the
ister of (i) 28 days from the dule of issuance of the audited consolidated financial
terments of the Pecific CofTee Group for the eleven months ended 28th February,
2008 (and if such date is not & Business Day, then (he following Business Day)
and (i) two months after the date of completion of the Agreement, provided that
such date is no later than 30th November, 2005. The balance of any remnining
sum of the Escrow Amount will be relcased to the Warrantor on the earlier of (i)
31st July, 2006 and (ii) the date of issuance of the audited financial statement of
Pacific Coffee and {ts then subsidiaries for the period commencing from |8t April,

-that such pi

its and broaden its income stream.
The respective Boards of CiTL and CIHL consider the tenns of the Acquisition,
including the consideration, arc fair and reasonable and the Acquisition is
beneficial to CiTL and CIHL end their respective shareholders.
OTHER INFORMATION
CiTL is an invesiment holding company which, through its subsidiaries, is
prmnpally cngaged in the trading and servicing ol computer and businesa
mAchme: pmvluon of network sysiem and solution services, provision of
end services and | in ities. Under the
Agreement, Mr, Neir, who is the chief executive officer and a director of Pacific
Coffee. has undenaken 1o use his best endeavours {0 ensure (hat the employment
contracts of certain key ecmployces of Pacific Coffee shall include a provision
requiring six months notice of termination. The management of CiTL believes
isiun niitigules any, postiblc to the ion.of P.,cjfc
Coffce due to the change of contrul. in the event of ainy 1esignation of key
employees, CiTL would have sulficient time to recruit appropriate and compelent
replacement,

CIHL is an investment hoiding company which, through its subsi s, is
principally engaged in the busm:n uchonslruumn and engmeenng‘ insurance
and investment, property in nt, hotel and information
technology. )

LISTING RULES IMPLICATIONS

Under the Listing Rules, the A a major tr for CiTL
and would nommally require shareholders” nppmvll 8t a general meeting of CiTL.,
According to Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules, in the event that 8 written
shareholders’ epproval has been obtained from a shareholder who holds more than
50% in nominal value of the securilizx giving the right to attend and vote.at the
general meeling (o approve the transaction, the general meeting for sharcholders
to approve the transaction is not required, CiTL has received a written approval
in respect of the Acquisition from CIHL, which at the date of this announcement
holds approximsieiy 50.77% of the Issucd share capita] of CiTL, No x)unbolder
of CiTL. including CIHL and its in the cept
25 3 sharcholder of GITL, therelore no sharcholder of CITL waold be n:quxred to
abstain from voting at a general meeting of CiTL (o approve the Acquisition. To
the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the respective Boards of CiTL
2nd CIHL and having made all reasanable enquiry, none of the Vendors, the
Associated Parties and the Wacranior or (heir respective associstes have any
interests in CIHL or CiTL. Accordingly, under Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules, a
general meeting of CiTL for its sharcholders to anmve the Acquisition will not
be held. A circular containing further details of the Agreement and financial
information on Pacific Coffee and CiTL will be despatched to the shareholders of
CiTL as soon s pncucnblm

The isi tr l'nr CIHL under the Listing
Rules. A circular runher f and other
information as fequired under the Listing Rules Wlll be despatched to the
shareholders of CIHL 29 5000 &s possible.

SUSPENSION AND RESUMPTION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of CiTL on the Stock Exchange was suspended with efTect
(rom $:30 a.m. on Monday, dth Arril, 2005 at the request of CiTL pending the
release of this announcement. Application has been made 1o 1he Stock Exchange
for resumption of trading in the shares of CITL with effect from 9:30 a.m. on

+“Sale Shares™

& day (other than a Seturday or Sunday} on which banks
are open for ordinary banking business in Hong Kong
C.hc\rllier iTech Limited, a wholly—c:lwned subsidiary of

“Business Day”
“olLr

“CIHL" Chevnher [nternationat Holdings Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with lirited Jiability
and the shares of which are listed on the mein board of
the Stock Exchange

Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited, an excmpted
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and the shares of which ase lisied on the main board of
the Stock Exchange

CiTL and i1s subsidiarics < .
the carnings before interest, tas, depmchxlon and
amortization. i
Messts, ‘RobErsons the tegal’s ‘advisers to ClL on the
Acquisition

the amount of HK$41,000,000 to be depomed with the
Escrow Agent on completion of he Agreeme:

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Reglon of the
PRC

“ciTL

“CIiTL Oroup™
“EBITDA"

“Escrow Agenmt™ "1
“Escrow Amoung™
“Hong Kong"

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securitics on the

“Listing Rules”
Stock Exchange

“Macau” the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC

“Mr. Neir” Mrt. Thomas Nelr, the founder, wha is also one of the
Vendors and 8 director of Pecific

“PRC" The People’s Republic of China, euludlng Hong Kong,

Macau and Taiwan for the purpose of this announcement
-Pacific. Caffee_(Holdings) Limited, s company
incorporated in (he British n Islands with limited™
liability on 25th July, 1995

Pacific Colfes and its subsidiaries

400,317 ordinary shares of Pacific Coffee, being the
entire issued ghare capitnl of Pecific Coffee
“Stock Exchange” The Swock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
“Vendors™ Corporllmnr Albreda Investment Lirm!ed which i is an
- holding vys Citicos
Finance Corporunon. wnlch is a holding company
engaging in internstional financing and merchant
banking investment activities; Emperor Phoenix.
Limited, which is an investment holding com ny and
its sole asset is its interest in Pacific Coffee: High Class
Associates Limited, which is an investmenl holding
company and its sole asset is its interest in Pacific Coffee
Indjviduals: Michael and Patricia Berchtold; Kutherine
and Timothy Connor: Roy and Kizp Delbyck; Karen and
David Handmeker: Mary Jenneskens: John and Lesley
McKay: Carolyn and Brendan Miles; Christine Joanne
Neir; David and Suzsnne Neir: Ja el and Catherine
Neir; Paul Neir; Robert Louis Neir; Thomas Michael
Neir; Thomas Michael Neir and Sally Onen; Philip
Richerd Oakden; James Brandon Schiueter and Laura
Wilbraham: Mark and Christine Silverstein; Lavrie
Smiley and George Benncti: Anthony and Anus
Wilkinson; Daisy S. Yao and Deniss Y, Tong
Empress Doweger Limited, 8 company incorporuted in
the Brilish Virgm Istands with limited Imb:lny on drd
March, 2005, which has provided certain wasranties 1o
CIL in respect of the businesses of the Pacific Coffee
Group pursuant to the Agreement
Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong:

per cent

*Pacific Coffec™ .

“Pacific Coffze Group™

“Warrantor™

“HKS"
g

By Order of the Board of By Order of the Board of

Monday, 11th April, 2005. Chevalier iTech Chevaller lnternational
TERMS USED IN THIS ANNOUNCEMENT Holdings Limited Holdings Limited
“Acquisition™ the proposed acquisition of the entire issued share capital Chow Yei Ching Chow Vel Ching

of Pacific Coffee Chairman Chairman and Managing Director
“Agreement” a share purchase agresment dated 6th April, 2005 entered  Hong Kong, 8th April, 2005

into belwzerr: CIL, CiTL, the Vendors, the A . forid only

the Wi :
. Perties and the Warmantor o As at the date of this announcement, the Board of CITL comprises Dr. Chow Yei
associaie has the meaning scribed to it under the Listing Rules Ching. Mr. Fung Pak Kwan, Mr. Kuok Hoi Sang. Mr. Kan Ka Hon and Miss Lily

“Associnted Parties™
Invesiment Limited {a Vendor) under the Agreement, and
Mr. Robert Naylor, the holder of aptions over shares in
Pacific Coffee, all such options will be cancelled upon
completion of the Acquisition as agreed under the
Agreement

the board of directors

Mr. Roger King, as warrantor in respect of Albreda

Chow as executive directors and Mr. Shinichi Yonehara, Mr. Wu King Chwng
and Mr. Kwong Man Sing as independent non-executive directors.

As ar the date of this announcement, the Board of CIHL comprises Dr. Chow Yei
Ching, Messrs. Kuok Hoi Sang, Fung Pak Kwan, Tam Kwok Wing, Kan Ka Hon,
Chow Vee Taung, Oscar and Ho Chung Leung as executive directors, and Mr.
Wong Wang Far, Andrew, Dr. Chow Ming Kutn, Joseph end Mr. Li Kwok Beem,
John as independent non-executive direciors.
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any liability

Stock Exchange ajﬂmg Kong lel:ed fabu no respoastbility for the contents of this makes no o its
- for an; ariring from or in rellance upon the whole or any parv of the mlenl: of this M»oummnl

or and exp

‘@
CHEVALIER ITECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
R+ 2RAERALF

. . (Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
. (Stock Code: 508)

ANNOUNCEMENT
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

of the Group in respect of the Former Tenancy Agreements. Oa the same date,

On 30th September, 2004, CIHL Group entered into

COAHL, lwho“);owned mbszdlnry of the Company,
Winfield

penom onhe Compnuy under the Listing Rulu.

The Tru:

with certain
, entered into the New Tenancy Agreements as tenant, with Winfield Devels
Peak Gain nnd Onenlnl Sharp are wholly-owned subsidiaries orClHL a substantial ahmholder of the Compmy and therefore connected

J of the Company under the Listing Rules. Since the total annual rental payable by COAHL under the
Transactions represents less than 25% ,of the apphcable pereentage ratios of the Company md is less lh:n HKSIO 000,000, the Transactions will be subject to the mfpomn g and
pted from th P i

opment, Peak Gain and Oriental Sharp as landlords

hold approvnl um erC)npterl‘Ac the Listing

announcemens requirements under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules and are
Rules.

FORMER TENANCY AGREEMENTS

In 1996, the Group entered (nto three Former Tenancy Agreements with CIHL Group. The
three Former Tenancy Agreements included one between the Company and Winfield
Development for & tota! gross floor srea of approximately 1,200 sq. . at Chevalier
Warehouse Building, ane between the Company and Union Pearl for a total gross floor
arcs of approximately 23,000 sq. A, at Chevalier Commercial Ceatre, and another one
between COAHL and Peak Gain orn total gross floor arez of approximately 78,000 sq. fi.
at Chevalier Engineering Service Centre.

The above Former Tenancy A

of
the Company under the meg Rutes then in force. The Cmnpnny applied to and was
with the

Transactions will be subject to the
14A.34 of the Listing Rules and are d from the i
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The | Compuy will oomply
with the reporting and announcement requirements set out in Rules 14A.37 to 14A.40 and
Rules-14A.45 10 14A.47 of the Listing Rules.

GENERAL

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the trading and :em:mg of
and business of network syster and solution services,
prvvmou of technical and maintenance services and investment in securities.

u.ndcr Rule
b

granted by the Stock Exc!nnge weivers from strict
under the Listing Rules then in force in respect of the Fomm"ltnam:y Agreemcma

The tenancy agreement between the Compa.ny and Winfield Development was terminated
at the end of 2000.

After reviewing the Group's requirement for office space, the Board resolved to reduce the
office space that the Group currently occupies. The Board negotiated with and has reached
en agreement with CIHL Group to early terminate the Former Tenancy Agreements with
Union Pearl and Peak Gain with effect from 30th September, 2004, before the expiry date
of the Former Tenancy Agreements on 31st Decembcr 2004, and at the same time 10 enter
into the New Tenancy Agreements.

NEW TERANCY AGREEMENTS

©On 30th September, 2004, COAHL, a wholly-cwned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the Warchouse Tenancy Agreement, the Service Centre Tenancy Agreement and the
Commercial Centre Tenancy Agreement as tenant with Winfield Development, Pesk Gain
and Oriental Sharp 83 Lendlords respectively.

1. Warehouss Teasncy Agreeatent

Date of agreement 30th September, 2004

Landiord Winfield Development

Tenant COAHL

Premises Portion of 3rd Floor of Chevalier Warchouse Building, 1 On
Fuk Street, On Lok Tsuen, Fanling, New Territories, Hong
Kong

Term ™wo years ccmmcncmg from 1st October, 2004 to 30zh

. September, 2006 (both daies inclusive)
+ Annual rental HX3$501,704 (HKS50,142 psyable monthly)

2, Service Centre Tenanty Agreement

Date of agrecment ¢ 30th September, 2004
Landlord :  Peak Gain
Tenant : COAHL
Premises Portion of 6th Floor, 7th Floor, Bth Floor, $th Floor end
10th Floor of Chevalier Bngineering Service Centre, 21
Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Term . two years commencing from tst October, 2004 to JOm
September, 2006 (both dates inclusive)
Annyal remal HK$3,571,352 (HK$297,616 payable monthly)
3. Commercial Centre Tenancy Agreement
Date of agreement 30th September, 2004
Landlord . Oriental Sharp
Tenant COAHL
Premises Portion of 19th Floor end 22nd Floor of Chevalier
. ' Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay,
: Kowloon, Hong Kong
Term two years commencing from 18t October, 2004 to 30th
. September, 2006 dates inclusive)
Anoua) rental HKS135,: 480 (HKS$11,290 psyable monthly)

BACKGROUND TO AND REASONS FOR THE TRANSACTIONS

‘The Group has been renting certain prcmuu from the CIHL Group pursuant to the
Former Tenancy Agreements. Aa discussed above, the Board resolved to reduce the offlice

the Group currently occupies and entered into terminstion agreement with CIHL
mp to early terminats the Former Tenancy Agreements and at the same time, to enter
into the New Teaancy Agreements.

‘The prernises, subject to the Warehouse Tenancy Agreement, the Service Centre Tenancy
Agreement and the Commercial Centre Tenancy Agreement, will be used by the Group for
office or warchouse purposes (as the case may be). The reatal under cach of the
Warehouse Tenancy Agreement, the Service Ceatre Tenancy Agreement and the
Commercial Centre Tenancy Agreement were agreed after arm length negotiations
between each of the current landlords and COAHL with reference to valuation reports on
market rental on esch of the prermses conducted by Knight Frank Hong Kong Limited, a
firm of i ] sy 8, in ber 2004, The Directors (including
the independent non-executive Directors) are of the opinion that each of the Warehouse
Tenancy Agreement, the Service Centre Tenancy Agreement and the Commercial Centre
Tenency Agroement i3 made on normal commercial terma in the ordinary and usual course
orbuuneu of the Group end is in the best interest of the Company and its sharcholders as
2 whole and that its terms and conditions ere fair und reasonable to the Company.

The aggregate rental payable by COAHL to CIHL Group will not exceed HKS$2, 154,288
for the six moanths ending 31et March, 2005, HK$4,308,576 for the year ending 3ist
March, 2006 and HKS$2,154,288 for the six months ending 30th September, 2006.

Winfield Development, Peak Cain and Oriental Sharp are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
CIHL, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and mfm connseted persons of the
Company under the Listing Rules, The T

continuing connected transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. Since the
total annual rentat payeble by COAHL under the Transactions represcnts less than 25% of

* the applicable percentage ratios of the Company and is less than HK$10,000,000, the

The pnnclpll busineas of Winfield Development, Peak Gain and Oricotal Shurp is
purpose.

Profes: for rental income

TZRMS USED IN THIS ANNOUNCEMENT

“Board” the board of Directors

“CTHL" Chevalier Internstional Holdings Limitod, an exemptod
wmpmy corporated in Bermuds with limited lisbitity
wm\ its sha:es !mcd on l.he mnm board of the Stock
aypmxlmauly 50 77% of the issued share capital of

Company

“CIHL Groun” CIHL and its subsidiaries (excluding the Company and
its subsidiarics for the purpose of this announcement)

“COAHL" Chevalier (OA) Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with lmmed tinbility,
which is wholly owned Compan;

“Commercial Centre Tenancy the tenancy agree.nent dated JOIh September,

Agreement"” 2004 entered into between COAHL and Orientat Sharp

“Company™ Chevalier iTech Holdmgs Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with Limited Liability
and the s!umcfwhnch are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange

“connected person”™ has the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules

“Directors” X the directors of the Company

“Former Tenancy Agresments”  the teoancy agreements entored into between the

Group end cach of Union Pearl and Peak Gain oa It
January, 2003, each for a term of two up to 3]st
December, 2004, in respect of certain premises at
Chevallier Commercial Centre and Chevalier
Enginecting Service Centre respectively

the Company end its subsidiaries .

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
Peoples Republic of China

The Ruley Governing the Listing of Securities on the

“Group™
“Hong Kong”

“Listing Rules”

. Stock Exchange
“New Tenancy A " the h, Tenancy A the Service Centre
Tenancy Agreemem and the Commercial Cenlre

. Tenancy Agreemen!
“Oriental Sharp” Oriental Sharp Limited, a compaay incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, which is wholly

. owned by CIHL .
“Peak Gain* Peak Gain Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with Jimited liability, which is wholly owaed by
CIHL

“Service Cemn Tenancy the tenancy egreement dated 30th September,
Agreemen 2004 ent into between Ci L and Poak Oain -

“The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
has the mumns ascribed l.on in the Listing Rula
lated under the Wareh

“Stock Exch.mge
“substantiel shareholder”
“Transactions™ the

Tenancy Agreement, the Service Centre Tenmcy .

Agreement and the Commercial Centre Tenancy
Agreement
Union Pearl D

“Union Pear!™ Limite

which is wholly owped by CTH.

“Warchouse Tenancy Agreement” the tenancy agrecment dated 30th September, 2004
entered into between Winfield Development and

“Winfield Development” Winfield Development Limited, 8 compeny incorporatad
in Hong Keng with limited liability, which is swholly
awned by CLHL

“HK$" . Hong Kong doller, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

o per cent .

By Order of the Board of
Chevaller iTech Holdings Limited
Chow Yel Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 3rd November, 2004

*  for idendficarion prrpose oniy . - .

As at the date of this the Board Dr. Chow Yei Ching. Mr. Fung

Pak Kwan, Mr. Kuok Hol Sang, Mr. Kan Kd Ho:and Miss Lily Chow a3 executive
Directors and Mr. Shinichi Yonehara, Mr. Wu King Cheong and Mr. Kwong Man Sing as
independent non-executive Directors.

p! s
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited llnbnlny, 3
L
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- caded 3

CHEVALIER xTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED , SRR
ENEERABRDA o

RESULT!
The Dlreclon of Chevalier iTech Hold.(nz- lened {“the CumpAny")
interim results of
the Com&uny and fts subsidiaries (“the Gmug ) for the six months

th Seplember, 2004 logelh:r with the comparative figures
_for the corresponding period in 2003 as follows:
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT,
. For the six monrhs rndtd Jmh September, 2004 .

! “Unaudited

. Slx months ended
L . 3nth Szpumb:zr,

: 2

. .- Notes HES$'000 HKXS$'000
Turnover fns . 27 319,887 341,747
Cost of sales ' * v (286,482) (312,851)
Gross profit . 33,385 ' 28,896
" Other operating income . . 609 " 5,852
Diseribution costs | (24, 098) (24,244
Administrative expenm ( . 73) (2,062)
Oiher nel operating expeases 172) 392
Profit from operations 3 3.351 . - 8,834
Ficance costs - o
Share of rsesult of an associste 24) . {233)
Gsin on di,eominucd operstions - 577
Profit before ta: ation 3,327 9,169
Taxation 4

ln(enm dtvidend - 3
Esrpings per shace N P T
. Basic . R , 1.46 cents  4.90 cents
Diluted B ' N/A N/A
- —t
“loterim dividend per share 1_cent . 2 cents

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the six nlanl)u ended 301k September, 2|
B sn..mun accoun i paticien
cosdeased Torerts fisancial eistemeats bave been propared la
ard Praciiee No. 25
“loterion F:n-nclnl Reportlng® tencs by the Hoag Konl Inatitute of
Certified Public Accouatsats,
The ucvnn(lnl g:llelel ldopled in lbeu coodeased intecim ﬂnlﬂcul
statements bave prepared on a basizconsittentgwith the principal
accovating policies ar staied ln the suditdd (inencial sutemeats for the
year eaded 3lac March, g g
2, s«.-m iolermation | -’ s . .
At anslysis of the Group's turgover pod contribution 12 o eratiog profiv
{lom) by bnllleu segmeets and tursover by ..w.pmc.f segments are
a1 follow .
(a) By brstacss segments
For the 3ix menths rnded 3016 suu-hr. 2004

Iretman
s secorities
Wes
" Touad
L7 I )
TUovE: .
Toul e B piNE ) e
Eat-pepmest eakes (s, 1)
Blend e ] van
ULT‘I "
Sepnen st 1an san
Istcrest bacome 56
Gaallocrisd corpormn -
apencs . a1y
h-'u from -pmhu L. . ) 1351
hm o '
et 2] - - - {14
prote detors tsaetion . 21
Thiatios . . ) . . (1]
ot for i pertot 2180
For the six months eaded 300k Seprember, 2003
Catoney aerstion Ohnvatimel spritos
Tewrd T
L N i
- o e - s Carrd arvirw
) Yuies et adhme 8 Ao e
i o fum i dom  tndeg /\ stalleg’ Tunt
H oo "nw u nyes 2o i e
gy LoBO RN Bo . oW mup
g T T RV 0] & o
teend i 40  _nx_am n 0
wun
e wh LI T Ha un - . o
ey T
an

_(Incorporated In' Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stack code: 508)

INTERIM RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

e FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER 2004

C e

TN e

" The perf. feal and services divisian

Note: later-se imem sales are charged at prlcu by
with refecence to market prices,

T () By geographienl segments

Turnove
Six menths ecded
. 301h September,

2004 003

HKX$'000 HX$'000

Hong Xong 268,880 271 077

The Mainland* 1 537

Thailand 35,590 59 069
Others 2,211

315,867 341,747

3. Peoflt from cpsrsiions
Six monfbs ended
30(h September,

the

was :hghlly nmcled by keen compennon snd the decrensing prices
of producu snd their Jife cycles.

Steady income revenue stream,
af lhe Orcup in the extremely voluule m-rkel during the riod
under review, However, it was affected by the unrealize ]
-nnng from marking the value of the invesiment ca haod as at
30th September 2004 to market, Currently, the Grouvp's investment
portfolic intluded foreign bonds and high yield structured notes
and will continue 10 enhance the yield of lis porifolio prudeatly.

PROSPECTS

The Hong Kong economy is likely to expand furiher in the fourth
quarter compared with a year sgo, followiog a 7.2% growth in
the third quarier. Investment, which bas been io the doldrums sloce
the Asian crilu‘ is siso fecordiog sirong growth. lovestmeats in
machinery, equipment and computer software continuved to record

2004 2 double-digit growih. The weak US dollsr has also helped lo drive
HKsg00 uxs'oo0 e oe of Tunds int Hong Kong, boosting investment further,
Profli frem eperulonl 15 areived st but this will also have an adverse effect on the cosl due 1o the
afier ch’ import Inflatjion. On the other hand, 1be Malnland economy hms
D:"“:h"l‘x““ e perty. plant nd nea1? 180.808  y(ayed strong s trade aurges. nmwhh:undm; the implementation
Fasin property. pl 2139 2323 of § ic costrol the Chinese goverament to
Opulltn' I|u| payments “in e curd _ov mic lcllvlllel.
Sl it o el 4T B0 Looking forward, riding on the fuveursble yet comporiive busl
will i to develop business
emoluments =“__& ="_ﬂ prudeatly and adoyl mlugem <ost coatrol measures to maintsin the,
4 Taxstion Group's competitive edges. The Group will continue to sirengihen
.., §lx months ended Jis ties with customers and provide high qualily, services, striving
v M ;guox: September, o bener performance in the second half of the flnancial yen.
T o8 HX$000 Hksoco  FINANCIAL REVIEW °
C“m“ tatation N R Az 1 3uth September, 2004, (he Troup’s 10tal ot assety lmounl:d
“Company nd subsidiaties xh: lppr%lomnc'}y Hé(s 20 m-ll;nn ( K:JBOb mllhlon s al 318t
Hang K. £00 3 arch, roup's bank and other borrowing) amounted
overens : 11 61 1o HK3237.000 (HKS131°000 a0 ai 31st Marcn, 3004) whila baak
Deterred taxatt belances and cash equivalents amounicd to HK$93 million (HK$124. -
Coment et 2 6 million as at 31st Match, 2004) and there are-00.pet borrowings
Auributable to change in tax rate - s for lhe two periods.
EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

825 ° 158

d at the

profits eate
sicd asicssable profils less svailable tax relief

Provision far Hong Ko
2003: 17
of each individual company compririag the

g on the
for Inuu brought forwar

onvlllun for ovarseas tuxation Is calculsted based on the rates applicable
to the relevant local legistation on the extimated aascisable profits.
5. Interim dividend
Slx mootbs ended
.. ¢ .A20th September,
1 L2004 ]
| HKS"000 HXS'000

Interim dividend
3 71,255,870 shares
ars

.02 p
171.355 87isbares 1,714 3427

6. Barnlogs per share
Basic caroings per share s :llcu!ll:d based on the profit for the perlod
of HKSI,SO;,D&O (200): HX$8,401,000) sné on the wzighled aversge
number of 171,335,879 (2003: 171,348 171) ordinary atares issuéd duriag
the perlod,
Diluted earnlngs sharc is not shown a1 there is no dilutive potentist
grdisary shate ouistanding ihraughiout ihe perlods cadsd 30 September
2004 and JOth Seplemdar 2003

1. Comparative n. .
Certnin comparslive figures have been reclassificd la order to conform
with the presensation of current period,

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Bosrd of Direclors hay resolved to declare an interim dividend

of HK1 ceot (2003: HK2 cenis) per share for the six mobths ended

30th September, 2004 payable on Friday, 141h Janusry, 2005 to

shareholders whose names mppesar oo the Register of Members or

the Company on Friday, Tth Jsnuary, 2005,

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Comgnny will be closed from
Monday, 3rd January, 2005 to Friday, 7th Japuary, 2005, both days
inclusive, during which permd no traosfer of shares will be
cifected. In. order to quslify for the above interim dividend, all

P

. transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates

must be lodged with .the Company's Branch Share Regisirars in
Hong Kong. Standard Registrars Limited of G/F., Bank of East
Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Rosd, Wanchel, Hong
Kong for registration aot later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 31st
December, 2004,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the six months ended 30m ,September, 2004, both the

" Listing Ru

As at 30th September, 2004, the Group employed spproximately
370 fuil time staff gilobally. Total siafl costs smounted to
spproximately HK$38 million 1or the p:nod under review. The

ticies are y on the basis of the
nature of job, merket lrena compnny performance and individual
performance. Other & o include bonuses atded on B
discretionary basis, medlc-l schemes, retirement schemes aod
employees’ share option scheme.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

. The Audit. Commitiee, -which wllvunbllshodwpununl fo the
. requirements of the Rules Goverviag the Listieg of Securlties oa

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”)
(*the Listing Rules™), met twice in the year. Mombers of thé Audit
Commiltes include all the ladependent Non-Bxecutive Ditectors of
the. Compaay, numelé Messes Shinichi YONEHARA, WU Klng
Cheong mad KWO Man Siag (who was appointed on 3Dt
September, 2004}, During the period, tbe Audit Committes has
reviewed with the Managemeol the accouotiog principles sod
practices. adopted by the Oroup sad discussed suditing, ipteroal
controls and financis) reporting matlers including the review of
unsudited interim flnancial statemeans.
PURCHASE, SALE OR RRDBMP‘HON or LlSTED SBCUR!TIES
There was no 1le of p liste of
the Company by the Company or 4oy of it subsidiariss during
the six mosihs ended 30th Scpl:mber. 2
CODE OF BEST PRACTIC
ln the opinion of the Diucwn. the Compsoy bas complied with
hs guidelines for the Code of Best Practico 83 set out in Appendix
I4 of the Lisling Rules throughout the pericd, save and except
that ull independeot non-eaeculive directors of the Company are
g0t appointed for any specific terms but they are subject 1o

.\ retirement by rotrtion 1ad se-election st the mnnual ,:narnl meeling

of the Compeny in accordance with the Bye-laws of ihe Company.
MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Sccurities
Transactions by Directors of Listed lssuers (“the Model Code™) ne
set oul in Appeadix 10 of the Listing Rules. All directors of the
Company con;umed following specific enguiry by the Company,
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the six months ended 30th Scpiember, 2004,
PUBLICATION OF FURTHER INFORMATION ON THR STOCK
EXCHANGE’S WEBSI
An the financial and olher related jnformatlon of the Company
required b(y paragraphs 46(1) to 46(6) o( Ag&udh 16 of the
es in force prior lo 3lat Marc which remains
0 the resul ement in rupeu of the, pecopntin

Group's lurnover and operating profi it P
with the ¢ period lagt yes he performance or lhe compufer
dlvision waxiencoursging despite (hn difficull market altuation.
However, Ihe major sebeck bn the
in investmentiincome due to the
in fixed income,

During the gulod under review, the computer division's turnaver
increased robustly with the launch of stylish and competitive PC
gmducu. such st the Toshiba Sateliiic M30 Series, the Toshiba
ortege A10D and R130 Series. Such performance, however, was

d loss on the

- offset by the decline in profit of the business mechine division

due to keen campetition.
The network solutions and telecommunication systems division

ov:ull result’ was the decline”

anno
period commencing before I|| Ju!y. "2004 " under - the lnnlllleru
srrangements, will be published on the Slock Excnm;e s website
at hiipi//www.hkex.com.hk ' in due couru .
APPRECIATION
The Group still faces the chnllenge from keen market compcllllon
On behali of the Board, | would like (o take this opportunity Lo
lhnnk the M.nngamenl and sil staff for their concerted effort,

i lism in i the Group to survive

and p
the dlmcu(l pcnod
By Order of the Board

CHOW Yel Chlag
Cheirman

It

achieved an encouraging turnaround and reporied profit when  Hong Kong, 10th December, 2004

:h- w‘,,, compared with the loss in the last corresponding period. The large- Ay or the date of this oracuncement, the Executive Directors of
Dut o wxh @ e (9 . N . . Qi scale coniracts in progress included the installation of a PABX the Company are Dr Chow Yel Ching, Messrs Fung Pak Kwan,
[y ey — - - . . - m m system for the Four Seatons Hoicl at the Hong Kong Station Kuok Hoi Sang, Kan Ka Hon and M3 Lily Chow. The Independent
—_— of Tashiba B stem for Non-Executive Directors of the Company are Metsrs Shinichi
o - e .u HKSAR government deplrlm:nll. sovision of Maintenance  Yunehara, Wu King Cheong and Kwong Man Sing.
™ Servica Support (o all the NEC PABX Telephone System ins i .
ol el - . ™ at American International Assurance (A[A) offices in Hong website: hitpiliwww.chevalier-liech.com
pun i} - . P
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
EtNMEERERAA

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock code: 508)

FORM OF PROXY
FOR THE 2005 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

of

being the registered holder(s) of shares
of HK$0.5 each in the capital of CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED (“the Company”), hereby appoint

of

s

or failing him, the Chairman of the Meeting as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, § Wang Hoi Road,
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong on Friday, 9th September, 2005 at 10:00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof on the
undermentioned resolutions as indicated and if no such indication is given as my/our proxy thinks fit:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS FOR AGAINST

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements and the Reports
of the Directors and Auditors for the year ended 31st March 2005.

2. To declare a final dividend.

3(a)(i). | To re-elect Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar as Director.

3(a)(ii). [ To re-elect Mr KWONG Man Sing as Director.

3(b). To authorize the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of the
Directors.

4. To re-appoint Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as Auditors of the
Company and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares of the Company.

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares of the
Company.

7. To extend the general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and deal
with additional shares of the Company.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

8. To amend the Bye-laws of the Company.

Signature: Date:

Notes:

(1) Full name(s) and address must be inserted in BLOCK CAPITALS.

(2) Please insert the number of shares registered in your name(s). If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed
to relate to all the shares in the capital of the Company registered in your name(s).

(3) Please indicate with an “X” in the relevant box how you wish the proxy 1o vote on your behalf. If this form of proxy is
returned without any indication, you will be deemed to have authorized your proxy to vote or abstain from voting as he
thinks fit.

(4) Any alteration made to this form of proxy must be initialled.

(5) Any member entitled 1o attend and vote is entitled to appoint proxy(ies) to attend instead of him and to vote on a poll. A
proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(6) If the shareholder is a corporation, this form of proxy must be executed under its common seal or under the hand of an
officer or attorney duly authorized on its behalf.

(7) In the case of joint shareholders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, will be accepted
10 the exclusion of the votes of the other joint shareholder(s) and for this purpose seniority will be determined by the order
in which the names stand in the Register of Members.

(8) To be valid, this form of proxy together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed must

be completed and deposited at the Company's Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, STANDARD REGISTRARS LIMITED
at G/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before
the time fixed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting thereof.

*  For tdentification purpose only



THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should consult your stockbroker or
other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited, you should at once hand this
circular and the enclosed proxy form to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank, stockbroker or other agents through
whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
REtMEZERBR2F

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 508)

Executive Directors Registered Office
CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman) Canon’s Court,

FUNG Pak Kwan (Managing Director) 22 Victoria Street,
KUOK Hoi Sang Hamilton, HM 12,
KAN Ka Hon Bermuda

CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

Lily CHOW Principal Place of Business

22nd Floor,

Chevalier Commercial Centre,
8 Wang Hoi Road,

Kowloon Bay,

Hong Kong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Shinichi YONEHARA

WU King Cheong

KWONG Man Sing

29th July, 2005 ,
To the Shareholders

Dear Sit/Madam, ‘ 1
PROPOSALS RELATING TO T |
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS ST TG
GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE SHARES AND SR
REPURCHASE SHARES AND Ty

AMENDMENTS TO THE BYE-LAWS
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING !

INTRODUCTION

The Directors wish to seek the approval of shareholders to re-elect the retiring directors, to obtain general mandates

to the Directors of the Company to issue and repurchase shares of HK$0.5 each in the share capital of the Company (“the
Share(s)”), and to amend the Bye-laws of the Company.

This circular is to provide the shareholders with all the information reasonably necessary to enable them to make
an informed decision on whether to vote for or against the resolutions as mentioned herein and which, inter alia, will be
dealt with at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang
Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong on Friday, 9th September, 2005 at 10:00 a.m. (“the 2005 Annual General Meeting™).

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTCRS

In accordance with Bye-law 95 and 112 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Messrs Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and
Kwong Man Sing, who were appointed by the Board as the Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Director
*  For identification purpose only
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on 18th April, 2005 and 30th September, 2004 respectively, will hold office until the 2005 Annual General Meeting and
shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting. Ordinary Resolutions will therefore be proposed at the 2005 Annual
General Meeting to re-elect Mr Chow and Mr Kwong as Directors of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 13.74 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) (*the Listing
Rules™), the details of such Directors are set out below:~

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar, Director, aged 31 joined Chevalier Group in 2000. He is responsible for the pipe
technologies business, building services business and investments of the Chevalier Group. Mr Chow holds a degree in
Master of Engineering from the University of Oxford, U.K.. He is currently the Chairman of the Industry and Technology
Committee of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce, a council member of the Hong Kong Productivity Council
and the Internet Professionals Association, an Advisory council of The Better Hong Kong Foundation, a registered manager
of Yan Chai Hospital No.2 Secondary School and an Honorary Chairman of the Taiwan Business Association (HK) Ltd..
He is the son of Dr Chow Yei Ching, Chairman of the Company and is also the brother of Ms Lily Chow, a Director of the
Company. Mr Chow is an Executive Director of Chevalier International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 025) (“CIHL”), being a substantial shareholder interested in approximately 50.77% of the issued
share capital of the Company. As at 25th July, 2005, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this circular
(“the Latest Practicable Date”), CIHL is beneficially owned as to 51.79% by his father, Dr Chow Yei Ching. Mr Chow is a
Director of certain companies of the Group and certain companies controlled by a substantial shareholder of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“the
SFO”). Save as disclosed above and as at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr Chow does not have any relationship with any
other directors, senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective
associates and he does not have any other interests in the shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed under
Part XV of the SFO. There is neither any service contract between the Company and Mr Chow nor any specified term for
the length or proposed length of service with the Company in respect of directorship. Mr Chow is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. The director’s fee payable to Mr Chow will be fixed
by the Board subject to shareholders” approval in annual general meeting and the emolument of director is determined by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions. There is no other matter of significance concerning the re-election of Director that need to
be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Mr KWONG Man Sing, aged 59, was appointed to the Board in 2004. He is a professional accountant and also
holds a Bachelor degree of Applied Science in Electrical Engineering of University of Toronto. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants.
Mr Kwong was with PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants for more than 32 years, of which he was an
audit partner since 1980 until he retired from the firm on 30th June, 2002. Mr Kwong has not held any directorship in any
other listed public company in the last three years. Save as disclosed above and as at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr
Kwong does not hold any position in any member of the Group nor does he have any relationship with any other directors,
senior management, substantial shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company or their respective associates. He
does not have any interests in the shares of the Company which are required to be disclosed under Part XV of the SFO.
There is neither any service contract between the Company and Mr Kwong nor any specified term for the length or
proposed length of service with the Company in respect of the directorship. Mr Kwong is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws. The director’s fee payable to Mr Kwong will be fixed by the
Board subject to shareholders’ approval in annual general meeting and the emolument of director is determined by
reference to the Company’s performance and profitability, as well as remuneration benchmark in the industry and the
prevailing market conditions. There is no other matter of significance concerning the re-election of Director that need to
be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

SHARE ISSUE MANDATE

Resolution 5 to be proposed at the 2005 Annual General Meeting (“Resolution 57) relates to the granting of a
general mandate which will empower the Directors of the Company to issue new Shares not exceeding 20 per cent of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of passing of the resolution (including
making and granting offers, agreements and options which would or might require Shares to be issued, allotted or disposed
of) during the period up to the next annual general meeting of the Company, or at the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, or on revocation of Resolution § by an
ordinary resolution of the shareholders at general meeting, whichever is the earliest.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were 171,355,871 Shares in issue. Therefore, subject to the passing of the
proposed Resolution 5 at the 2005 Annual General Meeting and on the assumption that no additional Shares will be issued
and that prior to the date of the proposed resolution, no Share will be repurchased by the Company, the Company would be
allowed under the mandate to issue a maximum of 34,271,174 Shares.

REPURCHASE OF SHARES

The Company is allowed by its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended) to repurchase its own Shares. Its Bye-laws also allow it to provide financial assistance for the
purpose of purchasing its own Shares.

Resolution 6 to be proposed at the 2005 Annual General Meeting (“Resolution 67) relates to the granting of a
general mandate to the Directors of the'Company to repurchase, on the Stock Exchange, the Shares up to a maximum of 10
per cent of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the proposed resolution (“the Repurchase Proposal™).




The Shares to be purchased by the Company are fully paid-up. As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were
171,355,871 Shares in issue. Therefore, subject to the passing of the proposed Resolution 6 at the 2005 Annual General
Meeting and on the assumption that no additional Shares will be issued and that prior to the date of the proposed
resolution, no Share will be repurchased by the Company, the Company would be allowed under the mandate to repurchase
a maximum of 17,135,587 Shares.

The Directors of the Company believe that the Repurchase Proposal is in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. Trading conditions on the Stock Exchange have sometimes been volatile in recent years and there have been
occasions when the Shares were trading at a substantial discount to their underlying net asset value. Repurchases of the
Shares may enhance the Company’s net asset value per Share and earnings per Share. In these circumstances, the ability of
the Company to repurchase the Shares can be beneficial to those shareholders who retain their investment in the Company
since their percentage interest in the assets of the Company would increase in proportion to the number of the Shares
repurchased by the Company. Furthermore, exercise of the mandate granted under the Repurchase Proposal by the Directors
of the Company would increase the trading volume of the Shares on the Stock Exchange.

The Directors of the Company do not expect there to be any material adverse impact on the working capital or
gearing position of the Company, as compared with the position disclosed in the latest audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2005, as a result of repurchases made under the Repurchase Proposal even if the
mandate is exercised in full. However, no purchase would be made in circumstances that would have a material adverse
impact on the working capital or gearing position of the Company (as compared with the position disclosed in the latest
published audited financial statements) unless the Directors of the Company consider that such purchases would be in the
best interests of the Company notwithstanding such material adverse impact.

FUNDING OF REPURCHASES

In repurchasing the Shares, the Company may only apply funds legally available for such purpose in accordance
with its Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) which provide
that the Shares may be repurchased out of the profits of the Company and/or out of the proceeds of a fresh issue of the
Shares made for this purpose and/or even out of the capital paid up on the repurchased Shares.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

The Directors of the Company have undertaken to the Stock Exchange to exercise the power of the Company to
make repurchases pursuant to the proposed Resolution 6 in accordance with the Listing Rules and all applicable laws.

None of the Directors of the Company nor, to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable enquiries,
any of their associates presently intend to sell the Shares to the Company under the Repurchase Proposal in the event that
the Repurchase Proposal is approved by the shareholders at the 2005 Annual General Meeting.

Meanwhile, the Company has not been notified by any connected persons of the Company that they have a present
intention to sell any Shares, or that they have undertaken not to sell any Shares held by them to the Company, in the event
that the Repurchase Proposal is approved by the shareholders at the 2005 Annual General Meeting.

If, on the exercise of the powers granted under the Repurchase Proposal, a shareholder’s proportionate interest in
the voting rights of the Company increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purpose of rule 32 of the
Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (“the Takeovers Code”). As a result, a shareholder or a group of shareholders
acting in concert (within the meaning under the Takeovers Code), depending on the level of such increase, may obtain or
consolidate control of the Company and thereby obliged to make a mandatory general offer in accordance with rule 26 of
the Takeovers Code.

As at the Latest Practicable Date and insofar the Directors of the Company are aware of, the substantial shareholders
of the Company are as follows:—
% of Issued Share Capital

if power is

exercised in full to

Name of Substantial Shareholder Number of Shares held at present repurchase Shares

CHOW Yei Ching 93,810,787 (Notes ! and 3) 54.75% 60.83%

MIYAKAWA Michiko 93,810,787 (Notes 2 and 3) 54.75% 60.83%
Chevalier International Holdings

Limited (“CIHL”) 86,994,933 (Note 3) 50.77% 56.41%

Chevalier (HK) Limited (“CHK”) 13,471,200 (Note 3) 7.86% 8.74%

Firstland Company Limited (“Firstland”™) 13,471,200 (Note 3) 7.86% 8.74%




Notes:

1. Under the SFO, these Shares were held by Dr Chow Yei Ching as (i) personal interests of 6,815,854, (ii) corporate
interest of 86,994,933 in which Dr Chow was deemed to be interested.

2. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow, was deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of 93,810,787 Shares held by Dr Chow.

3. These Shares were held as interest of controlled corporation through Firstland, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CHK. CHK is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CIHL. CIHL is a company incorporated in Bermuda. Under Part XV of the SFO, CHK, CIHL, Dr Chow and his spouse
were deemed to be interested in 13,471,200 Shares.

In the event that the Directors of the Company shall exercise in full such powers under the Repurchase Proposal
and on the basis that there is no other change in the then issued share capital of the Company, the interest of the above
substantial shareholders would be increased to approximately the percentage shown in the last column above. The Directors
of the Company consider that such increase would not give rise to an obligation to make a mandatory offer under rule 26
of the Takeovers Code. The number of Shares held by the public would not tall below 25% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have been traded on the Stock Exchange during each of the
previous twelve months prior to the Latest Practicable Date were as follows:~

Highest Lowest

HK$ HKS$

July 2004 0.92 0.80
August 2004 0.92 0.84
September 2004 0.92 0.84
October 2004 0.89 0.83
November 2004 1.05 0.90
December 2004 1.10 1.00
January 2005 1.05 0.95
February 2005 1.03 0.97
March 2005 1.72 1.03
April 2005 2.30 1.25
May 2005 1.65 1.40
June 2005 1.63 1.43
July 2005 (up to Latest Practicable Date) 1.70 1.52

REPURCHASE OF SHARES MADE BY THE COMPANY

The Company has not purchased any of its Shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) in the six months
preceding the date of this circular.

EXTENSION OF SHARE ISSUE MANDATE

Resolution 7 to be proposed at the 2005 Annual General Meeting (“Resolution 77) relates to the extension of the 20
per cent general mandate to be granted. Subject to the passing at the 2005 Annual General Meeting of Resolution 5,
Resolution 6 and Resolution 7, the Directors of the Company will be given a general mandate to add all those number of
Shares which may from time to time be purchased under the Repurchase Proposal to the 20 per cent general mandate, thus,
the limit of the share issue mandate would include, in addition to the 20 per cent limit as aforesaid, the number of Shares
repurchased under the Repurchase Proposal.

AMENDMENTS TO THE BYE-LAWS

The Stock Exchange has amended the Listing Rules concerning corporate governance practices by, among others,
issuing the Code on Corporate Governance Practices which, subject to certain transitional arrangements, came into effect
on 1Ist January, 2005. To bring the constitution of the Company in alignment with the provisions in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices, the Directors propose to amend the Bye-laws to the extent permitted by Bermuda laws so that:

(1) every Director shall retire from office no later than the third annual general meeting of the Company since
the last re-election or appointment of such Director; and

(i) Directors holding office as the Chairman or Managing Director are also subject to retirement by rotation.

At the 2005 Annual General Meeting, the Directors wish to seek the approval from the Shareholders of the above
amendments to the Bye-laws. The full text of the proposed amendments to the Bye-laws is set out in the proposed
Resolution 8 in the notice of the 2005 Annual General Meeting.




2005 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The notice convening the 2005 Annual General Meeting is set out on pages 6 to 8 of this circular.

A form of proxy for use at the 2005 Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2005 are being sent to the
shareholders together with this circular. Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting, please complete the accompanying
form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return the same to the Company’s Branch Share
Registrars in Hong Kong, Standard Registrars Limited of G/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not later than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting. Completion and delivery of the form of proxy will not preclude you from
attending and voting at the 2005 Annual General Meeting if you so wish.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH SHAREHOILDERS MAY DEMAND POLL

Pursuant to Bye-law 76 of the Bye-law of the Company, a resolution put to vote at a general meeting shall be
decided on a show of hands unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands) demanded by:-

(1) the chairman of the meeting; or

(i1) at least three shareholders present in person or by proxy or by representative for the time being entitled to
vote at the meeting; or

(iii)  any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy or by representative and representing not
less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders having the right to vote at the meeting;
or

(iv) any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy or by representative and holding shares in
the Company conferring a right to vote at the meeting being shares on which an aggregate sum has been
paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the shares conferring that right.

If a poll is demanded otherwise than on the election of a chairman of the meeting or on any question of adjournment,
it shall be taken in such manner at such time and place, not being more than 30 days from the date of the meeting or
adjourned meeting at which the poll was demanded, as the chairman of the meeting directs. No notice needs to be given of
a poll not taken immediately. The result of the poll shall be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll
was demanded. The demand for a poll may be withdrawn.

Unless a poll is so demanded and the demand is not withdrawn, a declaration of the result on a show of hands by
the chairman of the meeting and an entry to that effect in the minutes book shall be conclusive evidence of the voting
result.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors consider that the re-election of the retiring Directors, the Share Issue Mandate, the Repurchase
Proposal, the Extension of Share Issue Mandate and the proposal for amendments to the Bye-laws of the Company are in
the best interests of the Company and its shareholders and accordingly recommend all the shareholders to vote in favour of
the relevant resolutions to be proposed at the 2005 Annual General Meeting.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of the Board
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman




NOTICE OF 2005 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

HIMgEZERAERA2A

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company will be held
at 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong on Friday, 9th September, 2005
at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:—

As Ordinary Business

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for
the year ended 31st March, 2005.

2. To declare a final dividend.
3. To re-elect retiring Directors and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.
4. To re-appoint Auditors and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

And As Special Business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification the following resolutions
as Ordinary Resolutions:—

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

5. “THAT:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
additional shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options
which might require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) shall authorize the Directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise of such
powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Directors of the Company pursuant
to the approval in paragraph (a), otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter
defined) or (ii) the exercise of subscription rights under any share option scheme of the Company
or (iii) an issue of shares as scrip dividends pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company from time to
time, shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue as at the date of passing of this Resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly;
and

for the purposes of this Resolution and Resolution 6:—

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the
earliest of:

(1) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company;

* For identification purpose only




(i) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company
is required by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable law of Bermuda to be held;
and

(iii)  the revocation or variation of this Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders
of the Company in General Meeting.

“Rights Issue” means the allotment, issue or grant of shares pursuant to an offer (open for a period
fixed by the Directors of the Company) made to shareholders or any class thereof on the Register of
Members of the Company on a fixed record date pro rata to their then holdings of such shares or
class thereof (subject to such exclusion or other arrangements as the Directors of the Company may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements of having regard to any restrictions
or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any
stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong Kong).”

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as defined in Resolution 5(d) above) all powers of the Company to repurchase its shares in
the capital of the Company, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as
amended from time to time, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved; and

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares to be purchased by the Company pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) above during the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of this Resolution and the authority
pursuaant to paragraph (a) above shall be limited accordingly.”

“THAT the general mandate granted to the Directors of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional
shares pursuant to Ordinary Resolution set out in Resolution 5 be and is hereby extended by the addition
thereto of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company which
may be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted pursuant to such general mandate
the aggregate nominal amount of share in the capital of the Company, repurchased by the Company under
the authority granted pursuant to Ordinary Resolution set out in Resolution 6, provided that such amount
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company at the
date of this Resolution.”

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution as a special resolution of
the Company:—

SPECIAL RESOLUTION
“THAT the Bye-laws of the Company be and are hereby amended in the following manner:-
(a) By deleting the existing wording for Bye-law 95 and replacing with the following new wording:

“The Directors shall have power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board but so that the number of
Directors so appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time to time by the
shareholders in general meeting.

(b) By deleting the existing Bye-law 112.(A) in its entirety and substituting therewith a new Bye-law
112.(A) as follows:—

“112.(A) Notwithstanding any other provisions in the Bye-laws but subject to the Statutes, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Every Director shall retire from office
no later than the third annual general meeting since the last re-election or appointment
of such Director.”




(c) By adding the following wording after the existing wording for Bye-law 115:

“The Company may from time to time in general meeting by Ordinary Resolution elect any person
to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company (in the case of
filling a casual vacancy) or until the next following annual general meeting of the Company (in the
case of an addition to the Board), and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting.”

By Order of the Board
KAN Ka Hen
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 29th July, 2005

Principal Place of Business:

22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hot Road

Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong

Registered Office:
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM 12

Bermuda
Notes:
(a) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by this notice is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend

and, in the event of a poll, to vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

(b) In order to be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any), must be deposited at the
Company's Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, STANDARD REGISTRARS LIMITED of G/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour
View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting
or any adjourned meeting.

(c) The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 22nd August, 2005 to Friday, 26th August, 2005, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars in
Hong Kong, Standard Registrars Limited not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 19th August, 2005.

(d) An explanatory statement regarding the proposals of re-electing the retiring Director of the Company, granting general mandates
to issue new shares and to repurchase own shares, and making amendments to the Bye-laws of the Company will be despatched to

the members of the Company together with this notice.

(e) Information on the retiring Directors set out in page 2 to this circular which this notice forms part.
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CHEVALIER JTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

RESULTS

The Directors of Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited (“the Company”) announce the vnaudited
condensed consolidated interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for
the six months ended 30th September, 2004 together with the comparative figures for the
corresponding period in 2003 as follows:

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

Unaudited
Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003

Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Turnover 2 319,867 341,747
Cost of sales (286,482) (312,851)
Gross profit 33,385 28,896
Other operating income 609 5,852
Distribution costs (24,098) (24,244)
Administrative expenses (2,373) (2,062)
Other net operating expenses (4,172) 392
Profit from operations 3 3,351 8,834
Finance costs . - (N
Share of result of an associate 24) (235)
Gain on discontinued operations - 577
Profit before taxation 3,327 9,169
Taxation 4 (825) (768)
Profit for the period 2,502 8,401
Interim dividend _ 5 1,714 3,427
Earnings per share 6

Basic 1.46 cents 4.90 cents
Diluted N/A N/A

Interim dividend per share , 1 cent 2 cents

T —




CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 30th September, 2004

Unaudited Audited
30th September, 31st March,
2004 2004
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Investment properties 5,160 5,160
Property, plant and equipment : 7 27,575 29,042
Interest in an associate 2,198 2,239
Investments in securities 5,000 5,000
Fixed deposit 7,800 7,800
47,733 49,241
Current assets
Inventories 65,941 67,069
Properties for sale, at cost 1,135 1,135
Debtars, deposits and prepayments ) 81,050 77,075
Amount due from ultimate holding company 2,128 245
Amount due from customers for contract work 1,168 438
Tax recoverable 827 487
Investments in securities 176,432 152,769
Bank balances and cash equivalents 93,185 124,486
421,866 423,704
Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals 9 64,459 66,315
Amounts due to customers for contract work 2,378 1,322
Bills payable : 1,085 1,721
Deferred service income 13,764 18,664
Provision for taxation 1,041 633
Unsecured bank overdrafts 237 151
88,934 88,806
Net current assets 332,932 334,898
Total assets less current liabilities 380,665 384,139
Non-current liability
Deferred taxation 413 379
Minority interests 165 174
386,087 383,586
Capital and reserves
Share capital 10 85,678 85,678
Reserves 11 294,409 297,908
380,087 383,586




CHEVALIER {TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

Unaudited
Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$°000
Total equity as at 1st April 383,586 364,234
Exchange difference arising on translation of financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries (860) (2,099)
Profit for the period 2,502 8.401
Final dividend paid (5,141) -
Total equity as at 30th September 380,087 370,536




CHEVALIER ITECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

Unaudited
Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$ 000

Net cash (used in) from operating activities (28,023) 23,432
Net cash from investing activities 4,253 7,627
Net cash used in financing activities (7,024) (3,972)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (30,794) 27,087
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 124,335 148,960
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (593) 1,061
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 92,948 177,108
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash equivalents 93,185 177,108

Bank overdrafts (237) -

2,948 177,108




CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

1.

Significant accounting policies
The condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statement of
Standard Accounting Practice No. 25 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The accounting policies adopted in these condensed interim financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the principal accounting policies as stated in the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2004.

Segment information
An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to operating profit/(loss) by business segments
and turnover by geographical segments are as follows:

(a) By business segments
For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

Network
Computer solution Technical Investments
and and tele- and in securities
business communication  maintenance and
machines systems services others Total
HK$'060 HK$000 HK$'060 HK$000 HK$°000
Turnover
Total sales 231,174 48,598 34,020 25,184 338,976
Inter-segment sales (10,986) (1,343) (6,780) - (19,109)
External sales 220,188 47,255 27,240 25,184 319,867
Results
Segment results 2,198 788 n 1,328 5,031
Interest income 543
Unallocated corporate
expenses (2,223)
Profit from operations 3,351
Finance costs -
Share of results of
an associate (24) - - - (29)
Profit before taxation 3,327
Taxation (825)
Profit for the period 2,502




CHEVALIER ITECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Segment information (Continued)
(a) By business segments (Continued)

For the six months ended 30th September 2003

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Network Tele-
Computer solusion Technical  Investments communication
and and tele- and in securities General Services
business communication  maintenance and  merchandise and
machines systems services others trading retailing Total
HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK§ 060 HES000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK§000
Turnover
Totat sales 200,243 68,298 2431 78,261 1 906 310,150
Inter-segment sales (21,872 (3,665) (2,835} - () (30) (28.40%
External sales 178,371 64633 19,596 78,261 10 876 344747
Results
Segment resulis 4,144 {1,788) 1,143 4832 - - 8,331
Interest income 3
Unalfocated corporate
expenses i)
Profit from operations 8,834
Finance costs U]
Share of results of
an assaciate (233) - - - - - (233)
Gain on discontinued
operations - - - - 86 491 NI
Profil before taxation 9,169
Taxation (768)
Profit for the period 8.401
L]
Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prices determined by management with reference to

market prices.

(b) By geographical segments

Turnover
Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$'000

Hong Kong 268,850 271,077
The Mainland 12,816 7.537
Thailand 35,990 59.069
Others 2,211 4,064
319,867 341,747




CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3.  Profit from operations
Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003
HK3000 HK$’000
Profit from operations is arrived at
after charging:
Cost of stock sold 216,817 180,811
Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment 2,139 2,323
Operating lease payments in
respect of renting of premises 4,035 6,053
Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments 38,109 41,934

4 Taxation
Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK3$'000
Current taxation
Company and subsidiaries
Hong Kong 600 665
Overseas 191 34
Deferred taxation
Current period 34 64
Attributable to change in tax rate - 5
825 768

Provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits less available tax relief for losses brought forward of each individual company
comprising the Group.

Provision for overseas taxation is calculated based on the rates applicable to the relevant local
legislation on the estimated assessable profits.




CHEVALIER {TECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. Interim dividend
Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Interim dividend
HK$0.01 per share on 171,355,871 shares
(2003: HK$0.02 per share on
171,355,871shares) 1,714 3,427

6.  Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the profit for the period of HK$2,502,000 (2003:
HK$8,401,000) and on the weighted average number of 171,355,871 (2003: 171,355,871) ordinary
shares issued during the period.

Diluted earnings per share is not shown as there is no dilutive potential ordinary share outstanding
throughtout the periods ended 30th September 2004 and 30th September 2003.

7.  Property, plant and equipment
For the six months period ended 30 September, 2004, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
of HK$2,392,000 and disposed of property, plant and equipment of HK$2,503,000.

8.  Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade debtors of HK$59,213,000 (31st March,
2004: HK$56,650,000).

The ageing analysis of trade debtors is as follows:

As at As at

30th September, 31st March,

2004 2004

HK$’000 HK$’000

0-60 days 56,079 50,455
61-90 days 1,732 3,298
Over 90 days 1,402 2,897
59,213 56,650

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each of its core businesses. The
average credit period granted for trade debtors was 60 days.




CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9.  Creditors, deposits and accruals
Included in creditors, deposits and accruals are trade creditors of HK$26,116,000 (31st March, 2004:
HK$28,613,000).

The ageing analysis of trade creditors is as follows:

As at As at
30th September, 31st March,
2004 2004
HK$’000 HK$'000
0-60 days 24,412 26,739
61-90 days 511 -
Over 90 days 1,193 1,874
26,116 28,613
10. Share Capital

Number of

ordinary
shares of Nominal
HK$0.5 each value
HK3$'000
Authorised: 240,000,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid: 171,355,871 85,678

There was no change in the authorised and issued share capital during the period under review.

11. Reserves
Properties
Capital for ownuse  Exchange
Share Capital redemption revaluation fluctuation  Dividend  Retained
premivm reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000

At 15t April, 2004 223,43 18,231 14 2,764 1,036 5,141 47,288 297,908
Final dividend for 2004 paid - - - - - (5,141) - (5,144
Exchange difference on

translation of financiat

statements of overseas

subsidiaries - - - - (860 - - (860)
Profit for the period - - - - - - 2502 2,502
Dividend - - - - - 1,714 (1.714) -
AL 30th September, 2004 223434 18,231 14 2.764 176 1,714 43,076 294,409




CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. Contingent liabilities
At 30th September, 2004, the Company has contingent liabilities in respect of:

(1)  guarantees issued for banking facilities extended to its subsidiaries amounting to HK$3,064,000
(31st March, 2004: HK$3,102,000) ; and

(il) guarantees issued for performance under contracts and rendering of services of certain subsidiaries
amounting to HK$4,694,000 (31st March, 2004: HK$2,053,000).

13. Operating lease
(a) The Group as lessee
At 30th September, 2004, the Group and the Company have total future aggregate minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which
fall due as follows:

As at As at

30th September, 31st March,

2004 2004

HKS$’000 HK3°000

Within one year 1,512 3,356
In the second to fifth year inclusive 196 -
1,708 3,356

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for an average term of two years.

(b) The Group as lessor
All the investment properties were leased out for a period of two years and the Group did not
have any renewal options given to the leasees. The future minimum lease payments receivable
by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods are:

As at As at

30th September, 31st March,

2004 2004

HK$’000 HK$ 000

Within one year 264 135
in the second to fifth year inclusive 161 -
425 135

14. Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in order to conform with the presentation of
current period.




CHEVALIER ITECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

INTERIM DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors has resolved to declare an interim dividend of HK1 cent (2003: HK2
cents) per share for the six months ended 30th September, 2004 payable on Friday, 14th January,
2005 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on
Friday, 7th January, 2005.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 3rd January, 2005 to
Friday, 7th January, 2005, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the above interim dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrars
in Hong Kong, Standard Registrars Limited of G/F., Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre,
56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday,
31st December, 2004.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the six months ended 30th September, 2004, both the Group’s turnover and operating
profit decreased when compared with the same period last year. The performance of the computer
division was encouraging despite the difficult market situation. However, the major setback in
the overall result was the decline in investment income due to the unrealized loss on the
investment in fixed income.

During the period under review, the computer division’s turnover increased robustly with the
launch of stylish and competitive PC products, such as the Toshiba Satellite M30 Series, the
Toshiba Portege A100 and R150 Series. Such performance, however, was offset by the decline
in profit of the business machine division due to keen competition.

The network solutions and telecommunication systems division achieved an encouraging
turnaround and reported profit when compared with the loss in the last corresponding period.
The large-scale contracts in progress included the installation of a PABX system for the Four
Seasons Hotel at the Hong Kong Station Development, installation of Toshiba Business Telephone
System for all HKSAR government departments, provision of Maintenance Service Support to
all the NEC PABX Telephone System installed at American International Assurance (AIA)
offices in Hong Kong and Macau.

The performance of the technical and maintenance services division was slightly affected by
keen competition and the decreasing prices of products and their life cycles.

Steady investment income remained as an important revenue stream of the Group in the extremely
volatile market during the period under review. However, it was affected by the unrealized loss
arising from marking the value of the investment on hand as at 30th September 2004 to market.
Currently, the Group’s investment portfolio included foreign bonds and high yield structured
notes and will continue to enhance the yield of its portfolio prudently.




CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

PROSPECTS

The Hong Kong economy is likely to expand further in the fourth quarter compared with a year
ago, following a 7.2% growth in the third quarter. Investment, which has been in the doldrums
since the Asian crisis, is also recording strong growth. Investments in machinery, equipment
and computer software continued to record double-digit growth. The weak US dollar has also
helped to drive the inflow of funds into Hong Kong, boosting investment further, but this will
also have an adverse effect on the cost due to the import inflation. On the other hand, the
Mainland economy has stayed strong as trade surges, notwithstanding the implementation of
macroeconomic control measures by the Chinese government to curb overheated economic
activities.

Looking forward, riding on the favourable yet competitive business environment, the Management
will continue to develop business prudently and adopt stringent cost control measures to maintain
the Group’s competitive edges. The Group will continue to strengthen its ties with customers
and provide high quality services, striving to better performance in the second half of the
financial year. '

FINANCIAL REVIEW .
As at 30th September, 2004, the Group’s total net assets amounted to approximately HK$380
million (MK$384 million as at 31st March, 2004).

As at 30th September, 2004, total debt to equity ratio was 0.06% (0.04% as at 31st March,
2004) and net debt to equity ratio was nil (Nil as at 31st March, 2004), which are expressed as a
percentage of bank and other borrowings, and net borrowings respectively, over the total net
assets of HK$380 million (HK$384 million as at 31st March, 2004).

As at 30th September, 2004, the Group’s bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$237,000
(HK$151,000 as at 31st March, 2004). Bank balances and cash equivalents amounted to HK$93
million (HK$124 million as at 31st March, 2004) and there are no net borrowings for the two
periods.

Finance costs for the period was nil (HK$7,000 for the same period last year).

The Company has provided guarantees in respect of loan facilities granted to subsidiary companies
amounting to HK$3.1 million (HK$3.1 million as at 31st March, 2004).

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial management. To achieve
better risk control and minimise cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are centralised.
Cash is generally placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong or US
dollars. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently reviewed.




CHEVALIER ITECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30th September, 2004, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“the SFO”), which have been notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
pursuant to S352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company — Shares

Number of ordinary shares Approximate
Name of Personal  Corporate percentage
Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest
(%)
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 6815854  86,994,933* 93.810,787 54.75
and Interest of

controlled corporation
FUNG Pak Kwan Beneficial owner 2,580,000 - 2,580,000 1.5
KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 2,400,000 - 2,400,000 1.4
KAN Ka Hon Beneficial owner 451,200 - 451,200 0.26
Shinichi YONEHARA  Beneficial owner 600 - 600 0.00035

* Dr CHOW Yei Ching has notified the Company that under the SFO, he was deemed to be
interested in 86,994,933 shares of the Company which were held by Chevalier International
Holdings Limited ("CIHL”} as Dr Chow beneficially owned 140,669,359 shares in CIHL,
representing approximately 50.49% of the issued share capital of CIHL. Dr Chow was deemed
to be interested in these shares under the SFO and these shares were same as those shares
disclosed in the section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” below.




CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
{Continued)
(b) Interests in Associated Corporation — Shares

Number of

ordinary shares Approximate

Name of Associated Personal percentage
Directors corporation Capacity interests Total of interest
(%)

CHOW Yei Ching CIHL Beneficial owner 140,669,359 140,669,359 50.49
FUNG Pak Kwan CIHL Beneficial owner 93,479 93,479 0.03
KUOK Hoi Sang CIHL Beneficial owner 98,216 98,216 0.04
KAN Ka Hon CIHL Beneficial owner 29,040 29,040 0.01
Shinichi YONEHARA CIHL Beneficial owner 1,671 1,671 0.0006

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Schemes” below, as at 30th September, 2004, so
far as is known to the Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person has
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions of the SFQ); or are required, pursuant to S352 of the SFO, to
be recorded in the register referred to therein; or are required, pursuant to the Model Code, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme of the Company (“the CiTL Scheme™) was approved by the shareholders
of CIHL and shareholders of the Company on 20th September, 2002. Another share option
scheme of CIHL (“the CIHL Scheme”) was also approved by the shareholders of CIHL on 20th
September, 2002. The CiTL Scheme and the CIHL Scheme fully comply with Chapter 17 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“the Listing Rules™). As at
30th September, 2004, no share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
CiTL Scheme and the CIHL Scheme. There was no outstanding option under the CiTL Scheme
and the CIHL Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the period.




CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 30th September, 2004, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief executives of the
Company, the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under S336 of the SFO were as follows:

Approximate

Number of percentage

Substantial Shareholder shares held of interest
(%)

CHOW Yei Ching 93,810,787 (Notes 1 and 3) 54.75
MIYAKAWA Michiko 93,810,787 (Notes 2 and 3) 54.75
CIHL 86,994,933 (Note 3) 50.77
Chevalier (HK) Limited (“CHK™) 13,471,200 (Note 3) 7.86
Firstland Company Limited (“Firstland™) 13,471,200 (Note 3) 7.86

Notes:

1. Under the SFO, these shares were held by Dr Chow as (i) personal interests of 6,815,854, (ii)
corporate interests of 86,994,933 in which Dr Chow was deemed to be interested.

2. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr Chow, was deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of 93,810,787 shares held by Dr Chow.

3. These shares were held as interest of controlled corporation through Firstland, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CHK. CHK is a company incorporated in Hong
Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIHL. CIHL is a company incorporated in Bermuda. Under
Part XV of the SFO, CHK, CIHL, Dr Chow and his spouse were deemed to be interested in 13,471,200
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30th September, 2004, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company, no other person has interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under $336
of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Except for the share option schemes adopted by the Company and its associated corporations, at

no time during the period was the Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or

fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to

acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any

other body corporate. .
15




CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30th September, 2004, the Group employed approximately 570 full time staff globally.
Total staff costs amounted to approximately HK$38 million for the period under review. The
remuneration policies are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market trend,
company performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded
on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement schemes and employees’ share option
scheme.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which was established pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules,
met twice in the year. Members of the Audit Committee include all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company, namely Messrs Shinichi YONEHARA, WU King Cheong
and KWONG Man Sing (who was appointed on 30th September, 2004). During the period, the
Audit Committee has reviewed with the Management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters
including the review of unaudited interim financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the Company by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries during the six months ended 30th September, 2004.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the guidelines for the Code of
Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the period, save and
except that all independent non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for any
specific terms but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All
directors of the Company confirmed. following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the six months ended
30th September, 2004.

APPRECIATION

The Group still faces the challenge from keen market competition. On behalf of the Board, I
would like to take this opportunity to thank the Management and all staff for their concerted
effort, commitment and professionalism in assisting the Group to survive the difficult period.

By Order of the Board
CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 10th December, 2004

website: hitp://www.chevalier-itech.com
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should consult
your licensed securities dealer, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited, you should at once hand
this circular to the purchaser or the transferee or to the bank, licensed securities dealer through whom the sale
or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or the transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
REINERERERAA"

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock code: 508)

MAJOR TRANSACTION

Financial adviser to Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited

Z : SOMERLEY LIMITED

*  For identification only
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, the following expressions have the meanings as set out below unless the context

requires otherwise
“Acquisition”

“Agreement”

“associate”

“Associated Parties”

“Board”

“Business Day”

“CIL”

“CIHL”

“CIHL Board”

“Company”

“Completion”
“Director(s)”
“EBITDA”
“Enlarged Group”
“Escrow Agent”

“Escrow Amount”

‘6Gr0up7,
“Hong Kong”
“Listing Rules”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Macau”

“Model Code”

“Mr. Neir”

the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Pacific Coffee

a share purchase agreement dated 6th April, 2005 entered into between
CIL, the Company, the Vendors, the Associated Parties and the
Warrantor

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

Mr. Roger King, as warrantor in respect of Albreda Investment Limited
(a Vendor) under the Agreement, and Mr. Robert Naylor, the holder
of options over shares in Pacific Coffee, all such options will be
cancelled upon Completion as agreed under the Agreement

board of Directors

a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which banks are open for
ordinary banking business in Hong Kong

Chevalier iTech Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
Chevalier International Holdings Limited, an exempt company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, whose shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange

board of directors of CTHL

Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited, an exempt company incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability, whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange

completion of the Agreement, which took place on 20th May, 2005
director(s) of the Company

the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization

the Group together with the Pacific Coffee Group on Completion

Messrs. Robertsons, the legal advisers to CIL on the Acquisition

the amount of HK$41,000,000 deposited with the Escrow Agent on
Completion

the Company and its subsidiaries
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

27th June, 2005, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing
of this circular for ascertaining certain information contained herein

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC

The Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies

Mr. Thomas Neir, the founder, who is also one of the Vendors and a
director of Pacific Coffee before Completion




DEFINITIONS

“pRC”

“Pacific Coffee”

“Pacific Coffee Group”

“Sale Shares”

“Share(s)”
“Shareholder(s)”
“Stock Exchange”
“SFO”

“Vendors™

“Warrantor”

“HK$”

LAY

The People’s Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan for the purpose of this circular

Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 25th July, 1995

Pacific Coffee and its subsidiaries

400,337 ordinary shares of Pacific Coffee, being the entire issued
share capital of Pacific Coffee

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.5 each in the share capital of the Company
holder(s) of the Share(s)
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

Corporations: Albreda Investment Limited, which is an investment
holding company; Citicorp International Finance Corporation, which
is 2 holding company engaging in international financing and merchant
banking investment activities; Emperor Phoenix Limited, which is an
investment holding company and its sole asset is its interest in Pacific
Coffee; High Class Associates Limited, which is an investment holding
company and its sole asset is its interest in Pacific Coffee

Individuals: Michael and Patricia Berchtold; Katherine and Timothy
Connor; Roy and Kipp Delbyck; Karen and David Handmaker; Mary
Jenneskens; John and Lesley McKay; Carolyn and Brendan Miles;
Christine Joanne Neir; David and Suzanne Neir; James and Catherine
Neir; Paul Neir; Robert Louis Neir; Thomas Michael Neir; Thomas
Michael Neir and Sally Otten; Philip Richard Oakden; James Brandon
Schlueter and Laura Lee Wilbraham; Mark and Christine Silverstein;
Laurie Smiley and George Bennett, Anthony and Anna Wilkinson;
Daisy S. Yao and Denisa Y. Tong

Empress Dowager Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability on 3rd March, 2005, which has
provided certain warranties to CIL in respect of the businesses of the
Pacific Coffee Group pursuant to the Agreement

Hong Kong doliars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

per cent
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CHEVALIER iTECH HOLDINGS LIMITED
HIRRERBERRE

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock code: 508)

Executive Directors: Registered office:

CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman) Canon’s Court

FUNG Pak Kwan (Managing Director) 22 Victoria Street

KUOK Hoi Sang Hamilton, HM 12

KAN Ka Hon Bermuda

CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

CHOW Lily Head office and principal place of business:
22nd Floor,

Independent non-executive Directors: Chevalier Commercial Centre,

YONEHARA Shinichi 8 Wang Hoi Road,

WU King Cheong Kowloon Bay,

KWONG Man Sing Hong Kong

30th June, 2005
To the Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,

MAJOR TRANSACTION

INTRODUCTION

On 11th April, 2005, the Board and CIHL Board jointly announced that, CIL, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company had entered into the Agreement with, among other parties, the Vendors in relation to an
acquisition of their respective interests in Pacific Coffee, which in aggregate represents the entire issued share
capital of Pacific Coffee for a cash consideration of HK$205 million.

The Acquisition constitutes a major transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules. The purpose
of this circular is to provide you with information on the Agreement and Pacific Coffee Group and other
information as required under the Listing Rules.

AGREEMENT DATED 6TH APRIL, 2605

Parties to the Agreement

Vendors and Associated Parties: Various corporations and individuals.
To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the Board
and having made all reasonable enquiry, the Vendors (and in cases
where the Vendor is a corporation, their ultimate beneficial owners)

and the Associated Parties are independent of the Company or any of
its connected persons, and are not connected persons of the Company.

Warrantor: Empress Dowager Limited.
To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the Board
and having made all reasonable enquiry, the Warrantor and its ultimate

beneficial owner are independent of the Company and or any of its
connected persons, and are not connected persons of the Company

*  For identification only




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

Purchaser: CIL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Guarantor: the Company, to guarantee the performance of the obligations of CIL
under the Agreement

Asset to be acquired
400,337 ordinary shares of Pacific Coffee, being the entire issued share capital of Pacific Coffee.

Pacific Coffee’s first outlet was established in 1993. Pacific Coffee now operates 39 retail outlets in
Hong Kong and 6 in Singapore. Pacific Coffee sells high quality, premium roasted whole bean coffees,
specialty coffees and cold beverages, baked goods and pastries along with coffee-related hardware and supplies.
Pacific Coffee also sells its branded products to wholesale accounts and provides coffee services to corporate
customers including hotels, restaurants, clubs and large corporations. In addition, Pacific Coffee Group is also
engaged in the wholesale of selected coffee beans in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Singapore.

For the year ended 31st March, 2003, Pacific Coffee recorded an audited consolidated profit before and
after tax of approximately HK$6.2 million and HK$4.4 million respectively. For the year ended 31st March,
2004, Pacific Coffee recorded an audited consolidated profit before and after tax of approximately HK$11.9
million and HK$9.4 million respectively. The audited consolidated profit before and after tax of Pacific Coffee
for the year ended 31st March, 2005 were approximately HK$25.8 million and HK$21.0 million respectively.
EBITDA of Pacific Coffee for 2003, 2004 and 2005 was approximately HK$17.4 million, HK$23.9 million
and HK$37.2 million respectively.

As at 31st March, 20035, the audited consolidated net asset value of Pacific Coffee was approximately
HK$85.9 million.

Consideration

The consideration for the Acquisition was HK$205 million in cash, which was agreed between CIL and
the Vendors after arm’s length negotiations. The consideration represents approximately 9.8 times of the 2005
audited consolidated net profit of Pacific Coffee and 5.5 times of the 2005 EBITDA of Pacific Coffee. The
Board is of the view that the consideration for the Acquisition is reasonable after taking into account the
growth rate of Pacific Coffee in the past years, the growth potential in demand for specialty coffee in Hong
Kong, the southeast Asia region and the PRC market, as well as the goodwill of Pacific Coffee.

The consideration for the Acquisition was financed by approximately HK$145 million cash reserve of
the Group and HK$60 million by bank borrowings. Given the current cashflow position, the cash and the cash
equivalent securities of the Group and the level of borrowings, the Board considers the Acquisition will not
have a significant adverse impact on the Group’s liquidity nor its gearing ratio.

Upon Completion, CIL paid to the Vendors HK$164 million in cash, representing 80% of the
consideration. The rematning HK$41 million of the consideration, being the Escrow Amount, was deposited
with the Escrow Agent. The release of such Escrow Amount is subject to the terms of an escrow agreement (as
detailed in the paragraphs below) entered into among the Vendors, the Warrantor, the Purchaser and the
Escrow Agent on Completion. In the event of any breach of warranties given by the Warrantor under the
Agreement (which relate to various aspects of the Pacific Coffee Group, including but not limited to its assets
and liabilities, investments, accounts and records), the liability of the Warrantor shall be an amount equal to
the diminution in value of the Sale Shares thereby caused and such amount will be deducted from the Escrow
Amount and refunded to CIL. In the event of any dispute between the Warrantor and CIL as to the amount of
the diminution, it will be resolved by final judgment of the courts of the relevant jurisdiction.

It is further provided under the warranties that in the event the audited consolidated net profit before
tax (excluding exceptional and extraordinary items) of Pacific Coffee for the eleven months ended 28th
February, 2005 is three percent lower than that set out in the consolidated management accounts of Pacific
Coffee provided to CIL, CIL will be compensated with an amount equal to eight times of the shortfall, which
will be settled by the Warrantor by deducting the same amount from the Escrow Amount. The Company
confirms that no compensation has been claimed under this provision as at the Latest Practicable Date.

50% of the Escrow Amount, together with interest accrued thereon, less any deduction or compensation
as aforesaid will be released to the Warrantor on the later of (i) 28 days from the date of issuance of the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Pacific Coffee Group for the eleven months ended 28th
February, 2005 (and if such date is not a Business Day, then the following Business Day); and (ii) two months
after the date of Completion, provided that such date is no later than 30th November, 2005. The remaining
balance of the Escrow Amount will be released to the Warrantor on the earlier of (i) 31st July, 2006 and (ii)
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the date of issuance of the audited financial statement of Pacific Coffee and its then subsidiaries for the period
commencing from Ist April, 2005 and ending 31st March, 2006 (and if such date is not a Business Day, then
the following Business Day). The payment obligation of CIL shall be fulfilled upon releasing of the Escrow
Amount to the Warrantor by the Escrow Agent in accordance with the escrow agreement. The Company
confirms that the Escrow Amount has not yet been released to the Vendors as at the Latest Practicable Date.

Claims under the warranties given by the Warrantor under the Agreement are limited to the Escrow
Amount. The Warrantor shall have no liability in respect of any claim under the warranties if written notice of
any claim is given by CIL to the Warrantor after the earlier of (i) 31st July, 2006 and (ii) the date of issuance
of the audited financial statements of Pacific Coffee made up as at 31st March, 2006 (and if such date is not a
Business Day, then the next following Business Day).

Completion
Completion took place on 20th May, 2005.
OTHER INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company which, through its subsidiaries, is principally engaged
in the trading and servicing of computer and business machines, provision of network system and solution
services, provision of technical and maintenance services and investment in securities.

Prior to Completion, the employment contracts of certain key employees of Pacific Coffee were amended
to include a new provision requiring six months notice of termination. The Board believes that such provision
mitigates any possible disruption to the operation of Pacific Coffee due to the change of control. In the event
of any resignation of key employees, the Company would have sufficient time to recruit appropriate and
competent replacement.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ON PACIFIC COFFEE GROUP

The Pacific Coffee Group’s capital structure as of 31st March, 2005 consisted of shareholders’ equity of
US$11,009,000 (approximately HK$85,870,000). As at 31st March, 2004, the shareholders’ equity was
US$8,917,000 (approximately HK$69,553,000). As at 31st March, 2003, the shareholders’ equity was
US$8,489,000 (approximately HK$66,214,000). The Pacific Coffee Group has been financing its operations
through shareholders’ funds and internally generated cash flow.

The Pacific Coffee Group enjoyed a sales growth of 23.5% and 8.8% during the years ended 31st
March, 2005 to US$22,991,000 (approximately HK$179,330,000) and 31st March, 2004 to US$18,618,000
(approximately HK$145,220.000) as compared to the year ended 31st March, 2004 and 31st March, 2003
respectively. Gross profits in 2005 improved by 23.5% to US$16,999,000 (approximately HK$132,592,000)
and in 2004 increased by 11.3% to US$13,762,000 (approximately HK$107,344,000). The 2005 profit before
taxation increased by 117.8% to US$3,311,000 (approximately HK$25,826,000) while profit after taxation
increased by 123.6% to US$2,694,000 (approximately HK$21,013,000) as compared to the year ended 31st
March, 2004. Whereas, the 2004 profit before taxation increased by 91.0% to US$1,520,000 (approximately
HK$11,856,000) and the profit after taxation increased by 110.0% to US$1,205,000 (approximately
HK$9,399,000) as compared to the year ended 31st March, 2003. The growth of turnover and gross profits are
attributable to the success of business strategies of capturing market share and cost controlling.

The Pacific Coffee Group had about 240 employees as at the Latest Practicable Date. Total staff costs
for the year ended 31st March, 2005 amounted to US$4,928,000 (approximately HK$38,438,000).

The Pacific Coffee Group generated strong positive cashflow from operations of US$4,629,000
(approximately HK$36,106,000) during the year ended 31st March, 2005. The Pacific Coffee Group had no
borrowings as at 31st March, 2005.

The Pacific Coffee Group’s sales are predominantly in Hong Kong dollars, whereas part of its materials
purchases are from offshore suppliers denominated in U.S. dollars, which remained relatively stable during
each of the three years ended 31st March, 2003, 2004 and 2005.

FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE ACQUISITION

Upon Completion, Pacific Coffee became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its
results would be consolidated into the accounts of the Group.
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As set out in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group in Appendix II — “Financial information on
the Group”, the Group had unaudited net tangible asset value of approximately HK$380.1 million as at 30th
September, 2004. After the Acquisition, the unaudited pro forma net tangible asset value of the Enlarged
Group was approximately HK$261.0 million as shown in Appendix III - “Financial information of the Enlarged
Group”. The drop was mainly attributable to the goodwill arising from the Acquisition of approximately
HK$119.1 million.

Since HK$60 million bank borrowings were raised to partly finance the Acquisition, the level of bank
borrowings of the Enlarged Group would accordingly increased.

The Group recorded an audited consolidated profit after tax of approximately HK$22.9 million for the
year ended 31st March, 2004. The Pacific Coffee recorded an audited consolidated profit after tax of
approximately HK$21.0 million for the year ended 31st March, 2005. Given the profit track record of Pacific
Coffee, the Acquisition will enlarge the earning base of the Group in the future.

BACKGROUND TO AND REASONS FOR THE ACQUISITION

The Board was approached by the financial adviser to the Vendors in January 2005 regarding an
investment opportunity in Pacific Coffee. After carrying out financial and legal due diligence on the businesses
of Pacific Coffee, the Group commenced negotiations with the Vendors in acquiring the entire issued share
capital of Pacific Coffee. The Agreement was reached between the parties to the Agreement on 6th April,
2005.

The businesses of the Group have been deteriorating which is reflected in its diminishing turnover in
the recent years. The Board considers the Acquisition not only enables the Group to capture the fast growing
and lucrative specialty coffee business in Hong Kong, the PRC and neighbouring countries, it also enables the
Group to diversify its businesses and broaden its income stream.

The Board considers the terms of the Acquisition, including the consideration, are fair and reasonable
and the Acquisition is beneficial to and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

LISTING RULES IMPLICATIONS

Under the Listing Rules, the Acquisition constitutes a major transaction for the Company and would
normally require shareholders’ approval at a general meeting of the Company. According to Rule 14.44 of the
Listing Rules, in the event that a written shareholders’ approval has been obtained from a shareholder who
holds more than 50% in nominal value of the securities giving the right to attend and vote at the general
meeting to approve the transaction, the general meeting for shareholders to approve the transaction is not
required. The Company has received a written approval in respect of the Acquisition from CIHL, which as at
the Latest Practicable Date holds approximately 50.77% of the issued share capital of the Company. No
Shareholder, including CIHL and its associates, is interested in the Acquisition except as a Shareholder,
therefore no Shareholder would be required to abstain from voting at a general meeting of the Company to
approve the Acquisition. To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the Board and the CIHL
Board and having made all reasonable enquiry, none of the Vendors, the Associated Parties and the Warrantor
or their respective associates have any interests in the Company or CIHL. Accordingly, under Rule 14.44 of
the Listing Rules, a general meeting of the Shareholders to consider and, if thought fit, to approve the
Acquisition will not be held.

GENERAL

Your attention is drawn to the additional information contained in the appendices to this circular.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of the Board
Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited
Chow Yei Ching
Chairman
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The following is the text of a report, prepared for the purpose of incorporation in this circular, received
from the reporting accountants, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong.

Deloi
e I O}I tte [ ] BE - M EEEN(T Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

SEPRTEEPINR 26/F Wing On Centre
/E REZDH262 111 Connaught Road Central
‘['E-\ Hong Kong

30th June, 2005

The Directors

Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited

22nd Floor Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road

Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

We set out below our report on the financial information set out in sections A to D (“Financial
Information™) below regarding Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited (“Pacific Coffee”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Pacific Coffee Group”) for each of the three years ended 31st
March, 2003, 2004 and 2005 (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Relevant Periods™) for inclusion in
the circular dated 30th June, 2005 (the “Circular”) issued by Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited (the “Company””)
in connection with the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Pacific Coffee (the “Acquisition™).

Pacific Coffee was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands as a limited liability company on 25th
July, 1995 and its principal activity is investment holding. As at the date of this report, Pacific Coffee has
100% direct interests in the ordinary share capital of following subsidiaries:

Issued and
Place of Date of fully paid
Name of subsidiary incorporation  incorporation share capital Principal activities
Pacific Coffee Company Hong Kong 21st July, 1992 HK$77,355 Trading of coffee
Limited products, operation
of coffee shops
and provision of
maintenance services
PCC Investment Limited Hong Kong 16th March, 2001 HK$2  Operation of coffee shops
PCC Investment (II) Hong Kong 10th December, 2003 HK$2 Operation of coffee shops
Limited
Pacific Coffee Company Singapore 20th April, 1999 $8$100,000 Trading of coffee
(S) Pte Ltd products and books,
operation of coffee
shops

Pacific Coffee Company Australia 26th November, 1999 AUSST  Investment holding
(Australia) Pty Limited ‘

The financial statements of the Pacific Coffee Group for each of the three years ended 31st March,
2003, 2004 and 2005, which were prepared in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong, were audited by Philip Poon & Partners CPA Limited.
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We have examined the audited financial statements of the Pacific Coffee Group for the Relevant
Periods. Our examination was made in accordance with the Auditing Guideline “Prospectuses and the Reporting
Accountant” as recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

The Financial Information, which is expressed in United States dollars, has been prepared based on the
audited financial statements for the Relevant Periods of the Pacific Coffee Group after making such adjustments
as we consider appropriate, for the purpose of preparing our report for inclusion in the Circular.

The financial statements of the Pacific Coffee Group are the responsibility of the directors of Pacific
Coffee who approve their issue. The Directors are responsible for the contents of the Circular in which this
report is included. It is our responsibilities to compile the Financial Information set out in this report from the
financial statements of the Pacific Coffee Group, to form an opinion on the Financial Information and to
report our opinion to you.

In our opinion, the Financial Information gives, for the purpose of this report, a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Pacific Coffee Group and Pacific Coffee as at 3 1st March, 2003, 2004 and 2005 and
of the profit and cash flows of the Pacific Coffee Group for each of the years then ended.

A. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS OF THE PACIFIC COFFEE GROUP
Year ended 31st March,

2003 2004 2005
Notes US$'000 US$’000 Us$’000

Turnover 3 17,115 18,618 22,991
Cost of goods sold (4,748) (4,856) (5,992)
Gross profit 12,367 13,762 16,999
Other revenue 454 343 565
Other operating expenses (10,283) (10,919) (12,531)
Administrative expenses (1,725) (1,649) (1,697)
Operating profit 813 1,537 3,336
Finance costs an (17 (25)
Profit before taxation 4 796 1,520 3,311
Taxation 5 (225) (315) (617)
Profit after taxation 571 1,205 2,694
Dividends 6 1,000 777 602
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS OF THE PACIFIC COFFEE GROUP
As at 31st March,
2003 2004 2005
Notes US$’000 Us$’000 US$°000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 7 4,212 3,548 3,569
Current assets

Inventories 9 523 481 555

Trade and other receivables 10 263 142 148

Deposits and prepayments 1,710 1,897 2,223

Bank balances and cash 4,367 4,530 6,588

6,863 7,050 9,514

Current liabilities

Trade payables 12 592 636 900

Other payables, accruals and deposits 769 743 697

Dividend payable 1,000 - -

Provision for taxation 44 206 397

2,405 1,585 1,994

Net current assets 4,458 5,465 7,520
Total assets less current liabilities 8,670 9,013 11,089
Non-current liability

Deferred tax 13 181 96 80
NET ASSETS 8,489 8,917 11,009
Share capital 14 40 40 40
Share premium 15 5,316 4,539 3,937
Retained profits 16 3,133 4,338 7,032
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 8,489 8,917 11,009
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BALANCE SHEETS OF PACIFIC COFFEE
As at 31st March,
2003 2004 2005
Notes US$°000 USs$’000 US$’000

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries 8 1,123 1,123 1,123
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 11 2,096 1,694 1,961
Other receivable 23 24 24
Prepayments 61 56 49
Bank balances and cash 2,950 2,186 1,343
5,130 3,960 3,377
Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries - 609 685
Accruals 44 61 53
Dividend payable 1,000 - -
1,044 670 738
Net current assets 4,086 3,290 2,639
NET ASSETS 5,209 4,413 3,762
Share capital 14 40 40 40
Share premium 15 5,316 4,539 3,937
Accumulated losses 16 (147) (166) (215)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 5,209 4,413 3,762

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE PACIFIC COFFEE

GROUP
Year ended 31st March,

2003 2004 2005
Us$°000 US$°000 US$°000
Total equity as at 1st April 8,925 8,489 8,917
Shares repurchase (7 - -
Profit for the year 571 1,205 2,694
Dividends (1,000) 77 (602)
Total equity as at 31st March 8,489 8,917 11,009
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS OF THE PACIFIC COFFEE GROUP
Year ended 31st March,
2003 2004 2005
US3°000 US$°000 Us$’000

Operating activities

Profit before taxation 796 1,520 3,311
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 1,439 1,540 1,464

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 260 74 66

Bank overdraft interest 1 - -

Interest income (39) (15) (24)
Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital 2,457 3,119 4,817
Decrease (increase) in inventories 375 42 (74)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables (120) 121 (6)
Increase in deposits and prepayments (210) (187) (326)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables (182) 44 264
Increase (decrease) in other payables,

accruals and deposits 35 (26) (46)
Cash generated from operations 2,355 3,113 4,629
Interest paid (1 - -
Interest received 39 15 24
Profits tax paid (114) (238) (442)

Net cash from operating activities 2,279 2,890 4,211

Investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 26 5 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,887) (955) (1,551)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,861) (950) (1,551)
Financing activities
Dividend paid - (1,777 (602)
Repurchase of shares 7 - -
Net cash used in financing activities N (1,777 (602)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 411 163 2,058
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3,956 4,367 4,530
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 4,367 4,530 6,588
Representing:
Bank balances and cash 4,367 4,530 6,588
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL INFORMATION

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Financial Information has been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The significant accounting policies adopted in preparing
these Financial Information are as follows:

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial information of the Pacific Coffee Group incorporates the financial information
of Pacific Coffee and its subsidiaries made up to 31st March each year.

(b) Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for impairment loss where appropriate.
((J] Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment
loss.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives, and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at the following rates

per annum:
Furniture and fixtures 10% - 60%
Machinery and equipment 16.67% - 85.71%

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

(d) Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the carrying amounts are reviewed to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

(e) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out basis.

[¢3] Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered to customers and the title has
been passed.

Maintenance service income and marketing service income are recognised upon completion of services
provided.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal amounts outstanding
and the interest rates applicable.

(2) Operating leases
Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets remain with the lessor are

accounted for as operating leases. Rentals applicable to such operating lease are charged or credited to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the relevant lease terms.

~12 -
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as expenses as they fall due.
(i) Foreign currencies

The financial records of Pacific Coffee are maintained in United States Dollars whereas those of its
subsidiaries are maintained in the domestic currencies of the geographical areas, in which the businesses
operate. Transactions in currencies other than United States Dollars or the reporting currencies where
applicable are translated at the prevailing rates on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in other currencies are re-translated at the rate prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Gains and losses arising on translation are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Pacific Coffee Group’s subsidiaries with financial
records maintained in domestic currencies are translated at exchanges rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Income and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising on consolidation are classified as translation reserve under equity. Such
translation differences are recognised as income or as expense in the period in which the operation is
disposed of.

@ Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial information and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profits, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investment in subsidiary,
except where the Pacific Coffee Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rate that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the assets realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.

In 2004, HKICPA issued a number of new or revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (herein collectively referred to as the “new HKFRSs”) which are effective for accounting
period beginning on or after 1st January, 2005.

The Pacific Coffee Group has commenced considering the potential impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in
a position to determine whether these HKFRSs would have a significant impact on how its results of operations
and financial position are prepared and presented. These HKFRSs may result in changes in the future as to how
the results and financial position are prepared and presented.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Over 90% of the Pacific Coffee Group’s operations are located and carried out in Hong Kong, and the sole
principal activity of the Pacific Coffee Group is operation of coffee shops. Accordingly, no segment information
by business and geographical area presented.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents sales at invoiced value to customers.

_13 -
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4.

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation

Directors’ emoluments
- fee
- contributions to retirement benefit scheme
- other emoluments

Staff costs

Operating lease charges in respect of rented properties
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finance costs

— Bank overdraft interest

- Bank charges

and crediting:

Interest income

Gross earning from leasing of machinery
Maintenance service income

Marketing service income

TAXATION

The charge comprises:
Hong Kong Profits Tax (rnote (a) below)
Deferred tax (note 13)

The taxation charge can be reconciled to the profit for the Relevant Periods as follows:

Profit before taxation

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
16%, 17.5% and 17.5%

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of utilisation of unrecognised tax losses

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Increase in opening deferred tax liability
resulting from an increase in Hong Kong
Profits Tax rate (note (b) below)

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdiction

Others

Taxation charge for the year

_ 14—

Year ended 31st March,

2003 2004 2005
US$'000 US$'000 US3°000
10 11 20
1,439 1,540 1,464
4 4 4
491 447 488
3,860 3,771 4,436
4,355 4,222 4,928
3,991 4,539 5,196
260 74 66
1 — _
16 17 25
17 17 25
39 15 24
78 48 44
77 89 102
216 175 388
Year ended 31st March,
2003 2004 2005
US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
178 400 633
47 (85) (16)
225 315 617
Year ended 31st March,
2003 2004 2005
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
796 1,520 3,311
127 266 579
7 9 13
(b (1 (1)
(3) &) -
64 - -
_ 17 -
4) (2)
31 37 28
225 315 617
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5. TAXATION (continued)
Nates:

(a) Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at the rate of 16%, 17.5% and 17.5% on the assessable profits for each
of the three years ended 31st March, 2003, 31st March, 2004 and 31st March, 2005, respectively.

No provision for foreign income tax is required as the subsidiary operating in other jurisdiction incurred
losses during the Relevant Periods.

(b) During the year ended 31st March, 2004, the Hong Kong Government changed the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate from 16% to 17.5% with effect from the year of assessment 2003/04.

6. DIVIDENDS

Year ended 31st March,

2003 2004 2005
US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
Interim dividend
US$0.6928 and US$1.5048 per ordinary share in 2004 and 2005 - 277 602
Special dividend
US$2.4979 and US$1.2489 per ordinary share in 2003 and 2004 1,000 500 -
1,000 777 602
7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
PACIFIC COFFEE GRCUP
Machinery and
Furniture equipment
and held for held for
fixtures own use lease Total
Us$°000 Us$ 000 US3°000 US3'000
COST
As at Ist April, 2002 5,096 1,922 212 7,230
Additions 1,430 445 12 1,887
Disposals (497) (101) (143) (741)
As at 31st March, 2003 6,029 2,266 81 8,376
Additions 717 226 12 955
Disposals (60) 93) (1D (164)
As at 31st March, 2004 6.686 2,399 82 9,167
Additions 1,210 340 1 1,551
Disposals (594) (455) 54 (1,103)
As at 31st March, 2005 7,302 2,284 29 9,615
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As at 1st April, 2002 2,116 887 177 3,180
Charge for the year 1,017 391 31 1,439
Eliminated on disposals (246) (66) (143) (455)
As at 31st March, 2003 2,887 1,212 65 4,164
Charge for the year 1,136 395 9 1,540
Eliminated on disposals a7n (57) (11) (85)
As at 31st March, 2004 4,006 1,550 63 5,619
Charge for the year 1,098 357 9 1,464
Eliminated on disposals (550) 431) (56) (1,037)
As at 31st March, 2005 4,554 1,476 16 6,046
NET BOOK VALUES
As at 31st March, 2003 3,142 1,054 16 4,212
As at 31st March, 2004 2,680 849 19 3,548
As at 31st March, 2005 2,748 308 13 3,569
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10.

11.

12.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31st March,

2003 2004 2005
US$'000 Us$°000 US3°000
Unlisted shares, at cost 1,123 1,123 1,123

INVENTORIES

All inventories, which are held for resale, are carried at cost.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Included in these amounts are trade receivables of US$202,000, US$92,000 and US$108,000 outstanding at 31st
March, 2003, 31st March, 2004 and 31st March, 2005, respectively. An aged analysis of the trade receivable is as

follows:

As at 31st March,

2003 2004 2005

Us$000 US$’'000 Us$’000

Aged at 0 to 30 days 202 85 102
Aged at 31 to 60 days - 6 5
Aged at over 60 days - 1 i
202 92 108

The Pacific Coffee Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period of 30-60 days to its trade customers.
AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31st March,

2003 2004 2005
Us$'000 Us$:000 uss 000
Secured (note (b)) - 1,679 1,961
Unsecured 2,096 15 -
2.096 1,694 1,961
Notes:
(a) The amounts due from subsidiaries are interest free and have no fixed term of repayment.
(b) The balance is secured by all assets of the subsidiary.

TRADE PAYABLES
An aged analysis of the trade payables is as follows:

As at 31st March,

2003 2004 2005

Us$'000 Us$'000 Uss$ 000

Aged at 0 to 30 days 572 630 167
Aged at 31 to 60 days 1 - 11
Aged at over 60 days 19 6 122
592 636 900
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13.

14.

DEFERRED TAX

The major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Pacific Coffee Group and movements thereon during the
Relevant Periods are attributable to the followings:

Accelerated
tax Tax

allowances losses Total

US$’000 US$'000 Us$’000

As at Ist April, 2002 134 - 134
Charge to income statement 47 - 47
As at 31st March, 2003 181 - 181
Charge to income statement (85) - (83)
As at 31st March, 2004 96 - 96
Charge (credit) to income statement 11 Q27 (16)
As at 31st March, 2005 107 (27) 80

At the balance sheet date, the Pacific Coffee Group has unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences in
respect of capital allowances for which no deferred tax assets is recognised in the balance sheet as follows:

2003 2004 2005

Us$’000 Us$'000 US$'000

Capital allowances 876 932 1,021
Tax losses 746 695 695
1,622 1,627 1,716

Deferred tax asset has not been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams to utilise the
deductible temporary differences or to offset against the unused tax losses which can be carried forward indefinitely.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st March,

2003 2004 2005
US$'000 US3$°000 US3°000
Authorised:
500,000 ordinary shares of US$0.1 each 50 50 50
Issued and fully paid:
400,337 ordinary shares of US$0.1 each 40 40 40

At the beginning of the Relevant Periods, the issued capital of Pacific Coffee was US$40,071 divided into
400,710 shares of US$0.1 each. Pursuant to the special resolution passed on 14th January,2003, the issued share
capital was reduced from US$40,071 to US$40,034 by the repurchase of 370 ordinary shares at US$20 each for
cash at a premium of US$19.9 each. The repurchased shares were cancelled upon repurchase.

Other than the above, there was no change in the authorised, issued and fully paid capital during each of the three
years ended 31st March, 2003, 2004 and 2005.
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ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON PACIFIC COFFEE GROUP

15.

16.

17.

SHARE PREMIUM

As at st April
Shares repurchase
Dividends

As at 31st March

RETAINED PROFITS (ACCUMULATED LOSSES)

As at 31st March,

2003 2004 2005
Uss$’000 US$'000 Uss$’000
6,323 5,316 4,539
(7 - -
(1,000) ) (602)
5,316 4,539 3,937

PACIFIC COFFEE GROUP

As at 31st March,

2003 2004 2005
US3'000 US$'000 US$'000
As at st April 2,562 3,133 4,338
Profit for the year 571 1,205 2,694
As at 31st March 3,133 ‘4,338 7,032
PACIFIC COFFEE
As at 31st March,
2003 2004 2005
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
As at lst April (142) (147) (166)
Loss for the year (5) (19) 49)
As at 31st March (147) (166) (215)
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(a) At the balance sheet dates, the Pacific Coffee Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments
in respect of leasing of properties under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:
As at 31st March,
2003 2004 2005
US3°000 Uss’'000 US$°000
Within one year 3,948 4,140 4,526
In the second to fifth year inclusive 3,984 4,192 5,586
After the fifth year - 379 -
7,932 8,711 10,112

Leases are negotiated for term ranging from two to three years and rental are fixed for an average of two

years.
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17. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) At the balance sheet dates, the Pacific Coffee Group had contracted with the lessees in respect of leasing
of machinery for the following future minimum lease payments:

As at 31st March,

2003 2004 2005

US3'000 USs$'000 US3°000

Within one year 32 30 11
In the second to fifth year inclusive 24 14 4
56 44 15

All machinery held for leases were leased out for an average terms of two years.
18. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31st March, 2005, the Pacific Coffee Group had contingent liabilities of US$128,000 in respect of liquidated
damages for an alleged breach of a wholesale food supply contract. No provision is made in the financial
information as the directors of Pacific Coffee are of the opinion that the plaintiff is to be unlikely successful in
claiming the amount.

B. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Pacific Coffee Group participates in Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) and
Central Provident Fund (“CPF”), defined contribution schemes, for the benefits of the Hong Kong and
Singapore employees respectively. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Pacific Coffee Group, in funds under the control of trustees.

The total cost charged to income statement for the three years ended 31st March, 2003, 2004 and 2005
of US$189,000, US$177,000 and US$210,000, respectively, represents contributions pay and payable
to these schemes by the Pacific Coffee Group in respect of the respective accounting period. Contributions
of US$18,000, US$15,000 and US$23,000 as at 31st March, 2003, 31st March, 2004 and 31st March,
2003, respectively, had not been paid over the schemes.

C. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Subsequent to 31st March, 2005 but before the completion of Acquisition, an interim dividend for the
year ending 31st March 2006 of US$16.88 per ordinary share, amounting to US$6,758,000 was paid to
the shareholders.

D. SUBSEQUENT FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

No audited financial statements of the Pacific Coffee or any of its subsidiaries have been issued
subsequent to 31st March, 2005.

Yours faithfully,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
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APPENDIX IT

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

A. THREE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Set out below is a summary of the audited consolidated income statement of the Group for each of the

three years ended 31st March, 2004 extracted from the relevant annual reports of the Company:

Results

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Profit (loss) from operations
Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Gain (loss) on discontinued operations
Profit (loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit (loss) for the year
Dividend

Earnings (loss) per share
Basic

Diluted

Assets and liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities
Minority interests
Shareholders’ funds

~20-

2004 2003 2002
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
670,583 687,903 775,364
(597,626) (604,595) (636,995)
72,957 83,308 138,369

8.924 10,454 9,907
(52,642) (94,629) (146,180)
(3,757 (5,863) (7,713)
(1,979) (1,499) (3,813)
23,503 (8,229) (9,430)
(22) (68) (228)
a7 1,927 5,135
1,016 (12,093) 260
24,420 (18,463) (4,263)
(1,557) (4,334) (5,166)
22,863 (22,797) (9,429)
8,568 - 8,568
13.34 cents (13.30) cents (5.50) cents
N/A N/A N/A

31st March,

2004 2003 2002
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000
472,945 465,585 500,991
89,185 101,165 115,939
174 186 184
383,586 364,234 384,868
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B. UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE GROUP FOR THE SIX
MONTHS ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2004

The following is the reproduction of the unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Group
contained in pages 1 to 10 of the Company’s 2004/05 interim report:

“CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

Unaudited
Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003

Notes HK3$°000 HK$’000
Turnover 2 319,867 341,747
Cost of sales (286,482) (312,851)
Gross profit 33,385 28,896
Other operating income 609 5,852
Distribution costs (24,098) (24,244)
Administrative expenses (2,373) (2.062)
Other net operating expenses (4,172) 392
Profit from operations 3 3,351 8,834
Finance costs - (7N
Share of result of an associate 24) (235)
Gain on discontinued operations - 577
Profit before taxation 3,327 9,169
Taxation 4 (825) (768)
Profit for the period 2,502 8,401
Interim dividend 5 1,714 3,427
Earnings per share 6

Basic 1.46 cents 4.90 cents
Diluted N/A N/A

Interim dividend per share 1 cent 2 cents
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As ar 30th Seprember, 2004

Notes

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment 7
Interest in an associate
Investments in securities
Fixed deposit

Current assets
Inventories
Properties for sale, at cost
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 8
Amount due from ultimate holding company
Amount due from customers for contract work
Tax recoverable
Investments in securities
Bank balances and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals 9
Amounts due to customers for contract work
Bills payable
Deferred service income
Provision for taxation
Unsecured bank overdrafts

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liability
Deferred taxation

Minority interests

Capital and reserves
Share capital 10
Reserves 11

22—

Unaudited Audited
30th September, 31st March,
2004 2004
HK$’000 HK$° 000
5,160 5,160
217,575 29,042
2,198 2,239
5,000 5,000
7,800 7,800
47,733 49,241
65,941 67,069
1,135 1,135
81,050 77,075
2,128 245
1,168 438
827 487
176,432 152,769
93,185 124,486
421,866 423,704
64,459 66,315
2,378 1,322
1,055 1,721
19,764 18,664
1,041 633
237 151
88,934 88,806
332,932 334,898
380,665 384,139
413 379

165 174
380,087 383,586
85,678 85,678
294,409 297,908
380,087 383,586
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

Total equity as at 1st April

Exchange difference arising on translation of financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries

Profit for the period
Final dividend paid

Total equity as at 30th September

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

Net cash (used in) from operating activities
Net cash from investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash equivalents
Bank overdrafts
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Unaudited
Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$°000
383,586 364,234
(860) (2,099)
2,502 8,401
(5,141) -
380,087 370,536
Unaudited

Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003
HK$'000 HKS$’000
(28,023) 23,432
4,253 7,627
(7,024) (3,972)
(30,794) 27,087
124,335 148,960
(593) 1,061
92,948 177,108
93,185 177,108
(237) -
92,948 177,108
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

1.

Significant accounting policies

The condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice No. 25 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.

The accounting policies adopted in these condensed interim financial statements have been prepared on a basis
consistent with the principal accounting policies as stated in the audited financial statements for the year ended

31st March, 2004,

Segment information

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and contribution to operating profit/(loss) by business segments and turnover

by geographical segments are as follows:
(a) By business segments

For the six months ended 30th September, 2004

Network
Computer solution Technical Investments
and and tele- and in securities
business  communication maintenance and
machines systems services others Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Turnover
Total sales 231,174 48,598 34,020 25,184 338,976
Inter-segment sales (10,986) (1,343) (6,780) - (19,109)
External sales 220,188 47,255 27.240 25.184 319,867
Results
Segment results 2,198 788 717 1.328 5,031
Interest income 543
Unallocated corporate
expenses (2,223)
Profit from operations 3,351
Finance costs -
Share of results of
an associate (24) - - - (24)
Profit before taxation 3,327
Taxation (825)

Profit for the period
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

2. Segment information (Continued)

(a) By business segments (Continued)

For the six months ended 30th September, 2003

Turnover
Total sales
Inter-segment sales

External sales

Results
Segment results

Interest income
Unallocated corporate
expenses

Profit from operations
Finance costs
Share of results of
an associate
Gain on discontinued
operations

Profit before 1axation
Taxation

Profit for the period

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Network Tele-
Computer solution Technical  Investments communication
and and tele- and  in securities General services
business communication maintenance and  merchandise and
machines systems services others trading retailing Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
200.243 68,298 22,431 78,261 11 906 370,150
21,872) (3.665) (2.835) - (1) {30) (28,403)
178,371 64.633 19,596 18,261 10 876 341,747
4,144 (1,788) 1,143 4,832 - - 8,331
713
(210}
8,834
)
(235) - - - - - 235)
- - - - 86 491 571
9,169
(768)

8,401

Nore: Inter-segment sales are charged at prices determined by management with reference to market

prices.

(b) By geographical segments

Hong Kong
The Mainland
Thailand
Others

3. Profit from operations

Profit from operations is arrived at after charging:

Cost of stock sold

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Operating lease payments in respect of renting of premises
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments

- 25~

Turnover

Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
268,850 271,077
12,816 7,537
35,990 59,069
2,211 4,064
319,867 341,747
Six menths ended
30th September,
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$'000
216,817 180,811
2,139 2,323
4,035 6,053
38,109 41,934
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Taxation

Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Current taxation
Company and subsidiaries
Hong Kong 600 665
Overseas 191 34
Deferred taxation
Current period 34 64
Attributable to change in tax rate - 5
825 768

Provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits less available tax relief for losses brought forward of each individual company comprising the Group.

Provision for overseas taxation is calculated based on the rates applicable to the relevant local legislation on the
estimated assessable profits.

Interim dividend

Six months ended
30th September,

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interim dividend
HKS$0.01 per share on 171,355,871 shares
(2003: HK$0.02 per share on 171,355,871 shares) 1,714 3,427

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the profit for the period of HK$2,502,000 (2003: HK$8,401,000})
and on the weighted average number of 171,355,871 (2003: 171,355,871) ordinary shares issued during the
period.

Diluted earnings per share is not shown as there is no dilutive potential ordinary share outstanding throughout the
periods ended 30th September, 2004 and 30th September, 2003.

Property, plant and equipment

For the six months period ended 30th September, 2004, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of
HK$2,392,000 and disposed of property, plant and equipment of HK$2,503,000.

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade debtors of HK$59,213,000 (31st March, 2004:
HK$56,650,000).

The ageing analysis of trade debtors is as follows:

As at As at

30th September, 31st March,

2004 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000

0-60 days 56,079 50,455
61-90 days 1,732 3,298
Over 90 days 1,402 2,897
59,213 56.650

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each of its core businesses. The average
credit period granted for trade debtors was 60 days.
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10.

11.

12.

Creditors, deposits and accruals

Included in creditors, deposits and accruals are trade creditors of HK$26,116,000 (31st March, 2004:

HK$28,613,000).

The ageing analysis of trade creditors is as follows:

As at As at
30th September, 31st March,
2004 2004
HK$'000 HK3'000
0-60 days 24,412 26,739
61-90 days 511 -
Over 90 days 1,193 1,874
26,116 28,613
Share Capital
Number of
ordinary
shares of Nominal
HK$0.5 each value
HK$'000
Authorised: 240,000,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid: 171,355,871 85,678
There was no change in the authorised and issued share capital during the period under review.
Reserves
Properties
Capital forownuse  Exchange
Share Capital  redemption revaluation  fluctuation Dividend Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
HKS$ 000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
At Ist April, 2004 223434 18,231 14 2,764 1.036 5,141 47288 297,908
Final dividend for 2004 paid - - - - - (5,141) - (5.141)
Exchange difference on
translation of financial
statements of overseas
subsidiaries - - - - (860) - - (860)
Profit for the period - - - - - - 2,502 2,502
Dividend - - - - - 1,714 (1.714) -
At 30th September, 2004 123,434 18,231 14 2,764 176 1,714 48,076 294,409
Contingent liabilities
At 30th September, 2004, the Company has contingent liabilities in respect of:
(i) guarantees issued for banking facilities extended to its subsidiaries amounting to HK$3,064,000 (31st
March, 2004: HK$3,102,000) ; and
@ty guarantees issued for performance under contracts and rendering of services of certain subsidiaries

amounting to HK$4,694,000 (31st March, 2004: HK$2,053,000).
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13.

14.

Operating lease

(a) The Group as lessee

At 30th September, 2004, the Group and the Company have total future aggregate minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which fall due as follows:

As at As at

30th September, 31st March,

2004 2004

HK$000 HKS$'000

Within one year 1,512 3,356
In the second to fifth year inclusive 196 -
1,708 3,356

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for an average term of two years.

(b) The Group as lessor

All the investment properties were leased out for a period of two years and the Group did not have any
renewal options given to the leases. The future minimum lease payments receivable by the Group under

non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods are:

As at As at

30th September, 31st March,

2004 2004

HK$°000 HK§'000

Within one year 264 135
In the second to fifth year inclusive 161 -
425 135

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in order to conform with the presentation of current period.”
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AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE GROUP FOR THE TWO

YEARS ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2004

The following is the reproduction of the text of the audited consolidated financial statements of the

Group contained in pages 24 to 52 of the Company’s 2004 annual report:

“Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31st March, 2004

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Profit (loss) from operations

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Gain (loss) on discontinued operations

Profit (loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit (loss) for the year
Dividend

Earnings (loss) per share
Basic

Diluted

~29—

Notes

NSy

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$’000
670,583 687,903
(597,626) (604,595)
72,957 83,308
8,924 10,454
(52,642) (94,629)
(3,757) (5,863)
(1,979) (1,499)
23,503 (8,229)
(22) (68)

a7 1,927
1,016 (12,093)
24,420 (18,463)
(1,557) (4,334)
22,863 (22,797)
8,568 —
13.34 cents (13.30) cents
N/A N/A
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As ar 31st March, 2004

2004 2003
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Investment properties 10 5,160 5,160
Property, plant and equipment 11 29,042 26,255
Interests in associates 13 2,239 9,618
Investments in securities 14 5,000 17,800
Fixed deposit 7,800 -
49,241 58,833
Current assets
Inventories 15 67,069 56,946
Properties for sale, at cost 1,135 1,135
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 16 77,075 111,864
Amount due from ultimate holding company 245 -
Amounts due from customers for contract work 17 438 1,244
Tax recoverable 487 472
Investments in securities 14 152,769 86,058
Bank balances and cash equivalents 124,486 149,033
423,704 406,752
Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals 18 66,315 66,384
Amount due to ultimate holding company - 6,290
Amounts due to customers for contract work 17 1,322 4,530
Bills payable 1,721 2,086
Deferred service income 18,664 19,525
Provision for taxation 633 2,277
Unsecured bank overdrafts 151 73
88,806 101,165
Net current assets 334,898 305,587
Total assets less current liabilities 384,139 364,420
Non-current liability
Deferred taxation 19 379 -
Minority interests 174 186
383,586 364,234
Capital and reserves
Share capital 20 85,678 85,678
Reserves 2] 297,908 278,556
383,586 364,234
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Balance Sheet
As at 31st March, 2004

Notes
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11
Interests in subsidiaries 12
Investments in securities 14

Current assets
Debtors, deposits and prepayments
Amount due from ultimate holding company
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Investments in securities 14
Bank balances and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals
Amount due to ultimate holding company
Amounts due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital 20
Reserves 27

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31st March, 2004

Total equity at beginning of the year

Surplus on revaluation of properties
Exchange difference arising on translation of financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries

(Loss) gains not recognised in the consolidated income statement

Profit (loss) for the year
Dividend paid

Total equity at end of the year
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2004 2003
HK$000 HK$’000
151 189
100,233 96,729
- 17,800
100,384 114,718
494 1,797
245 -
241,044 100,259
- 72,214
32,185 110,333
273,968 284,603
4,361 3,858

- 6,290
40,950 59,965
45,311 70,113
228,657 214,490
329,041 329,208
85,678 85,678
243,363 243,530
329,041 329,208
2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000
364,234 384,868
1,238 392
(1,322) 1,771
(84) 2,163
22,863 (22,797)
(3,427) -
383,586 364,234
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31st March, 2004

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit (loss) before taxation

Adjustments for:

Share of results of associates

Interest income

Interest expenses

Depreciation

Net realised and unrealised holding (gain) loss on
investments in securities

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

(Surplus) deficit on revaluation of properties

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
(Increase) decrease in inventories

Decrease (increase) in debtors, deposits and prepayments
Decrease in amounts due from customers for contract work
Increase in investments in securities

{Decrease) increase in bills payable

Decrease in creditors, deposits and accruals

(Decrease) increase in amounts due to customers for contract work
(Decrease) increase in deferred service income

Exchange difference

Cash used in operations
Profits tax paid

Profits tax refunded
Interest paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Dividend received from an associate
Repayment from an associate
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Placing of fixed deposit
Disposal of an associate
Disposal of a subsidiary

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid
{Repayments to) advances from ultimate holding company

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
Being:

Bank balances and cash equivalents
Bank overdrafts
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2004 2003
HK$’000 HKS$’000
24,420 (18,463)
77 (1,927)
(9,783) (5,999)
22 68
4,803 4,844
(6,595) 1,431
58 6,091
- 1,218
(828) 78
12,174 (12,659)
(8.652) 14,384
37,094 (2,305)
806 324
(47,316) (16,562)
(365) 1,509
(713) (23,838)
(3,208) 78
(869) 536
(6,323) 1.014
(17,372) (37,519)
(3,646) (1,814)
809 725
(22) (68)
(20,231) (38,676)
9,253 6,236
- 10,386
331 219
(6,195) (6,595)
1,572 957
(7,800) -
6,971 -
- 1,058
4,132 12,261
(3,427) -
(6,535) 4,834
(9,962) 4,834
(26,061) (21,581)
148,960 170,240
1,436 301
124,335 148,960
124,486 149,033
(151) (73)
124,335 148,960




APPENDIX IT FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st March, 2004

1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s ultimate holding
company is Chevalier International Holdings Limited (“CIHL"), a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and investment in securities. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in pages 53 and 54. During the year, the Group has discontinued
the telecommunication services and retailing.

2. ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted Statement of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP”) 12 (Revised)
“Income Taxes” issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (“HKSA”). The principal effect of the
implementation of SSAP 12 (Revised) is in relation to deferred tax. SSAP 12 (Revised) requires the adoption of a
balance sheet liability method, whereby deferred tax is recognised in respect of all temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, with limited exceptions. In the absence of any specific transitional requirements
in SSAP 12 (Revised), the new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively. The adoption of the revised
accounting policy has had no material effect on the results for the current or prior accounting periods. Accordingly,
no prior period adjustment has been required.

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for the revaluation
of certain properties and investments in securities and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below:

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31st March each year and also incorporate the Group’s interests in associates on
the basis set out in (d) below.

The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

(b) Goodwill/negative goodwill on consolidation

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or associate. Negative
goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary or associate at the date of acquisition over the cost of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st April, 2001 continues to be held in reserves, and will be
charged to the income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate, or at such
time as the goodwill is determined to be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1st April, 2001 is capitalised and amortised on a straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life. Goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate is included within the
carrying amount of the associate. Goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately
in the balance sheet.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1st April, 2001 continues to be held in reserves and
will be credited to income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions after 1st April, 2001 is presented as deduction from assets and
will be released to income based on an analysis of the circumstances from which the balance resulted.

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is deducted from the carrying value of the
associate. Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in the
balance sheet as a deduction from assets.

(¢) Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified
impairment loss.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition results of its associates
for the year. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates are stated at the Group’s share of
the net assets of the associates.

(e) Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are held for their investment potential, any rental
income being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market value and are revalued annually by independent
professional valuers. Any revaluation increase or decrease arising on the revaluation of investment
properties is credited or charged to the investment property revaluation reserve unless the balance of this
reserve is insufficient to cover a revaluation decrease, in which case the excess of the revaluation decrease
over the balance of the investment property revaluation reserve is charged to the income statement.
Where a decrease has previously been charged to the income statement and a revaluation increase
subsequently arises, this increase is credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously
charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the balance on the investment property revaluation reserve
attributable to that property is transferred to the income statement.

No depreciation is provided on investment properties except where the unexpired term of the refevant
lease is 20 years or less.

() Property, plant and equipment
(i) Properties

Properties held for own use are stated at their revalued amount, being the fair value on the basis
of their existing use at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such
that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that would be determined using fair
values at the balance sheet date. Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of such properties
is credited to the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
of the same asset previously recognised as an expense, in which case the increase is credited to
the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in net carrying
amount arising on the revaluation of a property is dealt with as an expense to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
property. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation
surplus is transferred to retained profits.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land. Depreciation is provided on leasehold land over the
remaining terms of the respective leases. Depreciation is provided on the cost of the buildings on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 20 to 50 years or the remaining terms of
the respective leases, whichever is the shorter.

(ii) Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The
cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives after taking into account their estimated residual value, on the reducing balance basis, at the
following rates per annum:

Initial charge Annual

upon purchase charge

Computer equipment 20% 40%
Others 20% 20%

Assets held for leasing are depreciated over the shorter of the term of the leases or at an annual
rate of 20% on the cost of the assets.

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference

between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income
statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

(h)

@

k)

Properties for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the cost of
acquisition of properties and other direct costs. Net realisable value is estimated by management based on
prevailing market conditions or when a binding sales agreement is executed, by reference to the agreed
selling prices.

Inventories

Inventories represent general merchandise and consumable stores. General merchandise are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value whereas consumable stores are stated at cost less allowance. Cost is
calculated using weighted average method.

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis and are initially measured at cost. At
subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that the Group has the expressed intention and ability to hold
to maturity (held-to-maturity debt securities) are measured at amortised cost less any impairment loss
recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts. The annual amortisation of any discount or premium on the
acquisition of a held-to-maturity security is aggregated with other investment income receivable over the
term of the instrument so that the revenue recognised in each period represents a constant yield on the
investment.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as investment securities and other
investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long-term strategic purpose, are measured
at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any impairment loss that is other than temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses included in income statement
for the period.

Installation contracts

When the outcome of an installation contract can be estimated reliably, contract costs are charged to the
income statement by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet
date, as measured by the value of work carried out during the year.

When the outcome of an installation contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Contracts in progress are recorded in the balance sheet at the contract costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses and progress billings, and are presented in the balance sheet as “amounts
due from customers for contract work” (as an asset) or “amounts due to customers for contract work” (as
a liability), where applicable. Amounts received before the related work is performed are included in the
balance sheet as a liability. Amounts billed for work performed on a contract but not vet paid by the
customers are included in the balance sheet under “debtors, deposits and prepayments”.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment Jloss. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that other standard.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M

(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition

Income from sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and title of the goods has passed to the
customer. Revenue is arrived at after deduction of any sales returns and discounts.

Income from rendering of services is recognised at the time when services are rendered. Receipts in
advance of provision of services are accounted for as deferred service income.

When the outcome of an installation contract can be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the value of work carried out during the
period. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that they
have been agreed with the customer. When the outcome of an installation contract cannot be estimated
reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the interest
rate applicable.

Income from sale of securities is recognised on a trade-date basis.

Rental income and other earnings under operating leases are recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the respective lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of the assets remain with the lessors are
accounted for as operating leases. Payments on assets leased by the Group and income on property, plant
and equipment of the Group leased to third parties are dealt with in the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.

Retirement benefit costs

The retirement benefit costs charged in the income statement represent the contributions paid and payable
in respect of the current year to the Group’s defined contribution schemes.

Foreign currency translation

The accounting records of the Group, other than those subsidiaries not operating in Hong Kong, are
maintained in Hong Kong dollars. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies during the year are
translated at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of transactions or on the contracted settlement date.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are re-translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling on that date. Profits and losses arising on
exchange are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries and associates operating outside Hong
Kong are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified
as equity and transferred to exchange fluctuation reserve. Such translation differences are recognised as
income or as expenses in the year in which the subsidiary or associate is disposed of.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes income statement items that are never taxable or
deductible.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill (or negative goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other asset and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it
relates items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in

equity.
(q) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the net amount received and receivable for goods sold, provision of services by the Group
and investment income. An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business and geographical segment is set out in
note 22.

GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
The current year’s credit mainly represents over-accrual of cost made in last year on termination of the Group’s

operations in trading of general merchandise and retailing of telecommunication equipment and provision of
telecommunication agency services. Details of the overprovision and loss incurred in last year are as follows:

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000

Over-accrual (accrual) for lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases and related outgoings 645 (1,927)
Over-accrual (accrual) of staff redundancy cost 408 (3,264)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (5,425)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment - (1,218)
Loss in value of inventories (37) (259)
1,016 (12,093)

Details of the Group’s discontinued operations are as follows:

(a) In September 2002, the board of directors of the Company determined to cease its retailing of

telecommunication equipment and provision of telecommunication agency services which were operated
in Hong Kong. The operations were ceased in May 2003. Total loss arising from the discontinuance of the
operations amounted to HK$8,030,000. An over- accruals of the retail outlets closure costs of HK$948,000
made in prior year was credited to the current year’s income statement (2003: loss of HK$8,978,000).

The results of the operations for the current year, and the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of
the retailing of telecommunication equipment and provision of telecommunication agency services business
which have been included in the consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$’000
Turnover 994 73,893
Other operating income 3,180 8,394
Operating costs (1,394) (90,861)
Gain (loss) from operations 2,780 (8,574)
Total assets 2,492 11,395
Total liabilities (2,853) (9,855)
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5. GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b)

During the year, the retailing of telecommunication equipment and provision of telecommunication agency
services business contributed HK$4,504,000 (2003: used up HK$5,840,000) to the Group’s net operating
cash flows, contributed HK$159,000 (2003: used up HK$1,112,000) in respect of investing activities and
used up HK$4,877,000 (2003: contributed HK$7,040,000) in respect of financing activities,

During the last financial year, the Group had ceased trading of general merchandise in Hong Kong by
closing down all its retail outlets. Loss arising from the discontinuance of the operation amounted to
HK$3,047,000. An over-accruals of the retail outlet closure costs of HK$68,000 made in prior year was
credited to the current year's income statement (2003: loss of HK$3,115,000).

The results of the operations for the last period and the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of
the trading of general merchandise business included in the consolidated financial statements, are as
follows:

2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$'000

Turnover - 14,159
Other operating income - 1,690
Operating costs - (20,901)
Loss from operations — (5,052)
Total assets 27 1,287
Total liabilities (992) (3,995)

During the year, the trading of general merchandise used up HK$1,203,000 (2003: HK$2,195,000) of the
Group’s net operating cash flows and contributed HK$1,202,000 (2003: HK$1,765,000) in respect of
financing activities. The operation also contributed HK$23,000 in respect of investing activities during
last year. i

6. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit (Loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration
Current year 889 1,253
Overprovision for prior year (288) -
601 1,253
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 4,803 4,844
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 58 6,091
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment - 1,218
Operating lease payments in respect of renting of premises 10,592 28,754
Staff costs (note) 80,392 104,221
Net realised and unrealised holding loss on investments in securities - 1,431
Interest on bank overdrafts repayable within five years 22 68
Deficit on revaluation of properties for own use — 198
and crediting:
Gross rental income from properties of HK$586,000
(2003: HK$657,000) less outgoings 420 488
Gross earnings from leasing of assets other than properties
of HK$4,051,000 (2003: HK$1,999,000) less outgoings 1,778 1,260
Net realised and unrealised holding gain on
investments in securities 6,595 -
Interest income from bank and other deposits 3,035 4,838
Interest income from debt securities 6,748 1,161
Exchange gain 4,035 2,572
Surplus on revaluation of
investment properties - 120
properties for own use 828 —
Note: Details of directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note 23. Staff costs include an

amount of HK$1,056,000 (2003: HK$3,796,000) in respect of staff redundancy payments.
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7.

TAXATION
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK3$°000
Current taxation
Company and subsidiaries
Hong Kong 748 1,142
Overseas 430 2,842
1,178 3,984
Share of taxation attributable to associates
Hong Kong - 350
Deferred taxation
Hong Kong 379 -
1,557 4,334

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 17.5% (2003: 16%) on the estimated assessable
profits less available tax relief for losses brought forward of each individual company comprising the Group. The
Hong Kong Profits Tax rate was increased from 16% to 17.5% with effect from the year of assessment 2003/
2004. The effect of this increase has been reflected in the calculation of current and deferred tax balance as at
31st March, 2004.

Provision for overseas taxation is calculated based on the rates applicable to the relevant local legislation on the
estimated assessable profits.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss) per the income statement as follows:

2004 2003

HK3'000 HK$’000

Profit (loss) before taxation 24,420 (18,463)
Less: Share of results of associates 77 (1,927)
24,497 (20,390)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 17.5% (2003: 16%) (note) 4,287 (3,262)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 356 857
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (2,192) (1,623)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 1,282 6,566
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (3,092) (139)
Tax effect on deferred tax assets not recognised 868 610
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions 195 1,231
Others (147) (256)
Tax expenses of the Company and subsidiaries for the year 1,557 3,984

Note: The domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group is substantially based is used.

DIVIDEND
2004 2003
HKS$'000 HK3$'000
Interim dividend paid HK$0.02 (2003: nil) per share on 171,355,871 shares 3,427 -
Proposed final dividend HK$0.03 (2003: nil) per share on 171,355,871 shares 5,141 -
8,568 —
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10.

11.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated based on the profit for the year of HK$22,863,000 (2003: loss of
HK$22,797,000) and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 171,355,871 (2003: 171,355,870) in
issue during the year. The weighted average number of shares has been adjusted for the consolidation of every
five of the Company’s ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each into one ordinary share of HK$0.50 in June 2003.

No diluted earnings per share for the year has been presented because the exercise price of the Company’s options
was higher than the average market price for shares. No diluted loss per share is presented for last year as the

exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options would result in a decrease in net loss per share.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK3$'000 HK$’000
Properties situated in the Mainfand China, held under medium-term leases 5,160 5,160

Investment properties were revalued on an open market value basis on 31st March, 2004 by independent professional
valuers, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited.

Gross rental income derived from renting of investment properties under operating leases during the year amounted
to HK$419,000 (2003: HK$468,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Properties for own use
Hong Kong Overseas The Mainlanod China Furniture, fixtures,
Transmiters office equipment
under under under and fele- Machiery and motor vehicles
medium- short- under medivm- communications toosad  — for  for
term Jease reehold ferm lease long-lease term Jease equipment equipment OWD sE lease Total

HES'000 HES'000 HES 000 HES'000 HES 000 HES000 HES 000 HKS 000 HES 060 HES 000

THE GROUP
COST OR VALUATION
At Ist April. 2003 4450 8985 195 1690 1710 302 14351 19,580 4900 54409
Exchangz adjustments - ol JAl - - - 367 3t ] 1m
Additions - - - - - - 3% 1059 434 6,195
Disposals - - - - - () {2.303) (4.700) (1975) 0351}
Surplus (deficir) on revaluation 150 9%9 i {th) - - - - - 1426
Al 35t March, 2004 4800 8,365 4 1680 1710 4] 13,008 16480 1700 4311
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At It April, 2003 - - - - - m 11510 15438 104 B4
Exchange adjusiments - - - - - - 9 464 8 813
Charge for the year 101 268 119 ] 13 A 1353 1139 1,641 4803
Eliminated on disposals - - - - - (153) 240 (4399} {82) (1)
Eliminated on revalugiion {100 {268) (119) %) {123) - - - - {640)
At 315t Mareh, 2004 - - - - - 9 10,785 12641 1949 25489
NET BOOK VALUES
At 315t March, 2004 4300 §.365 47 1,680 1710 3 1103 3838 5051 2004
At 315t March, 2003 4430 8,983 295 1630 1710 §0 347 4.142 1850 26,355
An analysis of cost or vafuiion of the property, plant and equipment is as foflows:
Atcost - - - - - 131 13,008 16,480 110 31319
At 2004 professional valuation 4800 8565 #i 1680 1710 - - - - 11192
4300 §.365 47 1680 1710 13] 13,008 16480 1.0 54511
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11.

12.

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Properties were revalued on an open market value basis on 31st March, 2004 based on existing use by independent
professional valuers. Properties in Hong Kong were revalued by Messrs. Knight Frank. Overseas properties were
revalued by Brooke Real Estate Limited. Properties in the Mainland China were revalued by DTZ Debenham Tie
Leung Limited.

Had these properties been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying amount at 31st March, 2004
would have been HK$22,286,000 (2003: HK$23,026,000).

THE COMPANY

HK$°000
MOTOR VEHICLE AT COST
At Ist April, 2003 and 31st March, 2004 348
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At Ist April, 2003 159
Charge for the year 38
At 31st March, 2004 197
NET BOOK VALUES
At 31st March, 2004 151
At 31st March, 2003 189

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY

2004 2003

HK3$'000 HK$’000

Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment loss 57,951 57,409
Amounts due from subsidiaries, less allowances 42,282 39,320
100,233 96,729

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March, 2004 are set out on pages 53 and 54.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore, the subsidiaries as set out are those that principally affect the results or assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the year.
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE

THE COMPANY

2004 2003

HK3’000 HK$'000

Share of net assets 24 7,072
Amount due from an associate 2,215 2,546
2,239 9,618

Particulars of the associate Guangzhou Chevalier iTech Limited, which was incorporated and is operating in the
Mainland China are as follows:

Form of business structure: Corporate
Effective % of registered capital
held by the subsidiary: 24% »
Principal activities: Trading of office equipment and provision of maintenance service
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14.

1s.

16.

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK3$000 HK$'000 HK3'000
Held to maturity securities:
Debt securities, unlisted - 17,800 17,800

Investment securities:
Equity securities, unlisted 5,000 -

Other investments:

Equity securities, listed in Hong Kong 416 - -
Equity securities, unlisted 2,976 995 -
Debt securities, listed overseas 5,969 - -
Debt securities, unlisted 108,054 53,015 40,166
Mutual fund, unlisted 35,354 32,048 32,048
157,769 103,858 90,014
Market value of listed securities
equity securities 416 - -
debt securities 5,969 - -
6,385 — —
Carrying value analysed for reporting purposes are:
Non-current 5,000 17,800 17,800
Current 152,769 86,058 72,214
157,769 103,858 90,014
INVENTORIES
THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK3$'000 HK3$'000
Inventories held for resale 63,455 53,000
Consumable stores 3,614 3,946
67,069 56,946

Included in the above are inventories held for resale of HK$8,842,000 (2003: HK$7,611,000) carried at net

realisable value.

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year was HK$381,115,000 (2003: HK$499,233.,000).

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Included in debtors, deposits and prepayments are trade debtors of HK$56,650,000 (2003: HK$72,201,000). An

aged analysis of trade debtors as at 31st Marph, 2004 is as follows:

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
0 - 60 days 50,455 63,469
61 -~ 90 days 3,298 3,389
Over 90 days 2,897 5,343
56.650 72,201

The Group has established different credit policies for customers in each of its core business. The average credit

period granted for trade debtors was 60 days.
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17.

18.

19.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT WORK

THE GROUP

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$’000

Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:
Contract costs incurred 68,151 39,538
Recognised profits less losses (6,633) (7,052)
61,518 32,486
Progress billings (62,402) (35,772)
(884) (3,286)

Represented by:

Amounts due from customers included in current assets 438 1,244
Amounts due to customers included in current liabilities (1,322) (4,530)
(884) (3.286)

At 31st March, 2004, retentions held by customers for contract work amounted to HK$4,90%,000 (2003:
HK$3,637,000). No advance payments were received from customers for contract work.

CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS

Included in creditors, deposits and accruals are trade creditors of HK$28,613,000 (2003: HK$21,053,000). An
aged analysis of the trade creditors as at 31st March, 2004 is as follows:

THE GROUP
2004 2003
HK$'000 HKS$'000
0 - 60 days 26,739 15,289
61 - 90 days - 969
Over 90 days 1,874 4,795
28,613 21,053

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and (assets) recognised and movements thereon during the
year:

Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Others Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
At 1 April 2002 and 2003 - - - -
Charge (credit) to income for the year 536 (107) 50) 379
At 31 March 2004 536 (107) (50) 379

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining unused tax losses of HK$495,771,000
(2003: HK$506,113,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses
are losses of HK$2,359,000 (2003: nil) that will expire in 2009. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had deductible temporary difference of HK$36,746,000 (2003:
HK$30,702,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference as
it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.
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20.

21.

SHARE CAPITAL

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised:
240,000,000 (2003: 1,200,000,000) ordinary shares
of HK$ 0.50 (2003: HKS 0.10) each 120,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid:
171,355,871 (2003: 856,779,352) ordinary shares
of HKS$ 0.50 (2003: HK$ 0.10) each 85,678 85,678

On 13th May, 2003, 3 shares of HK$0.10 each were allotted at HK$0.464 on exercise of share options.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general meeting of the shareholders of the Company on 5th
June, 2003, every five issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each are consolidated into one ordinary
share of HK$0.50.

Details of the share option scheme of the Company and the ultimate holding company are set out in note 27.

RESERVES
Properties
Capital  for own use Exchange
Share Capital  redemption revaluation  fluctuation Dividend Retained

premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

HKS$ 000 HKS$°000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$ 000
THE GROUP
At Ist April. 2002 223,434 18,231 14 1,134 587 - 55790 299,190
Surplus on revaluation

of properties - - - %2 - - - 392

Exchange difference on translation
of financial statements of

overseas subsidiaries - - - - L7 - - 1,771
Net loss for the year - - - - - - (22,797) (22,797)
At 31st March, 2003 223434 18.231 14 1,326 2,358 - 32,993 278,556

Surplus on revaluation

of properties - - - 1,238 - - - 1,238
Exchange difference on translation

of financial statements of

overseas subsidiaries - - - - (1,322) - - (1,322)
Net profit for the year - - - - - - 22,863 22,863
Dividend - - - - - 5,141 (8,568) (3427)
At 31st March, 2004 223434 18.231 14 2,764 1,036 3,141 47.288 297.908
Notes:

(i) Reserves of the Group at the balance sheet date includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition loss

sustained by an associate amounting to HK$79,000 (2003: profit of HK$816.000).

(ii) The capital reserve includes amounts of HK$27,000 (2003: HK$27,000) goodwill and HK$198,000 (2003:
HK$198,000) negative goodwill on consolidation.

Capital
Share Contributed redemption Dividend Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THE COMPANY

At Ist April. 2002 223,434 6,226 14 - 21,288 250,962
Net loss for the year - - - - (7,432) (7,432)
At 31st March, 2003 223,434 6,226 14 - 13,856 243,530
Net profit for the year - - - - 3,260 3,260
Dividend - - - 5,141 (8,568) (3,427)
At 31st March, 2004 223,434 6,226 14 5,141 8,548 243,363
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21. RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Contributed surplus represents the difference between the value of total net assets of subsidiaries acquired
and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the re-organisation in 1989, less dividends
paid out of the contributed surplus subsequently. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution to shareholders.

(b) As at 31st March, 2004, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders amounted to

HK$19,915,000 (2003: HK$20,082,000).
22, SEGMENT INFORMATION
Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into four operating divisions. These divisions are the
basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.

During the year ended 31st March, 2004, the Group had discontinued its retailing of telecommunication equipment
and provision of telecommunication agency services business as disclosed in note 5. The Group had also
discontinued its trading of general merchandise business in the year ended 31 March 2003.

Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

TURNOVER AND RESULTS
Year ended 31st March, 2004

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
Network Tele-
Computer solution Technical  Investments communication
and and tele- and  in securities General services
business communication maintenance and  merchandise and
machines systems services others trading retailing

HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TURNOVER

Total sales 433,462 121,109 46,560 124,477 - 1,818 727426
Inter-segment sales (48,723) (1,850) (5,446) - - (824) (56,843)
External sales 384,739 119,259 41,114 124,477 -~ 994 670,583
RESULTS

Segment results 720 (1,668) 2717 13,344 - 2,780 17,393
Interest income 3,035
Unallocated corporate income 4,152
Unatlocated corporate expenses (1577)
Profit from operations 23,503
Finance costs : (22)
Share of results of an associate a1 - - - - - (77)
Gain on discontinued operations - - - - 68 948 1,016
Profit before taxation 24,420
Taxation (1.557)
Net profit for the year 22,863
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

TURNOVER AND RESULTS (Continued)
Year ended 31st March, 2003

TURNOVER
Total sales
Inter-segment sales

External sales

RESULTS
Segment results

Interest income
Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Loss on discontinued operations

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Net loss for the year

Note:

BALANCE SHEET
As ar 31st March, 2004

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in an associate
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
Network Tele-
Computer solution Technical  Investments communication
and and tele- and  in securities General services
business communication  maintenance and  merchandise and
machines systems services others trading retailing
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
471,771 138,816 44214 12,989 14,443 79,826 768,059
(57,097) (11,298) (5,544) - (284) (3,933) {80,156)
420,674 127,518 38,670 12,989 14,159 73,893 637,903
3,121 (2.856) 1,989 (2,458) (5.033) (8.612) (13,869)
5,999
(359)
(8.229)
(68)
1,927 - - - - - 1,927
- - - - (3,115) (8,978) (12,093)
(18,463)
(4,334)

22.797)

Inter-segment sales are charged at prices determined by management with reference to market prices.

Continning operations Discontinued operations Total
Network Tele-
Computer solution Technical ~ Investments communication
and and tele- and  in securities General services
business communication  maintenance and  merchandise and
machines systems services others trading refailing
HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS$°000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
112,672 42,29 10,872 159,530 2 2492 327,885
2,239 - - - - - 2,239
142,821
472,945
———
40,470 28,068 571 - 992 2,853 78.094
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22. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

As at 31st March, 2003

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
Network Tele-
Computer solution Technical  Investments communication
and and tele- and  in securities General services
business communication  maintenance and  merchandise and
machines systems services others trading retailing
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
ASSETS
Sezment assets 114,338 53,730 11,535 103,858 1,287 11,395 296,163
Interests in associates 9,618 - - - - - 9,618
Unallocated corporate assets 159,804
Consolidated total assets 465,585
N
LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 17,954 34913 16.756 13 3,995 9,855 83,486
Unallocated corporate liabilities 17,679
Consolidated total Habilities 101,165 -
——
OTHER INFORMATION
Year ended 31st March, 2004
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
Network Tele-
Computer solution Technical  Investments communication
and and tele- and  in securities General services
business communication  maintenance and  merchandise and
machines systems services others trading retailing
HK§'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Capital additions 4,558 436 226 925 - -~ 6,195
Depreciation 2,262 896 969 676 - - 4,303
Surplus on revaluation of properties - - - 828 - ~ 828
Year ended 31st March, 2003
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
Network Tele-
Computer solution Technical ~ Investments communication
and and tele- and  in securities General services
business communication  maintenance and  merchandise and
machines systems services others trading retailing
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Capital additions 1.977 1,465 22 2,951 6 174 6,595
Depreciation 1,584 1,210 906 632 - 512 4,844
[mpairment loss property,
plant and equipment - - - - - 1,218 1,218
Deficit on revaluation of properties - - - 78 - - 78
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22.

23.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical segments

The Group’s operations in sales of computer and business machines and telecommunication systems, provision of
technical and maintenance services and network solution services are carried out in Hong Kong and Thailand. The
discontinued operations, retailing of telecommunication equipment and provision of telecommunication agency
services and trading of general merchandise were carried out in Hong Kong. The following table provides an
analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical market:

Turnover by geographical market

2004 2003
HK$'000 % HK$’000 %
Hong Kong 516,689 77 511,653 74
Thailand 124,176 19 123,699 18
Others 29,718 4 52,551 8
670,583 100 687,903 100

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of segment assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amounts of segment assets Additions to property, plant and equipment
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HKS$'000 %
Hong Kong 393,357 83 380,733 82 3,182 51 3215 49
Thailand 65,042 14 66,483 14 3,003 43 3,245 49
Others 14,546 3 18,369 4 10 ! 133 2
472.945 100 465.585 100 6,195 100 6.595 100

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors of the Company are as follows:

2004 2003

HK$'000 HKS$'000

Fees 240 238
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind - 505
Retirement benefits scheme contributions - 25
240 768

Except for the directors’ fees of HK$240,000 (2003: HK$238,000) paid to the Independent Non-executive Directors,
no other emoluments were paid or are payable to the Independent Non-executive Directors during the two years
ended 31st March, 2004.

The emoluments of the Directors fall within the following bands:

Number of directors
Bands 2004 2003

Nil - HK$1,000,000 7 3

In addition to the directors’ emoluments disclosed above, four (2003: four) directors received remuneration
totalling HK$15,259.000 (2003: HK$16,173,000) from the Company’s ultimate holding company in respect of
their services to the ultimate holding company and its subsidiaries including the Group.

The amounts paid by the ultimate holding company have not been allocated between the services of the directors

as directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, and their services to the ultimate holding company and its other
subsidiaries.
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23.

24,

25.

26.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The emoluments of the five (2003: five) highest paid individuals were as follows:

2004 2003

HK$’'000 HK$'000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3,354 3,943
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 215 200
3,569 4,143

The emoluments of these five (2003: five) highest paid individuals fall within the following bands:

Number of individuals

Bands 2004 2003
Nil - HK$1,000,000 5 3
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 — 2

CHARGE OF ASSETS

At 31st March, 2004, freehold properties with an aggregate carrying value of HK$8,070,000 (2003: HK$6,603,000)
were mortgaged to secure general banking facilities granted to an overseas subsidiary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31st March, 2004, the Company had contingent liabilities in respect of:

(i) guarantees issued for banking facilities extended to its subsidiaries amounting to HK$3,102,000 (2003:
HK$5,421,000).

(i) guarantees issued for performance under contracts and rendering of services of certain subsidiaries
amounting to HK$2,053,000 (2003: HK$1,405,000.)

OPERATING LEASE
(a) The Group as lessee

At 31st March, 2004, the Group and the Company had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of premises which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Within one year 3,356 6,287 . 92 123
In the second to fifth year inclusive - 3,231 - 92
3,356 9,518 92 215

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for an average term of 2 years.
(b) The Group as lessor
All the investment properties were leased out for a period of one year and the Group did not have any

renewal options given to the lessees. The future minimum lease payments receivable by the Group within
one year under non-cancellable operating leases amounted to HK$135,000 (2003: HK$406,000).
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27.

28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(a) Option of the Company

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Old CiTL Scheme”) which was adopted on 30th September,
1991 expired on 29th September, 2001 but its term remain in full force and effect in respect of the
outstanding options previously granted. At Ist April, 2002 and 31st March 2003, there were options
granted under the Old CiTL Scheme outstanding entitling the holders to subscribe for 28,550,000 shares
at an exercise price of HK$0.4640. These options were granted on 17th December, 1999 with vesting
period from 17th December, 1999 to 29th June, 2000 and exercisable during the period from 30th June,
2000 to 29th June, 2003. During the year ended 31st March, 2004, 3 options were exercised. As a result
of the consolidation of the Company’s ordinary shares as disclosed in note 20, the remaining options
entitled the holders thereof to subscribe for 5,709,999 new shares of the Company at an adjusted price of
HKS$2.32 per share. These remaining options were lapsed on 29th June, 2003.

The Company’s new share option scheme (the “CiTL Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders pursuant
to a resolution passed on 20th September, 2002 for the primary purpose of providing the participants with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. The CiTL Scheme will expire on 19th September, 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the CiTL Scheme and any
other schemes is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of
shareholders’ approval of the CiTL Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit is
refreshed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum
aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the CiTL Scheme and any other share option schemes, must not exceed 30% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company then in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s and CIHL’s shareholders.
Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or substantial sharcholder must be approved by
independent non-executive directors of the Company and CIHL. Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or any independent non-executive director or any of their respective associates would result
in the shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of options already granted and to be
granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000
in the 12-month period up to the date of grant must be approved in advance by the Company's and
CIHL's shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of grant, upon payment of HKS1 for each
lot of option granted. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the CiTL Scheme at
any time during the effective period of the CiTL Scheme to be notified by the board of directors which
shall not be later than 10 years from the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the highest of the closing price of the Company’s share on the
date of grant, the average closing price of the share on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value.

No options were granted during the years ended 31st March, 2003 and 2004 under the CiTL Scheme.
(b) Option of the ultimate holding company

Under the share option scheme which was adopted by CIHL on 30th September, 1991 (the “Old CIHL
Scheme™), the Board of Directors of CTHL has granted certain options to eligible employees, including
directors of the Company, to subscribe for 24,150,000 shares in CIHL at an exercise price of HK$0.488.
These options were granted to the directors on 17th December, 1999 with vesting period from 17th
December, 1999 to 29th June, 2000 and exercisable during the period from 30th June, 2000 to 29th June,
2003. As a result of the consolidation of CIHL's shares, these options entitled the holders to subscribe for
4,830,000 new shares of CIHL at an adjusted price of HK$2.44 per share. These option were lapsed on
29th June, 2003.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme™) for the
benefits of the Hong Kong employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment
of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme,
whereas all new employees Jjoining the Group on or after 1st December, 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.
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28. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both employees and the Group at rates ranging from
5% to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service with the Group.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. The amount of forfeited contributions
utilised in this manner during the year was HK$569,000 (2003: HK$1,169,000).

The total cost charged to income statement of HK$3,682,000 (2003: HK$4,087,000) represents contributions pay
and payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period net of forfeited contributions.
As at 31st March 2004, contributions of HK$250,000 (2003: HK$285,000) due in respect of the reporting period
had not been paid over to the schemes.

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s ultimate holding company, CIHL and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities are
regarded as related parties for the purpose of SSAP 20. Details of the material transactions with these companies
are as follows:

(a) On 28th March, 2003, the Company renewed the management agreement with Chevalier (HK) Limited
(“CHKL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIHL, for the provision of company secretarial, accounting,
electronic data processing, personnel and property management services by CHKL to the Group in respect
of the year ended 31st March, 2004 at a management fee calculated at the rate of 0.5% of the annual
turnover of the Group excluding those of its overseas subsidiaries. Management fees paid to CHKL
during the year under this agreement amounted to HK$2,376,000 (2003: HK$3,055,000). The management
agreement expired on 28th March, 2004 and has been renewed for a further term of one year.

(b) During the year, the Group sold computer equipment and business machines to and provided maintenance
service to wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL totalling HK$4,492,000 (2003: HK$4,409,000). The price
is determined with reference to market rates.

(c) During the year, the Group paid rentals determined with reference to market rates amounting to
HK$3,488,000 (2003: HK$5,042,000) to wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHL, for the use of their premises
by the Group.

(d) During the year, the Group paid storage and delivery charges amounting to HK$4,167,000 (2003:
HK$4,295,000) and HK$1,483,000 (2003: HK$2,470,000) respectively to a wholly-owned subsidiary of
CIHL to cover its cost for services provided to the Group.

The outstanding balance due from the ultimate holding company arising from the above transactions and payment
of recurrent expenses on behalf of the Group as at 31st March, 2004 amounted to HK$245,000 whereas the
outstanding due to the ultimate holding company as at 31st March, 2004 amounted to HK$6,290,000.

Apart from the above, the Group obtained repayment from an associate during the year. The amount outstanding
at 31st March, 2004 is HK$2,215,000 (2003: HK$2,546,000).

The balance with the ultimate holding company is unsecured and interest-free. The balance with the associate is

unsecured, interest-free and the Company has no intention to demand repayment from the associate in the next
financial year.”

INDEBTEDNESS
Borrowings

As at the close of business on 30th April, 2005, for the purpose of this indebtedness statement,
the Enlarged Group had unsecured bank borrowings of approximately HK$20 million.

As at the close of business on 30th April, 2005, the Group’s freehold properties with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$8 million have mortgaged to secure general banking facilities
granted to overseas subsidiaries. Approximately HK3$51,000 was drawn from such secured general
banking facilities as at the close of business on 30th April, 2005.

Contingent liability
As at the close of business on 30th April, 2005, the Enlarged Group had contingent liabilities of

approximately HK$1 million in respect of liquidated damages for an alleged breach of a wholesale food
supply contract.
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Disclaimer

Save as aforesaid and apart from intra-Group liabilities, the Enlarged Group did not, at the close
of business on 30th April, 2005, have any outstanding loan capital issued and outstanding or agreed to
be issued, bank overdrafts, charges or debentures, mortgages, loans, or other similar indebtedness or
any finance lease commitments, hire purchase commitments, liabilities under acceptances (other than
normal trade bills), acceptance credits or any guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

The Directors have confirmed that there have been no material changes in the indebtedness and
contingent liabilities of the Enlarged Group since 30th April, 2005.

E. WORKING CAPITAL

The Directors are of the opinion that after taking into account of the Group’s internal resources and the
present available banking facilities, the Enlarged Group has sufficient working capital for its present requirements
following the Completion.

F. MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors were not aware of any material adverse change in the
financial or trading position of the Group since 31st March, 2004, the date to which the latest audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group were made up.

G. FINANCIAL REVIEW AND EMPLOYEES POLICIES OF THE GROUP FOR THE SIX MONTHS
ENDED 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2004

As at 30th September, 2004, the Group’s total net assets amounted to approximately HK$380 million
(HKS$384 million as at 31st March, 2004).

As at 30th September, 2004, total debt to equity ratio was 0.06% (0.04% as at 31st March, 2004) and
net debt to equity ratio was nil (Nil as at 31st March, 2004), which are expressed as a percentage of bank and
other borrowings, and net borrowings respectively, over the total net assets of HK$380 million (HK$384
million as at 31st March, 2004),

As at 30th September, 2004, the Group’s bank and other borrowings amounted to HK$237,000
(HK$151,000 as at 31st March, 2004). Bank balances and cash equivalents amounted to HK$93 million
(HK$124 million as at 31st March, 2004) and there are no net borrowings for the two periods.

Finance costs for the period was nil (HK$7,000 for the same period last year).

The Company has provided guarantees in respect of loan facilities granted to subsidiary companies
amounting to HK$3.1 million (HK$3.1 million as at 31st March, 2004).

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial management. To achieve better
risk control and minimise cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are centralised. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong or US dollars. The Group’s liquidity and
financing requirements are frequently reviewed.

As at 30th September, 2004, the Group employed approximately 570 full time staff globally. Total staff
costs amounted to approximately HK$38 million for the period. The remuneration policies are reviewed
periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market trend, company performance and individual performance.
Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes, retirement schemes
and employees’ share option scheme.
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H. PROSPECTS

Investment, which has been in the doldrums since the Asian crisis, is also recording strong growth.
Investments in machinery, equipment and computer software continued to record double-digit growth. The
weak US dollar has also helped to drive the inflow of funds into Hong Kong, boosting investment further, but
this will also have an adverse effect on the cost due to the import inflation. On the other hand, the PRC
economy has stayed strong as trade surges, notwithstanding the implementation of macroeconomic control
measures by the PRC government to curb overheated economic activities.

Looking forward, riding on the favourable yet competitive business environment, the Management will
continue to develop business prudently and adopt stringent cost control measures to maintain the Group’s
competitive edges. The Group will continue to strengthen its ties with customers and provide high quality
services, striving to better performance in the second half of the financial year.
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LETTER ON UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES OF THE ENLARGED GROUP

The following is the text of a letter from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the reporting accountants, in
respect of the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of assets and liabilities of the Enlarged Group.

Deloi
e o I tte [ ] RY) - BEETGESGT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

FEPERTHEPINR 26/F Wing On Centre

lﬁ RZPIN268 111 Connaught Road Central
JTOR Hong Kong

30th June, 2005

The Directors

Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited

22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre
8 Wang Hoi Road

Kowloon Bay

Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

Re: Chevalier iTech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) and Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited (the ‘“Pacific Coffee”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Pacific Coffee Group”)

We reported on the unaudited pro forma statement of assets and liabilities (the “Statement”) of the
Group and the Pacific Coffee Group (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Enlarged Group™) set out in
Appendix HI to the circular of the Company dated 30th June, 2005 (the “Circular”) issued in connection with
the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Pacific Coffee (the “Acquisition™), which has been prepared
by the directors of the Company, for illustration purposes only, to provide information about how the Acquisition
might have affected the assets and liabilities of the Group.

RESPONSIBILITIES

It is the responsibilities solely of the directors of the Company to prepare the Statement in accordance
with paragraph 29 of Chapter 4 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules™).

It is our responsibility to form an opinion, as required by paragraph 29(7) of Chapter 4 of the Listing
Rules, on the Statement and to report our opinion to you. We do not accept any responsibility for any reports
previously given by us on any financial information used in the compilation of the Statement beyond that
owed to those to whom those reports were addressed by us at the dates of their issue.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our work with reference to the Statements of Investment Circular Reporting Standards
and Bulletin 1998/8 “Reporting on pro forma financial information pursuant to the listing rules” issued by the
Auditing Practices Board in the United Kingdom, where applicable. Our work, which involved no independent
examination of any of the underlying financial information, consisted primarily of comparing the unadjusted
financial information with the source documents, considering the evidence supporting the adjustments and
discussing the Statement with the directors of the Company.

Our work does not constitute an audit or a review in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and accordingly, we do not express any
such assurance on the Statement.

The Statement has been prepared in accordance with the basis set out in Appendix III to the circular for

illustration purposes only and, because of its nature, it may not give an indicative financial position of the
Group had the Acquisition actually occurred on 31st March, 2004 or at any future date.
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OPINION
In our opinion:
(a)  the Statement has been properly compiled on the basis stated;
(b) such basis is consistent with the accounting policies of the Group; and

(c) the adjustments are appropriate for the purposes of the Statement as disclosed pursuant to
paragraph 29(1) of Chapter 4 of the Listing Rules.

Yours faithfully,
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE ENLARGED
GROUP

The following is a summary of the unaudited pro forma statement of assets and liabilities of the
Enlarged Group, assuming the transactions had been completed as at 30th September, 2004 for the purpose of
illustrating how the transaction might have affected the financial position of the Group.

The unaudited pro forma statement of assets and liabilities of the Enlarged Group is prepared based on
the unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 30th September, 2004 extracted from the interim
report of the Company for the six months ended 30th September, 2004 and the Pacific Coffee Group as at 31st
March, 2005 extracted from the Accountants’ Report set out in Appendix I of this circular and adjusted for the
transactions resulting from the Acquisition.

The unaudited pro forma statement of assets and habilities is prepared to provide financial information
on the Enlarged Group as a result of completion of the Acquisition. As it is prepared for illustrative purpose
only, it may not purport to represent what the assets and liabilities of the Enlarged Group shall be on the actual
completion of the Acquisition.

In 2004, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued a number of new or revised
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (herein collectively referred
to as the “new HKFRSs”) which are effectively for accounting period beginning on or after 1st January, 2005.
The pro forma financial information of the Enlarged Group has not taken into account the impact of the new
HKFRSs. The adoption of the new HKFRSs may result in changes as to how the pro forma financial information
is prepared and presented.

Pacific
Coffee Enlarged
The Group Group Total Adjustments Group
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 Notes HK§000
Non-current assets
Investment properties 5,160 - 5,160 5,160
Property, plant and equipment 21,575 27,838 55,413 55,413
Goodwill 119,130 2 119,130
Interests in subsidiaries 205,000 1
(205,000) 2
Interests in associates 2,198 - 2,198 2,198
Investments in securities 5,000 - 5,000 5,000
Fixed deposit 7,800 - 7,800 (7,800) 1 -

47,733 27,838 75,571 186,901
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Pacific
Coffee Enlarged
The Group Group Total Adjustments Group
HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 Notes HK$'000
Current assets
Inventories 65,941 4,329 70,270 70,270
Properties for sale, at cost 1,135 - 1,135 1,135
Debtors, deposits and prepayments 81,050 18,494 99,544 99,544
Amount due from ultimate
holding company 2,128 - 2,128 2,128
Amounts due from customers
for contract work 1,168 - 1,168 1,168
Tax recoverable 827 - 827 827
Investments in securities 176,432 - 176,432 176,432
Bank balances and
cash equivalents 93,185 51,386 144,571 (137,200) 1 1371
421,366 74,209 496,075 358,875
Current liabilities
Creditors, deposits and accruals 64,459 12,456 76,915 76,915
Amounts due to customers
for contract work 2,378 - 2,378 2,378
Bill payable 1,055 - 1,055 1,055
Deferred service income 19,764 - 19,764 19,764
Provision for taxation 1,041 3,097 4,138 4,138
Bank borrowings 237 - 237 60,000 1 60,237
88,934 15,553 104,487 164,487
Net current assets 332,932 58,656 391,588 194,388
Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation 413 624 1,037 1,037
Minerity linterests 165 - 165 165
Total net assets 380,087 85,870 465,957 380,087
Notes:
1. Adjustment to reflect the consideration for the acquisition of the Pacific Coffee Group of HK$205,000,000 of

which HK$145,000,000 is to be settled by cash and the balance by bank borrowings.

2. Adjustment to eliminate the cost of acquisition of the Pacific Coffee Group and to reflect goodwill arising from

the acquisition.

3. The statement of assets and liabilities of the Pacific Coffee Group are translated to HK$ at an exchange rate of

US$1 = HK$7.8.
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1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors jointly and severally accept full responsibility for the
accuracy of the information contained in this circular with regard to the Company and confirm, having made
all reasonable enquiries and that to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no other facts, the
omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

2. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
i. Directors’ and chief executives’ interests in securities

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
§352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company - Shares

Number of Shares Approximate
Personal Corporate percentage
Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest
(%)
CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 6,815,854 86,994,933* 93,810,787 5475
and interest of
controlled
carporation
FUNG Pak Kwan Beneficial owner 2,580,000 - 2,580,000 1.5
KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 2,400,000 - 2,400,000 14
KAN Ka Hon Beneficial owner 451,200 - 451,200 0.26
Shinichi YONEHARA Beneficial owner 600 - 600 0.00035
* Dr. CHOW Yei Ching had notified the Company that under the SFO, he was deemed to be

interested in 86,994,933 Shares which were held by CIHL as Dr. Chow beneficially owned
144,276,359 shares in CIHL, representing approximately 51.79% of the issued share capital of
CIHL. Dr. Chow was deemed to be interested in these shares under the SFO and these shares
were same as those shares disclosed in the section “Substantial shareholders’ interests in
securities” below.

(b) Interests in Associated Corporation - shares

Number of ordinary shares Approximate

Associated Personal percentage

Name of directors corporation Capacity interests Total of interest
(%)

CHOW Yei Ching CIHL Beneficial owner 144,276,359 144,276,359 SLT9
FUNG Pak Kwan CIHL Beneficial owner 93,479 93,479 0.03
KUOK Hoi Sang CIHL Beneficial owner 98,216 98,216 0.04
KAN Ka Hon CIHL Beneficial owner 29,040 29,040 0.01
Shinichi YONEHARA CIHL Beneficial owner 1,671 1,671 0.0006

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as is known to the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company, no other person has interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or are required,
pursuant to S352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or are required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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ii. Substantial shareholders’ interests in securities

As at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons or corporations in the shares or underlying
shares which have been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO and as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under S336 of the SFO
were as follows:

Approximate
Number of percentage
Substantial shareholder Shares heid of interest
(%)
CHOW Yei Ching 93,810,787 (Notes 1 and 3) 54,75
MIYAKAWA Michiko 93,810,787 (Notes 2 and 3) 54.75
CIHL 86,994,933 (Note 3) 50.77
Chevalier (HK) Limited 13,471,200 (Note 3) 7.86
Firstland Company Limited 13,471,200 (Note 3) 7.86
Note:
1. Under the SFO, these Shares were held by Dr Chow as (i) personal interests of 6,815,854, (it) corporate
interests of 86,994,933 in which Dr. Chow was deemed to be interested.
2. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of Dr. Chow, was deemed to be interested
in the same parcel of 93,810,787 Shares held by Dr. Chow.
3. These Shares were held as interest of controlled corporation through Firstland Company Limited, a

company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chevalier (HK) Limited. Chevalier
(HK) Limited is a company incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIHL. CIHL is
a company incorporated in Bermuda. Under Part XV of the SFO, Chevalier (HK) Limited, CIHL, Dr.
Chow and his spouse were deemed to be interested in 13,471,200 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as is known to the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company, no other person had interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or, who were, directly or indirectly, beneficially interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Enlarged Group or in any options in respect of such capital.

3. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors have an interest in any business constituting a
competing business to the Group.

4. OTHER INTERESTS OF THE DIRECTORS
As at the Latest Practicable Date:

(i) none of the Directors had any interest, either direct or indirect, in any assets which have been,
since 31st March, 2004, being the date to which the latest published audited accounts of the
Group were made up, acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of the Enlarged
Group, or are proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or leased to any member of the Enlarged
Group; and

(ii)  none of the Directors was materially interested in any contract or arrangement entered into by

any member of the Enlarged Group which is subsisting as at the date of this circular and is
significant in relation to the business of the Enlarged Group.
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5. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts have been entered into by members of the Enlarged Group within two years
preceding the date of this circular and are or may be material:

(a) the Agreement; and

(b) the escrow agreement entered into among the Vendors, the Warrantor, the Purchaser and the
Escrow Agent on 20th May, 2005 in relation to the release of the Escrow Amount.

6. SERVICE CONTRACT

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors have entered, or are proposing to enter, into any
service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not expiring or may not be terminated by the
Company within a year without payment of any compensation (other than statutory compensation).

7. LITIGATION

As at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as is known to the Directors, none of the members of the
Enlarged Group was engaged in any litigation, arbitration of material importance or claim of material importance
pending or threatened against any member of the Enlarged Group.

8. EXPERT AND CONSENT

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, a firm of certified public accountants, has given and has not withdrawn its
written consent to the issue of this circular with the inclusion of its letter and the reference to its name in the
form and context in which it appears.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu did not have any shareholding in the
Group or any right (whether legally enforceable or not) to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe
for securities in the Group, nor did it have any interest, direct or indirect, in any assets which had, since 31st
March, 2004, being the date to which the latest published audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group were made up, been acquired or disposed of by or leased to the Enlarged Group, or were proposed to be
acquired or disposed of by or leased to the Enlarged Group.

9. MISCELLANEOUS
(a)  The qualified accountant and the secretary of the Company is Mr. Kan Ka Hon, FCCA. He is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the U.K. and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
(b)  The registered office of the Company is situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton,
HM 12, Bermuda and its principal place of business is situated at 22nd Floor, Chevalier
Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong.
(c) The Hong Kong branch share registrars and transfer office of the Company is Standard Registrars
Limited, G/F., Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.
(d) In the event of inconsistency, the English text of this circular shall prevail over the Chinese text.
10. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION
Copies of the following documents are available for inspection during normal business hours at 22nd
Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong, from the date of
this circular up to 18th July, 2005.
- the memorandum and bye-laws of the Company;
- the annual report of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2004;
- the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30th September, 2004,

- the accountants’ report on Pacific Coffee Group;
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- the letter from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in relation to the unaudited pro forma consolidated
statement of assets and liabilities of the Enlarged Group;

- the consent letter from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu referred to in the section headed “Expert and
consent” in this appendix;

- the escrow agreement entered into among the Vendors, the Warrantor, the Purchaser and the
Escrow Agent on 20th May, 2005 in relation to the release of the Escrow Amount; and

- the Agreement.
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HIEEBERE (BH) 5 1,016 (12,093)
B aT s Al (BB 18) 6 24,420 (18.,463)
F 18 7 (1,557) (4,334)
AEERF (BE) 22,863 (22,797)
B E 8 8,568 -
BERARN (BB , 9

EAR 13.34% Al (13.30) % fll
BHE R # H N A
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B & — XEEBRKER
13. HXMHEE
(a) FEBEBERHEA
RIFEZWENAZTHEH AEEEALNFTEFR I U EBE ARz EER
HMAMBARRRI M ZHEBENZDOT -
R-IBENE RI-SITNF
hWBE=+8 =Ag=+-—8
BT T T T
—&F R 1,512 3,356
BE_EEAF (OEEHEWE) 196 —
1,708 3,356

HAOEHEERHYTEHEESRE -

(b) ZFTEBEZBHEA
BEYEHBPAWNERFAEATEL THPF A AN ZEE - BEERBEFT M
THHMZzAFEEZEEEAY AEEB AT RBZHERHESWT ¢

R-ZBENE R-BENHF
AA=+H =B=+-—-8
BT T T T
— &R 264 135
B OEETF (BEETEME) 161 —
425 135
14. HLBHEF

AREFBRAZRET ETHREFEEHR S HIE - |
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B} &%

10.

11.

12.

BNER FARSRENSER

AR - FARE REMNEBQHEREMEREN26.116000T (ZFFME=A=1

— H : #%28,613,0000C) °
LT BEMERZRE AT

R-ZETNE R-ZIEBESHIE
hB=+H =A=+-—8
BT T B BT oT
0 — 60K 24,412 26,739
61—90K 511 —
B90K 1,193 1,874
26,116 28,613
[

SREE

HBUEEOSTZ
TEREE EHEAE
T T
BERA 240,000,000 120,000
BEBITRBEMRAE 171,355,871 85,678

IR - B R BB AT A A AT () -

R
BAR Hedx HELS

REME EXHEE DHRER ERRRE TOHEER RERER HEEF 5

BETT EBETT BE¥TT EETT BRI BETI ERTR B¥TIR
RZEZMEEA-H W4 18231 14 2,764 1,036 5041 47288 297,908
“EEMEERAERE - - - - - (5,141) - (5,141)
REBNHBLARERE
BELzhpEg - - - - (860) - (860)
Bk - - - - - 2,502 2,502
BE - - - - - L4 (L4 -
R-ZEMEAAZTH 2343 18231 14 2,764 176 L714 48076 294,409
XREE

HZEFNENAZ+TH - A0RAFHZEREE

(i) ABWBARZETEEFHZEMR XHEH¥3064,0000 (ZEFWEFEZA =1

— H : #%3102,00000) 5 X

(i) HBETHEBELATABAHELRERALB 4694000 (CEFENE=ZHA=+—H:

# %52 053,00070) ©
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B &%

Big
BEZAB=+BL<HEEB
—EENF —EBEB=F
BT T BT T
BEBIE
AR REME AT
it 600 665
& 4h 191 34
iE 3EFi IH
PN 34 64
R _ 5
825 768

%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%l%ﬂﬁzm%%%ﬁmﬂﬂ 2 AU S R B Rk
REREITSH ( ZEE=Z5F 1 17.5%) 5T & -

WO BABMEFBNIEBELAE M Z ER LA ERE B -

RHRE
BEEAA=THLAEA

“EE2NE E%Eﬂi
T T BT T
A 1A R B
ERESIFT171,35587TIR (ZEE =4 :
(g

WAL F 171,355,871 %) 1,714 3,427

SRER

BREFNZ ?%Eﬁ%%ﬁ@%%%umm@ﬂ:igzﬁ:%%Mmmwm&%
WA ME TSR E171,355,871 (ZEBEEFE =4 1 171,355,871 R#E -

MRALARBRE _ZTOEFNA=ZTHRZFEFZF A=+ B AR A EREE
L@l R REINEEGREERF -

WE- -BERRE

BHE_ZFNEAAZTHENEE  ZEEREREEYE - BERZETA A
#2.392,000C & # % 2,503,0007T -

ERIRR - FHRERBENIRE

FEWIE - FHEE RBEMKESEREIRERE%S59,213,000T (ZEFLNE=ZA=+
—H : #%56,650,0007T) °

LT & B SR WRE 1

R-BENE HKZ-ZBENF

hBA=+8 =B=+-—8

T T BT T

0 — 60K 56,079 50,455
61 —90R 1,732 3,298
HWOOK 1,402 2,897
59,213 56,650

$%ﬁ%%@&&¥ﬁzgﬁaﬁI%EZ%ﬁﬂ%’%?%5§ﬁ2¥ﬂ%§%%
60 KX
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B &2 XEEBKEH
2. TEER ()
(a) HEBESE (F)
BE _FE=ZFNA=+HILMEA
BEEE ®bEE
ERR @RHT Rk RFRE -KER EBARE
BEME EARR RERE RHEM g% KEg 8y
BHTFT BETFT BETFIT EETT BETT BETT BETFT
EEE
Be%H 200,243 68,298 22431 78,261 11 906 370,150
A ERA (21,872) (3,665  (2,835) - (1) (30)  (28,403)
SEHE 178,371 64,633 19,596 78,261 10 876 341,747
3
SEHER 4,144 (1,788) 1,143 4,832 - - 8,331
FERA 713
*oEAFEHR (210)
BEERF 8,834
HEER M
FitBENAEE (235) - - (235)
RIEBEZ W R - - 86 491 577
B B 0 5 A 9,169
BE (768)
A i 8,401
et AT ERAZIEENRBEERBZENISERFEHERTE -
(b) HUHEES
=F 2]
EFEAA=Z+BLEXEA
—BENE —ge=%
BEETIT BT
& 268,850 271,077
A H 12,816 7,537
RE 35,990 59,069
H At 2,211 4,064
319,867 341,747
3. EEER
BEhRA=+8LXMEA
—REENE —2%8=F
T T T T
BEBAMEHBRTIEER :
EHEFEEZ A 216,817 180,811
¥ REAXEBINE 2,139 2,323
BEMMEZEBFRAIE 4,035 6,053
ARFREEMeE>ETIHX 38,109 41,934
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B &%

= L LLE L

A RENTE
BE_FTMFEFNA =+ HIEANMEA

1.

FREBK

SRR RBEEEEH A THEMZ G B ER B 25T [T M BER
HIZRERH -

SRS ERRTRRZ G ERNEAREEE _FENE=A=+—HLLE
FERHBEHRRPIBZ T EGFEORMAA -

FEEHR
FAEEEXBEZEEBRBERY BER RELBEEHZELEIHNT -
(a) UHUXHBEE
BE_FTWNEAA=+HIENMEA
BERE KBEW BWR EHFRE

BEHE BEARSK REEBR¥K REAL aR
BWTT EETT EWTT EFTT BETT

—F %]

R 231,174 48,598 34,020 25,184 338,976
N AR IR A (10,986) (1,343) (6,780) - (19,109)
ANEHE 220,188 47,255 27,240 25,184 319,867
e

DTHESR 2,198 788 717 1,328 5,031
FEWA 543
b e VONETE - 81 (2,223)
BEEF 3,351
MEEA -
R k- /N (24) - - - (24)
% B Bl i3 7 3,327
BiIA (825)
HA A & R 2,502
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B 8 = AEBEHMBEN

MPEGSEEEHR
BE_ZTEWNFEAA=1THIESMEA
RBEX
BZAA=1THLEXEA
ZEENE —EBRZH
T T BT T
WU H— Bz R 383,586 364,234
HEBIIMEARMBRE
FTEAEZ RIREH (860) (2,099)
HA A 5 A 2,502 8,401
EfAEE (5,141) -
BRLAZt+HZEER 380,087 370,536
BHEFERERER
BE_ZTFMNFEAR="THIIENEA
REEX
BEAA=+BLL~<MAA
—EENE —EBE=E
BT T BT T
(FRRRERELEBZHEEFER (28,023) 23,432
RKEREEHZREEFHR 4,253 7,627
FRRREEE R EH (7,024) (3,972)
ReEREREEZ (WD) #En (30,794) 27,087
Bz BRehERKREEE 124,335 148,960
fE 5030 B (593) 1,061
MRzHRERERREHEE 92,948 177,108
RERERBELSERZ TN
BITHEERERRE 93,185 177,108
|WITEX (237) —
92,948 177,108
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B 8% — FEEREESR

MRS EERGER
—EFMEAAZTHEE
REBEX REZX
—EBENE —EBENE
AWBA=+R =ZH=+-—-8H
N3 BT T BT T
ERBEE
HEYE 5,160 5,160
Y BE KKWH 7 27,575 29,042
B O\ T RE 2 2,198 2,239
BEHEBLE 5,000 5,000
EHF K 7,800 7,800
47,733 49,241
REEE
7B 65,941 67,069
HEYWE 1,135 1,135
BUIRR - FHES REAMFIE 8 81,050 77,075
JE W B S B 4 B ZR0A 2,128 245
MEHTREEMEF A FRIE 1,168 438
A] BR[| # IR 827 487
EHRERE 176,432 152,769
WMITHEERERRE 93,185 124,486
421,866 423,704
TmE & A
FEMIRZK - BAKREREMNERA 9 64,459 66,315
MEHTIREERNEF XM HE 2,378 1,322
FEAT 48 1,055 1,721
% 3T AR B i A 19,764 18,664
oA ' 1,041 633
ELMPITEL 237 151
88,934 88,806
MEEEFHE 332,932 334,898
BMEERABAERE 380,665 384,139
B E A
I FEF T8 413 379
DPHBRRE @ 165 174
380,087 383,586
R AR K fo 1
% 7 10 85,678 85,678
ft 155 11 294,409 297,908
380,087 383,586
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B 8% —. AEBEMBEESR

B. BE-SBONFAAZTBELAEAXREERZREXSE

DTEZEAZEOREELN _FTN THFEEFHERMBREE -ZBTH -

[FEAARE W&
BE_FFWNFENAA=Z1THIEAEA

FEEX
BEAB=ZTHBILAMEE
—EENE —EE=F
Bt 3 BT T BT o
wEH 2 319,867 341,747
$HE A (286,482) (312,851)
EF 33,385 28,896
Hi &g A 609 5,852
A LA (24,098) (24,244)
TEE ¢ (2,373) (2,062)
HigR&E3F T (4,172) 392
28 s ) 3 3,351 8,834
THHEE A - (N
IR R NI ¥ (24) (235)
BIEEEZ R — 577
¥ #5451 v A 3,327 9,169
FiIE 4 (825) (768)
2R iE ' 2,502 8,401
FHE R B 5 1,714 3,427
2 6
A 1.46% Al 4.90% il
- A A N
BRPHRE 1851l 28R Al
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B & — FEEHHKESR

A BBRUE=ZFHRERER

UTRARHEUA=ZEBE_FTENE=ZA=ZT-HHRALLAMEFR  BEZ
ZEAWER  BEXAARMRE

I 2%
“RE2NF ZBBRIF ZBBCF

BT T BT T # T T
E 670,583 687,903 775,364
84 & A (597.626) (604,595) (636,995)
EH 72,957 83,308 138,369
HAt W4 8,924 10,454 9,907
B3 LA (52,642) (94,629) (146,180)
7 BB 32 (3,757) (5,863) (7,713)
Ho At #8°8 BA X2 (1,979) (1,499) (3,813)
"Ewm P (EiE) 23,503 (8,229) (9,430)
LRSI (22) (68) (228)
IR kNI (77) 1,927 5,135
BibEEIE (BE) 1,016 (12,093) 260
B B U A (5 48D 24,420 (18,463) (4,263)
R (1,557) (4,334) (5,166)
A A (B 18) 22,863 (22,797) (9,429)
i) 8,568 - 8,568
BREF ER)

BN 13.34% 1l (13.30) ¥ Ul (5.50) ¥ 11l
i : NEH N il
BEERAE
=Z=RA=+-8
—ETMF —EERZ=HF —2E-HF

BT T W WF T g
MERE 472,945 465,585 500,991
BEE 89,185 101,165 115,939
D E R R A 174 186 184
BREE 383,586 364,234 384,868
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M 4% — Pacific Coffeeft B & =t B 3 &

17. BEMESE (&)
(b)  Pacific CoffeeE BIBE R MM #AaSHEM AN ERKNBRZ ZREHESZFHW

‘F
=ZA=t+-8
—BE-F ZEBENE Z—ZEZTRF
FETT FZET FETT
— R 32 30 11
ZERF 24 14
56 44 15

HRMBPHAEME -
18. HAREE

MRZEERE=HA=+—H : Pacific Coffec E B Z B AR EE 5 128,000FETT - L& H
BZEEVWFHBERMBENBEESRMERMEZ M - R Pacific CoffeeEHE 2 E
o HESABERBHEBERK  MEKWEAMBEER FHFH -

B. EKEFERFE

Pacific Coffec EEAFHE AT M EAXRTEBRENGTH > 4P RANELELFH
(FEFE [ & 2 51 #1)) K Central Provident Fund (f %8 [CPFJ) - & 8|+ #) & /= B Pacific
Coffee E M EE A > YAHGBHELARMKRE -

BE_ZFE=F _FTZWNFR_EFZAFE=ZA=+—H LMW =EEE > Pacific Coffee
EEEIMEAEIMNEAITHFASTHHEARBEERSA A 189,000E T » 177,000% 7T K&
210,000E7C - M Z_EE=ZHE=ZHA=+—H > _FEZNF=A=Z+—HEA_FEEFHE=
A=+—8 > MR ZFF B0 M55 A 18,0003 5T > 15,0003 It K 23,0003 JT °

C. HEBR®RER

MNoBERFZA=+—HEB A% > BESHRWET > RELBERPHREEK16.88
EIT > B E 56,758,000 TC o

D. #EBRPBHRK

WS —FEERLE=ZH =+ — B 1% T 7 # F 47 $ Pacific Coffeedl E fff & 2 A 1 B FE -
MEHE -

2

EFi

JUREE

% B E 8%
HAEmEFRL20248
HERFEERAERAA
IINEE AR

B HERASFHMT
]
7 BI

“EFRFAAZHH
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Bt 4% — Pacific Coffeets B & 5t B0 3R &
15. BRERE
=A=+-—H
ZREZE ZZEZBENE C—ZZEILE
FET FETT FEITT
mAe—H ' 6,323 5,316 4,539
A% 22 [6] B (7N - -
Rt B (1,000) (777) (602)
=A=+—8H 5,316 4,539 3,937
16. RBRFN(REEE)
PACIFIC COFFEEE &
=EBE=+—H
—BE=F IZZENE CZ—ZBELEF
FET FET FETT
MmA—H 2,562 3,133 4,338
£ R FE 571 1,205 2,694
=H=+—H 3,133 4,338 7,032
PACIFIC COFFEE
=HF=+-—8
ZEE=F CZEENF ZZBBHE
FET F#E T F*T
mA—H (142) (147) (166)
FRNER (5) (19 (49)
=Z=A=+—8 (147) (166) (215)
17. EEMEAESE
(a) MHEEEMEFHR > Pacific CoffeeE MRBE AR HME T BLHEMAR KK I
ZHREYVEEEEROT ¢
=Z=B=+-8
—EB=-F CZZEZTNE —ZEIHF
FET FET FETT
—FE R 3,948 4,140 4,526
—EHF 3,984 4,192 5,586
HLER - 379 —
7,932 8,711 10,112

HAZHASPWMEZFRESZTEFHHRAME -
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Pacific Coffeef B

13.

14.

EEBIE
AR B Pacific Coffee R BRI EREHEEEU LA EHRBHMZEZ2HUT -
IES 7
wE BHEES &t
FETT FETT FET
“EFZ_FMA—H 134 — 134
AN RS 47 — 47
SEE=E=AZ+—H 181 = 181
AR (85) — (85)
—EFNF=A=1+—8 96 - 96
PR EARINE GTA) 11 (27) (16)
_EFERAF=A=Z+—8 107 (27 80
HEEEBEEB > Pacific Coffee EEAMAZHIERE N TR EZ T AEMKSEHER
ZHEHERWER > TARERFAEEABNT
—EE-HF ZEZTNE Z—ZBTIHHF
FHE T FET FH#ET
B A 4 B 876 932 1,021
MIEEE 746 695 695
1,622 1,627 1,716
A B DL TE A SR R B e B VE o uﬁﬂﬁiﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ B 18 A R
EBIBEEE KXHEEBEZHEBETERBGEHE -
g
=A=+-—8
ZEg=-HF CZ—SSWNFE CZEBTILF
FET FEx FET
®BE
500,0008% & ML HO0.1E T HY
38 Ry 50 50 50
EEITRARE
400337 EREEO1ETH
TiERE 40 40 40

A EI R B 1R K > Pacific Coffee TR E
ExHE BE19.9%7T) #440,071F Tk

Brbdish . @E=E B E =F=ZA=+—H>
FRHEZHA=1+—0 > & CETAHMICERE

- 17 -

JR 5640,0713 ST 1F £ 400,710 8 AX
DIETL - BMEZZE=-F—F+WAEBMNIERIRE - EE370MRLEHER
E R £40,034F% 0 ©

TEENEZAZ=+—HBERZF
WA EE -
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M 42 — Pacific Coffeess B & =t & & &
8. HEBLAARE
=A=+—H
—ES=-F C"SENE =—SEILF
FET FET FET
M|mEERD - B 1,123 1,123 1,123
9. ®BE
ELEENFTEREYERAET k-
10. BEWRREREMARE
HEPRE_ZEZ=4H=ZA=+—H _EFZNE=ZA=Z+—HEEFZHE=/=
+—HEMEBWE SHIE LB A  3£58202,309 > £I091,599% £ 55108,207 - N&EE H
BB 5 FIBWRE ST
=B=+—H
—EE-F ZEBEME —BEIF
FET FET FHET
0-30K% 202 85 102
31-60K - 6 5
RPN - 1 1
202 92 108
The Pacific Coffee EEH G ERRELRL TEFFF 2 THEEHA30EOX -
11, BEUKNBARRE
=A=+-—18H
—ER=-F ZBENE C"—BEILHE
FETT FE7T FEIT
HILW (M3 (b)) — 1,679 1,961
Ci L 2,096 15 —
2,096 1,694 1,961
Ff et -
(a) BWHBAGRELAERERTERY -
by FTEHBARIMNEEUERENEKM -
12. BENFE
FEAT IR BREE At I F -
=ZE=+—H
“EBE-f C"BTNE Z—28ILF
FFET F*ET FEIT
0-30K 572 630 767
31-60K 1 - 11
60K 19 6 122
592 636 900
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B &% — Pacific CoffecfE B 2 &t BT 8 &
5 B ()
B aE
(@) ZEF=F=-"A=+—0 —“FFNE=F=F—-HAR_FTAF=A=1—
BEEFEMNEBIEFERZ AR TR LI16% - 17.5% > 17.5%H -
HRAMBARELMESGEFCARMMAEENEFRATER » HLEER
ZEHMY BB ERIELEIMNIAR
by E-ZEME=F=+— BEFHME  FEBREEENEREA _FT=/
FTOERBEERB 1628 MEL7.5% -
6. RE
BEZE-A=+—-BLEE
“RE=E CZZTERF =ZTTIF
FET FET FETT
F AR
“ETNFEGREBRRE D ETT0.6928
R_ZEFZREFRLEERBE B EIT1.5048 - 277 602
A B
—EZT=HEBREERKE S FET24979
FZEZNFEGREEBBRE B ET1.2489 1,000 500 -
1,000 777 602
7. ME BERRE
PACIFIC COFFEEE H
BERRE
BERREE BAR BE a5
FEx FETT FET TFETT
A E
—“EFE_HNA—H 5,096 1,922 212 7,230
"E 1,430 445 12 1,887
HE (497) (101) (143) (741)
IEE=F=Z=+—H 6,029 2,266 81 8,376
mE 717 226 12 955
A (60) (93) (1n (164)
ZEENE=A=+—H 6,686 2,399 82 9,167
nE 1,210 © 340 1 1,551
HE (594) (455) (54) (1,103)
_EERE=Z/R=+—H 7,302 2,284 29 9,615
REFE
“EE_HFNA—H 2,116 887 177 3,180
EFERE 1,017 391 31 1,439
EdEE (246) (66) (143) (455)
—EE=ZE=Z/=+—8 2,887 1,212 65 4,164
EERE 1,136 395 9 1,540
EhEa an (57 (11) (85)
ZEZENE=Z/A=+—H 4,006 1,550 63 5,619
EERE 1,098 357 9 1,464
EdEe (550) (431) (56) (1,037
—EERNE=Z=R=+—H 4,554 1,476 16 6,046
REZEE
TEE=FE=ZR=+—H 3,142 1,054 16 4,212
_EZEWE=/R=+—H 2,680 849 19 3,548
_EERF=ZA=Z+—H 2,748 808 13 3,569
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B 8% — B 2R E
4., BRBATER
BE=ZB=Zt+—-HLEEE
—EE-f C—B2ENFE ZZ88ILE
FFEoT FET FFEITL
REEIEACIIBRTIERE X
% B R B 4 10 11 20
e 1,439 1,540 1,464
EXEME
— %ﬂﬁ p— p— —
— BIKEF FHE 2 4 4 4
- Hite 491 447 488
EITH*Z 3,860 3,771 4,436
4,355 4,222 4,928
BSEMBEEFHA I 3,991 4,539 5,196
HEYE - BERREZER 260 74 66
BB
— RITETFE F 1 = =
— RITEA 16 17 25
17 17 25
WEFETIHEE KA :
RAT R H AR Bk A 39 15 24
HEAKE 78 48 44
RERBWA 77 89 102
#EERFWA 216 175 388
5. BiE
BE=A=+—BLEE
—EE=f C"—E2TNFE ZSBILF
FET FEIT FFE T
FiIE 61 4%
FRBEB (Kfita) 178 400 633
RACR (Ff5813) 47 (85) (16)
225 315 617
FHAMANBERERZEZEFRIGEAOHEDT ¢
BE=-HB=+—RHLEE
ZEB=H BTN —8FLEFE
FET FFET FFET
B B AT 4 A 796 1,520 3,311
HEBHNEHERFTBEZHE
(16% > 17.5% 5% 17.5%) 127 266 579
ARG REINEEEE 7 9 13
BAERBEANBSEE (D (1 (nH
FRAUMAR FHREZEREERWEE (3) (9) -
RAERBREBERZ TS 64 — —
DK 56 2R i g T 4 R SE L B
VI RERNEE (b)) - 17 —
RNEMEEEREBEZWEBEAR
INGEE vl - (4) (2)
Hib 31 37 28
N BIE T W 225 315 617

—14 -
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Pacific Coffeef B & 5t B0 1§ &

TERHEBE (4

(hy EBHREBERIZH |
IR EMAFTEBRBEHAE IR EEFGIEL -

() SHEBREHE

Pacific Coffec i Bl sk AR TR > A B AR EEHEE LU EHEHIERL
e EXNHBEEBREKEUN X GREXIFEOZEX LS - KEABEEE
HZAMEERARBEERREXRE - WAIMBABEARNRERNEE -

AW BB > Pacific Coffee EHAMIMB AR  EERBNZEAERABASAERE
ERE o WHE RBERAEIAUAEEFHERLH - WA EMELZHEL
AR A EEMIAELRFEERN HEAZHENLEZRTREINHERZW
mEEHEE -

() EEBE

BEBELSAMBENEE A FREEE BRI R EA 23
REMT AT E A BLIE > WL BREAMRAREAR BEBRBEEFET RN
A RERATLUY Fr = BERERT - TR AL AR IR G 7 7E AT RE o BT N R B 2 A0 U R
BMEFESHER - MEETHZREXSAERBERZHMEEREEM AL ER
BHEN G AERE . AT eREZSEEREH -

BEREEEIAAWEBARAREMEAZEERY S FLUER K
. Pacific CoffecE EIREM I W R X 2 BEH UL ERFEHEEZAENT RE
A AEE o
REBENEZEPANEBEFENEEEZHNPMERMB RSE - BREHER
WREFMBERAR > N EEH ERTFERERAEZ FIBRIARNER »
BIR SR AERE FEE -

EHEMAoGE _EENESETHIBIT TR EFTEREFTEMNEHRESEL (4

FE(#HKFRS)) - SRt EEME_ZTEHE—A—HRZEHLE > FESIHFIEFT

R o

Pacific Coffee 2 B B % B HTHKFRS TS R EBA M B E - A ZE R F R E FHHKFRS

SHEHEERME BRI EREE - HIHKFRSTA B & A AR & FH 221k m

PEEANE SRR ERI -

PEEHE

#BIB B 1% 2 9089 Pacific CoffeefE H B B B R L KB % » Pacific CoffeeE H £ &
ERELEMEESE - Bt REEBTERIMESEERRET -

EER

EXRBEENRCAZFFHAERENHEE -
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Pacific CoffeefE B 2 5t BT 8 &

MBERKE

1.

TEEHEE

MBEEHDRABES AR EEELERANGFHENTRE - MBEERFTRAN
FTEGFHEEMNT

(a) HEEE

Pacific CoffeeE B 45 & M ¥ & ¥ © 5 A Pacific Coffee R HEMB AR B ERZEE
ZHA=+—H8 W BEEH -

(by MELF

BB R B 1 E DA R AR AR S B E RS R A -
(c) ¥% BERRHE

W BERBREURAEEMEFITERREBRIINER -

Y BRE R TTRER MG EAFE AT RREEAERKFTETEE
> MFHKERNT ¢

B EER 10% — 60%
Rkt 16.67%— 85.71%

ALENENEEMEENBE NHEEMSRELEERTEENZHEHE
A A U 25 R R T RE o

(dy HE

HEFHENEFER AN EEEREE  UBEZSEER T HRBEER -
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